

DISCLAIMER NOTICE

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE BEST QUALITY AVAILABLE. COPY FURNISHED CONTAINED A SIGNIFICANT NUMBER OF PAGES WHICH DO NOT REPRODUCE LEGIBLY.

FUEL CELL RESEARCH & DEV2LOPMENT

HYDROCARBON - AIR FUEL CELLS

Semi-Annual

Technical Summary Report No. 10 1 July - 31 December 1965

ARPA ORDER: Number 247 CONTRACT : Number DA44-009-AMC-479(T)

-- **L**,

U.S. ARMY ENGINEER RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT LABORATORIES FT. BELVOIR, VIRGINIA

DIRECT ENERGY CONVERSION OPERATION



930 WESTERN AVE., LYNN, MASS

BLANK PAGE

٠

FOREWORD

This is Technical Summary Report Number 10 of a research program conducted by the General Electric Company under contract with the U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Laboratories. The purpose of this program is to investigate Lydrocarbon-air fuel cells for military epplications. This program continues the research effort on the direct oxidation of hydrocarbon fuels first undertaken by General Electric Company in November 1960, under contract DA 44-009-ENG-3771. Investigatic class continued under contracts DA 44-009-ENG-4853, DA 44-009-ENG-4909 and DA 44-009-AMC-479 (T). This work is conducted at the Company's Research and Development Center in Schenectady, New York, and at the Direct Energy Conversion Operation's Research and Development Laboratory in Lynn, Massachusetts. Program management is the responsibility of the Direct Energy Conversion Operation.

These technical summary reports are issued on a semi-annual basis. The technical content is reviewed by ERDL prior to publication. The Contracting Officer's Technical Representative is Dr. Maxine Savitz.

This work is made possible by the support of the Advanced Research Projects Agency (Order No. 247) under Project Lorraine through the U. S. Army Engineer Research and Development Laboratories, Fort Belvoir, Virginia.

i

TABLE OF CONTENTS

İ.

1

Sect	lon		Page		
1.0	GENERAL SUMMARY				
	1. 1	Program Summary	1-1		
	1.2	Research Summary	1-3		
	1, 3	Analysis of Dircct Hydrocarbon/Air Fuel Ccll System for Liquid Fuels	1-6		
	1.4	Personnel	1-7		
	1, 5	Reports and Publications	1-8		
2.0	DET	DETAILS OF INVESTIGATIONS			
	2.1	Electrocatalyst Research	2 - 1		
		2. 1. 1 Alloy Electrocatalysts Compatible with H ₂ -CO Mixtures	2-1		
		2.1.2 Metal Oxide - Noble Metal Catalysts	2-14		
		2.1.3 Activated Boron Carbide Electrodes	2-31		
		2.1.4 Electrodes with Other Carbides	2-44		
		2.1.5 Multipulse Potentiodynamic Studies of the Adsorption of Carbon			
		Monoxide and Hydrogen on Rhodium Electrodes	2-47		
	2.2	Multi-Component Fuels			
		2.2.1 Extended Life Tests with Multi-Component Fuels			
		(Unsupported Platinum Anodes)	2-69		
		2.2.2 Relative Reactivities of Hydrocarbon Fuel Components	2-76		
	2. 3	Investigations with Alternate Electrolytes	2-101		
		2, 3, 1 Experimental	2-101		
		2.3.2 Results and Discussion	2-104		
		2.3.3 Conclusions	2-111		
3. 0	ANALYSIS OF DIRECT HYDROCARBON/AIR FUEL CELL SYSTEM FOR				
	LIQUID FUELS				
	3.1	Background			
		3.1.1 Summary	3-1		
		3.1.2 Introduction	3-2		

ii

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT'D)

ł

1.15

Sect	<u>ion</u>		Page			
	3. 2	Choices of Components and Operating Conditions				
		3. 2. 1 Choice of Electrolyts	3-4			
		3. 2. 2 Choice of Fuel Vaporization or Injection Procedure	3-5			
		3. 2. 3 Choice of Electrolyte Containment Method	3-5			
		3. 2. 4 Choice of Electrode Composition	3-6			
	3. 3	Process Stream Arrangements				
	3.4	System Optimization				
	3.5	Conceptual Layout of a 0.5 KW Direct Hydrocarbon Fuel Cell System	3-20			
		3. 5. 1 Fuel Cell Stack	3-20			
		3. 5. 2 Reaction Air Preheater	3-22			
		3.5.3 Exhaust Air Condenser	3-22			
		3.5.4 Fuel Condenser and Tank	3-22			
		3. 5. 5 Electrolyte Cooler and Starter-Heater	3-22			
		3.5.6 Air Pump	3-23			
		3.5.7 Acid and Fuel Pumps	3-23			
		3. 5. 8 Auxiliary Battery for Start-Up	3-23			
		3. 5. 9 Catalytic Burner	3-23			
	3, 6	Conclusions and Recommendations	3-25			
4.0	APP	APPENDIX				
	4.1	Metal Oxide - Noble Metal Catalysts				
	4.2	Activated Boron Carbide Electrodes				
	4.3	Summary of Cell Life Tests with Multi-Component Fuels				
	4.4	Calculations for Binary and Multi-Component Fuels				
	4.5	Computer Program for Core Weight Optimization				
	4.6	Definition of Screen Resistivity (Ohm per Square)				
	4.7	Detailed Equations for Heat, Mass and Energy Balances, Weight and				
		Parasitic Power	4-52			
	4.8	Results of Detailed Heat, Mass, and Energy Balance for 0.5 KW System				

Ħ

17

BLANK PAGE

1.0 GENERAL SUMMARY

1.1 PROGR M SUMMARY

The work reported herein is a continuation of the tasks discussed in Semi-Annual Technical Summary Report No. 9, covering the reporting period of 1 January \neg 30 June 1966, with the addition of a system study for a direct oxidation hydrocarbon-air fuel cell system for liquid fuels. Effective 15 August 1966, Tasks III and IV, covering multi-component fuel studies and investigations with alternate acid electrolytes, were discontinued and the remaining technical and engineering effort re-directed toward the selection of an optimum direct hydrocarbon-air fuel cell system for use with liquid hydrocarbon fuel. By agreement with ERDL personnel, the report on this system study, included herein, is submitted in lieu of, and fulfills the requirement for a final report under this contract.

The objective of this program still remains to develop a technology which will facilitate the design and fabrication of practical military fuel cell power sources for operation with ambient air and conventional hydrocarbon fuels. The system study represents a preliminary analytical evaluation of the technological results achieved to date when applied to a complete fuel cell power source.

As redirected by Modification No. 4 to Contract DA44-009-AMC-479(T), the revised task definitions as of 15 August 1966 are as follows:

Task I - Optimum Direct Oxidation Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cell System for Liquid Fuels

The experimental information obtained to date on this program will be reviewed and the optimum direct hydrocarbon-air fucl cell system for use with liquid hydrocarbon fuel will be selected. This will include:

- a. Choice of electrolyte
- b. Choicc of cell operating temperature
- c. Choice of fuel vaporization or injection procedure
- d. Choice of electrolyte containment riethod
- e. Choice of electrical composition

Based on these prime choices of approach and operating conditions an analysis of the total system will be made which will include detailed heat, water, and mass balance calculations. Major components will be described in terms of the functions they perform and approximate sizings, and a preliminary conceptual layout of a 0.5 KW direct hydrocarbon fuel cell system will be prepared.

Task II - Carbon Monoxide and Hydrogen Adsorption on Platinum-Rhodium Alloys

The rate of adsorption and the steady-state coverage of carbon monoxide and hydrogen will be studied as a function of potential at 80°C in 4N sulfuric acid using multipulse potentiodynamic methods for rhodium metal and platinum-rhodium alloys.

Task III - Study of Refractory Compounds as Catalyst Supports

Refractory compounds made up of elements from Groups III and IV of the periodic table compounded with carbon will be studied to determine their suitability as substrates for electrocatalysts in fuel cell clectrodes. These materials will be processed into fuel cell clectrodes and evaluated in fuel cells in their catalyzed and uncatalyzed form.

Task IV - Alloy Electrocatalyst

Meth- is will be developed for dispersing selected alloy compositions on suitable supports, including .efractory carbides, semi-conducting oxides and carbons. Electrode fabrication procedures will be devised for these composite electrocatalysts and the experimental electrodes obtained will be cvaluated in fuel cells.

These last three tasks are essentially a continuation of Tasks I and II as described in the last summary report.

1.2 RESEARCH SUMMARY

1. 2. 1 Electrocatalyst Research

Studies with unsupported noble metals as catalysts for hydrogen-carbon monoxide anodes have been brought to a conclusion with the completion of work with platinum-rhodium and platinum-iridium. The behavior of these materials appears to parallel that of platinum-ruthenium which was found to be the superior composite catalyst among the group.

As a result of the encouraging performance obtained with platinum-ruthenium, platinumrhodium and platinum-iridium electrocatalysts with hydrogen-carbon monoxide fuel mixtures, attempts have been made to prepare active electrodes by supporting smail amounts of these metal combinations on substrates. Excellent performance has been observed with platinum-ruthenium dispersed on boron carbide and other supports with noble metai loadings of less than 3 mg/cm^2 . Somewhat inferior performance was observed with supported platinum-rhodium and platinum-iridium catalysts, but this may be due to incomplete reduction of the metal halides on the substrates.

Selected metal borides and silicides appear to be potentially useful catalyst supports which offer advantages over boron carbide.

Work is also continuing on the use of stabilized tungsten oxides as catalyst supports and promoters. Emphasis during the period has been placed upon improving corrosion resistance and reducing platinum loadings in preparation for future work with hydrocarbon fuels. Fuel cell performance data obtained during the period with hydrogen-carbon monoxide fuels and 2 to 5 mg Pt/cm² loadings were similar to previous results obtained with 34 mg Pt/cm². Admixture of such an oxide with platinum-ruthenium, alloy catalyst resulted in exceptionally good performance with a hydrogen-carbon monoxide fuel at 25°C. Parallel runs with Pt-Rh and Pt-Ir alloys admixed with the oxide did not show this effect.

Improvements have been made in electrodes prepared by spreading a platinum-boron carbide Teflon mix on a foamed nickel base which is leached out after curing to give an electrode with an interconnecting system of macropores. The leakage problem has been markedly improved. Current density at load voltages of interest has been increased by another factor of 1.6 for cathode operation. This was accomplished by incorporating a second leachable additive into the electrode. The second leachable additive preferably has an elongated particle shape so that it forms small pores branching out from the macropore system. Control of both total porosity and the ratio of large to small pore volume is possible with this method of preparation. It appears that the structure contains interface between micro and macropores distributed throughout the volume of the electrode.

A sensitive method for determining platinum in phosphorie acid by ultraviolet adsorption has been devised. It has been used to show that unreduced platinum (from diammine dinitrite decomposition) on isoron earbide dissolves slowly in phosphorie acid at elevated temperatures around 150°C. After reduction, the dissolution stops. Some loss of Pt has taken place in past experiments. Steps to minimize this loss and measure it can now be take a

Teflon-bonded tungsten carbide electroder have been investigated. They show high activity with hydrogen at 145°C. One electrode sustained 150 ma/cm² only 100 millivolts from the reversible hydrogen potential. Prepane still showed no activity on this electrode. Some of the evidence suggests that tungsten carbide acts as an electronically conducting support for a surface layer of tungsten oxide.

Hydrogen fuel cell anodes of the nobic metals show varying sensitivity to the presence of CO in the gas feed. Studies of the mixed adsorption of CO and hydrogen on microelectrodes of these metals provide insight into the mechanistic details of electrode "poisoning." While the adsorption of CO on Pt has received considerable attention, similar studies on Rh electrodes have been lacking. On the other hand, considerable background information has been provided as a result of various voltammetric studies of the adsorption of oxygen and hydrogen on Rh. The voltammetric approach followed in these studies is similar to that used in previous studies of Pt electrodes.

It was shown that CO adsorption on rhodium may be studied in a cuantitative manner (by anodic stripping) if a "multipulse potentiodynamic" sequence is used to establish reproducible initial conditions. Additionally, comparisons have been made between the amount of CO and of hydrogen atoms co-adsorbed unde, dynamic conditions.

Up to 0.5 v the CO eoverage on Rh electrodes is essentially constant over the entire range of CO concentrations and independent of whether or not CO was pre-adsorbed on the electrode at 0.12 v. Above 0.5 v, the results do depend on the concentration c^{+} CO and steady-state is somewhat sluggishly established (the mean of the value achieved with and without pre-adsorption at 0.12 v). It seems recentable to conclude that for this highly irreversible chemisorption, there is the tendency for full monclayer coverage over the entire range of concentrations and potentials, and that only the opposing rate of oxidation of CO to CO₂ tends to drive the coverage down at high potentials.

The adsorption isotherm for hydrogen on Rh retains its original form when CO adsorbs, i.e. that there does not appear to be preferential CO adsorption on sites with the highest heats for hydrogen. This may be interpreted in two different ways. One possibility is that "original" heterogeneity leads to no significant differences in the heats of adsorption of CO on various sites. A surface partially covered with CO simply acts as if the effective area has been decreased and retains the same adsorption isotherm. The alternative is that heats of adsorption do vary over the surface due to

original heterogeneity, but under conditions of mass-transport controlled adsorption there is a completely random distribution of CO molecules over the various sites. Due to immobile adsorption, there is no subsequent re-distribution of adsorbed CO according to the heats of adsorption of the surface sites. Hence, a random distribution of CO molecules is retained as is the form of the original hydrogen adsorption isotherm.

1. 2. 2 Mu'ti-Component Fuels

Work previously reported in this area has been continued and two main aspects verc covered:

1. The question of relative reactivity of various hydrocarbon additives in a multi-component mixture. Here, it was shown that aromatics, olefins, and to a certain extent, naphthenes, but not sulfur compounds that are basic in character, are preferentially adsorbed and oxidized at the conditions prevailing at the anode. An attempt was made to explain this behavior in terms of kinet!c theory.

2. The aspect of extended tests for given multi-component mixtures. This investigation revealed that a great variety of types and concentrations of additives to a paraffinic fuel can be tole-rated at anode conditions involving high potentials (of the order of 600-700 mv DC vs. H_2/H^+) and no cycling. Methylcyclopentane was shown to be a particularly interesting constituent, in that it can be tolerated at high concentrations (50 mole % or more) with no harmful effect on anode performance, as compared to pure octane. Furthermore, no terformance cycling was observed.

1. 2. 3 Investigations with Alternate Electrolytes

The previous work with carbon-supported electrocatalysts using liquid octane fuel and hydrofluoric acid electrolyte at 105°C has been extended to include higher area graphitic and non-graphitic substrates. The specific performance of the electrocatalysts increases with increasing substrate specific area up to at least 212 and 350 m²/g for the graphitic and non-graphitic substrates, respectivel¹¹ (the highest areas tested). Based on an 2¹¹erage standard catiode performance, an anode performance of 0.83 watt/g Pt at an I-R free cell voltage of 0.4V, or 0.69 watt/g Pt at 0.4V I-R included for an 1/8 inch electrolyte spacer, was achieved using a 212 m²/g graphite supported electrocatalyst at a loading of 10.3 mg Pt/cm². Further improvements are likely through the use of higher area substrates in an optimized electrode structure.

1.3 ANALYSIS OF DIRECT HYDROCARBON/AIR FUEL CELL SYSTEM FOR LIQUID FUELS

Based on the data assembled under previous contracts, certain choices of components which seemed logical from the standpoint of high performance were chosen. Phosphoric acid seemed to be the best electrolyte in spite of the anodic cycling which has been observed in single cells. Teflonbonded platinum electrodes supported on ta talum screens were chosen in spite of their limited life and high cost. Normal octane was chosen as the fuel, even though it also is expensive. The result of the system study was, therefore, a view of the upper limit in performance attainable today, even though the system is expensive.

The system analysis of a direct liquid hydrocarbon system showed the optimum components and conditions to be:

Phosphoric acid electrolyte, about 96 w/o at 150°C, with a 1/16 inch electrolyte.

Platinum electrodes of active area 10 by 15 inches.

Normal octane as the fuel and air as the oxidant.

Three times stoichiometric reaction air.

Such a system is capable of delivering 540 \cdot /atts net at an overall efficiency of 20% based on higher heating value. The system is water conservative at ambients of 85°F or lower. About 60 watts is needed for parasitic power if free convection cooling is used. Not much system weight reduction could be obtained by decreasing the electrolyte gap by half, but the weight could be reduced by 40% by designing for an operating temperature of 180°C. The high concentration of acid needed at 180°C poses a problem of electrolyte solidification upon cooling after shutdown of the unit. Free convection cooled auxiliaries were favored for system simplicity and higher efficiency. A conceptual layout of a 0, 5 KW system for the free convection configuration operating at 150°C is presented.

1.4 PERSONNEL

Research and Development Center, Schenectady, N.Y.

5

Supervision - Dr. H. A. Liebhafsky

Mr. I.F. Danzig

Dr. S. Gilman* Dr. W. T. Grubb* Mr. G. J. Jiaworth Mr. L. II. King Dr. D. W. McKee*

Mr. J. R. Morgan

Dr. L.W. Niedrach*

Dr. J. Paynter*

Mr. A.J. Scarpellino

Research and Development Laboratory, Lynn, Mass.

Supervision - Dr. H.J.R. Maget, Dr. E.Y. Weissman

Mr. P.J. Chludzinski*

Mr. J. B. Lennon*

Dr. E. Luksha*

Mr. D.C. Shah

* Principal Investigators

1.5 REPORTS AND PUBLICATIONS

1.5.1 Previous Reports

Semi-Annual Technical Summary Report No. 9, <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, 1 January - 30 June 1966, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract DA-44-009-AMC-479(T)

- 1.5.2 Publications
 - a) "Fuel Cells" Chapter in "Direct Energy Conversion," W. T. Grubb and L. W. Niedrach, ed. by G. Sutton, McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., New York, N.Y. (1966).
 - b) "Carbon Dioxide Determination During the Galvanostatic Oxidation of Adsorbed Propane Intermediates," W. T. Grubb and M. E. Lazarus, submitted.
 - c) "Electrocatalysts for Hydrogen/Carbon Monoxide Fuel Coll Anodos. I. The Platinum-Ruthenium System," L. W. Niedrach, D. W. McKee, J. Paynter and I. F. Danzig, <u>Electrochem. Tech.</u>, In Press.
 - d) "Electrocatalysts for Hydrogen/Carbon Lonoxide Fuel Cell Anodes. II. The Platinum-Rhodium and Platinum-Iridium Systems," D.W. McKee, L.W. Niedrach, J. Paynter and I.F. Danzig, <u>Electrochem. Tech.</u>, In Press.
 - c) "Interaction of Hydrogen and Carbon Monoxide on Noble Metals," D.W. McKce,
 J. Catalysis, In Press.
 - f) "Studies of Hydrocarbon Fuel Cell Anodes by the Multipulse Potentiodynamic Method II. Behavior of Methane on Conducting Porous Teflon Electrodes," L. W. Niedrach, J. Electrochem, Soc., <u>113</u>, 645 (1966).
 - g) "Fuel Cells," W. T. Grubb and L. W. Niedrach, Chapter in <u>Advanced Energy Conversion</u> <u>Systems</u>, G. Sutton, ed., McGraw-Hill, New York, 1966.
- 1. 5. 3 <u>Talks</u>
 - a) W. T. Grubb, "Voltammetry and Product Analysis at High-Area Platinum Hydrocarbon Anodes." Presented at the Philadelphia meeting of the Electrochemical Society, October 1966.
 - b) L. W. Niedrach, D. W. McKee, J. Paynter and I. F. Danzig, "Electrocatalysts for Hydrogen/Cerbon Monoxide Fuel Cell Anodes. I. The Platinum-Ruthenium System."
 Presented at the Philadelphia meeting of the Electrochemical Society, October 1966.

- c) E.J. Cairns, A.M. Breitensteln, and A.J. Scarpellino, "Kinetics of Adsorption and Surface Reaction of Propane on Platinum in Hydrofluoric Acid." Presented at the Philadelphia meeting of the Electrochemical Society, October 1966.
- d) S. Gilman, "A Multipulse Potentiodynamic Study of the Competitive Adsorption of Ethane and Chloride Ions on Platinum." Presented at the Philadelphia meeting of the Electrochemical Society, October 1966.
- e) E.J. Cairns and E.J. McInerney, "Electrocatalysts for the Direct Electrochemical Oxidation of n-Octanc in Fuel Cells." Presented at the Philadelphia meeting of the Electrochemical Society, October 1966.
- f) H.J.R. Maget, R. Roethlein, and E.Y. Weissman, "The Electrochemical Reduction of Oxygen in Controlled Pore Geometries." Presented at the Philadelphia meeting of the Electrochemical Society, October 1966.
- g) E. Y. Weissman, "Structural Studies on Porous Gas Diffusion Electrodes." Presented at the Philadelphia meeting of the Electrochemical Society, October 1966.

та. 4 г Turk Hill



2. 0 DETAILS OF INVESTIGATIONS

2, 1 FLECTROCATALYST RESEARCH

2.1.1

Alloy Electrocatalysts Compatible with H .- CO Mixtures (D. W. McKee, L. W. Niedrach, I.F. Danzig, and A.J. Scarpellino)

Work with fuel mixtures containing hydrogen-carbon monoxide has been continued. Studies of unsupported noble metals were brought to a conclusion during the period, while work with supported systems was accelerated. Boron carbide, metal borides, and metal silicides were among the supports considered.

In all of the fuel cell work, Teflon-bonded electrodes having the structure described by Niedrach and Alford (2, 1-1) were employed. These were mounted in circular cells of conventional design. A hydrogen reference electrode was employed, and all measurements were made with a Kordesch-Marko bridge.

The electrodes were normally evaluated with 5N sulfuric acid as the electrolyte at 25 and 85°C. Electrolytic hydrogen and the synthetic mixtures in Table 2. 1-1 were employed as fuels. For continuity with the earlier work, mixture C was used as the general reference fuel. Purified oxygen was used as the oxidant.

Table 2.1-1

Synthetic Fuel Mixtures

	<u>% н</u> 2	% CO	% CO ₂	% CH ₄
A	69. 6	0.2	14.9	15.3
В	71.4	1.0	14.4	14.2
с	77.8	2. 0	20	0.25
D	71. 3	5.0	12.5	12.2
Е	65, 3	9.8	12.7	12.2
F	45.6	29.9	12. 2	12.3

2. 1. 1. 1 Unsupported Noble Metal Alloy Electrocatalysts

The survey of the Pt-Rh and Pt-Ir systems was completed with investigations of the effect of CO concentration in the fuel gas on the performance and studies of CO utilization. Data showing the effect of CO content are summarized in Figure 2. 1-1 and 2. 1-2 in the form of anode vs reference

(2. 1-1) L. W. Niedrach and H. R. Alford, J. Electrochem. Soc., 112, 117 (1965).



19161

STREET, STREET





Figure 2.1-2. Effect of CO Content on Performance of Impure H_2 on Pt-Ir Electrodes at 85°C

polarization curves. As in the case of Pt-Ru (2, 1-2) the performance declines considerably as the e_{i} bon monoxide content is increased.

The fate of the carbon monoxide in the fuel was investigated under various load conditions by analyzing the effluent gases from working fuel cells with a mass spectrometer. The fuel in each case was a $l_2^{-5/7}$ CO mixture and the operating temperature was 85°C. Results obtained with typical anodes of platinum-rhodium and platinum-bridium are summarized in Table 2, 1-2 and Figure 2, 1-3. This figure which shows the apparent percent of the current carried by carbon monoxide oxidation as a function of current density, also includes similar data for platinum and platinum-ruthenium electrodes for comparison purposes. All of these data were obtained with a constant fuel flow rate that corresponded to about twice the stoichiometric rate at 250 ma, em².

In all cases, a small amount of carbon dioxide was formed at open circuit, probably through the water gis shift reaction. Because this is included in the calculation of the current carried by carbon monoxide oxidation, a minimum occurs in all of the plots of Figure 2, 1-3.

Related data showing the anode vs reference voltage plotted against the hydrogen and carbon monoxide oxidation currents for the four catalysts appear in Figure 2, 1-4. The performance curve shown for pure hydrogen is representative of that for all four electrodes.

From these data it is evident that the behavior of all of the composite catalysts is similar in that little oxidation of earbon monoxide occurs at the low polarizations encountered over a wide range of current densities. The platinum stands out in that extensive carbon monoxide oxidation begins at relatively low current densities and a steep rise in the polarization simultaneously occurs.

As noted previously (2, 1-2), the Improved performance of the composite catalysts therefore appears to relate to the availability of a larger number of sites for hydrogen oxidation with these materials. Because of this, limiting hydrogen oxidation currents are not encountered in the operating range of interest. A transition from a potential region controlled by hydrogen oxidation kinetics to one dominated by earbon monoxide oxidation kinetics is therefore avoided. That the differences in behavior do not specifically reflect the differences in the overvoltage associated with carbon monoxide oxidation is indicated by the curves for this reaction to the left in Figure 2, 1-4. The plots for the three composites fall on both sides of that for platinum, yet all three show similar improvements in performance.

(2.1-2) D. W. McKee, L. W. Niedrach, I. F. Danzig, and H. J. Feliger, Technical Summary Report No. 9, <u>Hydrocarbon Air Fuel Cells</u>, 1 January 30 June 1966, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract No. DA 44-009-AMC-479 (T), p. 2-4.



Table 2, 1-2

Behavior of Carbon Monoxide on Pt-50% Rh and Pt-51, 2% Ir Electrodes Cells AL-77 and 79

Temp. 85°C, $5\underline{N}H_2SO_4$, Fuel H_2 -5% CO, Electrode Area 11.4 cm²,

		Anode vs			ł	
Sample	1,	Ref,	CC) Oxidized	'co,	'co, ,
No.	ma/cm ²	volt	9	ec (STP)/min.	<u> </u>	ma/cm ²
	(Pt	- 50% Rh Elect	rode Fuel Flo	ow Rate = 39 cc(STP)	<u>/min.)</u>	
1	0	0.002	0.52	0.010	-	(0, 12)
2	0	. 002	. 48	.0094	-	(0.12)
3	50	. 019	. 41	. 0080	0.20	0.10
4	88	. 033	. 36	.0070	. 10	.088
5	132	. 050	. 33	.0064	. 062	. 082
6	176	087	. 31	.0060	. 043	. 076
7	219	. 115	. 29	. 0057	. 033	. 072
8	263	. 155	. 30	. 0058	. 028	. 074
9	307	. 260	1.00	. 0195	. 080	. 25
10	50	. 021	. 46	. 0090	. 23	. 12
11	20	. 010	. 43	.0084	. 52	. 10
12	8.8	. 005	. 40	.0078	1,13	, 098
13	4.4	. 000	. 40	.0078	2.24	.098
14	338	, 434	20.7	. 40	1.50	5.1
15	301	. 287	1,63	. 032	. 13	. 39
16	320	, 368	6.12	. 119	. 47	1, 50
17	176	. 065	. 32	. 0062	. 045	. 079
					n /	
	<u>(Pt</u> -	51. 2% Ir Elec	trode Fael Fl	ow Rate = $38 \text{ cc}(ST)$	P/min.	
1	0	-0.001	0,56	0.011	-	(0. 14)
2	4.4	. 000	. 62	. 012	3.4	0.15
3	8.8	.004	. 48	. 0091	1.3	. 11
4	20	.011	. 44	. 9084	. 53	. 11
5	50	. 025	. 51	. 0097	. 24	, 12
6	88	. 060	. 58	. 011	. 16	. 14
7	132	. 100	. 89	. 017	. 16	. 21
8	176	. 135	1.73	. 033	. 24	. 42
9	219	. 175	4,20	. 080	. 46	1.01
10	241	. 191	5.82	, 111	. 58	1,40
11	26 3	. 210	9,12	. 173	. 83	2.18
12	285	. 235	12.7	. 241	1.06	3. 02
13	307	. 279	20.8	. 39	1.62	5.0
14	329	. 295	21.8	. 41	1.59	5.2
15	350	. 316	24.6	. 47	1,67	5.9

2-5

**<u>5</u>24

With regard to the final sharp rise in potential at 300 ma/cm² for all of the catalysts, this appears to be associated with mass transport effects in the boundary layer at the electrode-gas interface. It has been found previously (2, 1-2) that at these relatively high current densities, fuel flow rates in excess of two times the stoichiometric rate are required to avoid these effects.

At present, it is not clear whether the additional hydrogen oxidation sites available on the composite eatalysts result from differences in surface areas, intrinsic differences in the extent of carbon monoxide advorption, or differences in morphology and structure, e.g., pore size and distribution. The data for specific surface areas would tend to preclude the former, but either of the two remaining alternatives are attractive. Additional work will be required to resolve this point. In this connection, direct measurements of adlayer composition in the presence of mixtures of CO and H_2 and relative heats of adsorption of these adsorbates on the various noble metals and alloys would be of considerable interest.

2, 1, 1, 2 Supported Alfoy Electrocatelysts

A. New mports for Electrocatalysts

One practical approach to the problem of cost reduction in fact cells is the use of a support to attenuate the noble metal electrocatalyst. The support stabilizes the active metal phase in a high degree of dispersion and thereby enhances the activity port unit weight of the costly noble metal. In fuel cell applications, catalyst supports must meet certain stringent requirements which do not arise in conventional catalysts. Thus, the substrate material must be of lober or ctriceal resistivity, of moderately high surface area and small particle size, and resistant to the corrosive environment of the hot acid electrolyte. So far, very few materials have been found which meet these requirements and only boron earbide and graphite have been found satisfactory for fuel cell use.

Preliminary studies have indicated that certain refractory metal compounds, in particular metall'e borides and silicides, are potentially useful support materials for platinum metals and alloys as fuel cell electrocatalysts. Tests are being carried out in fuel cells using hydrogen and hydrogen-carbon monoxide mixed fuels and anodes containing platinum and platinum group metal alloys dispersed on tantalum boride and tungsten, molybdenum and titanium silicides. Some typical physical properties of these materials and of boron carbide are given in Table 2, 1-3.

Table 2, 1-3

Compound	Density, g_cm ³	Knoop ikridness, kg_mm ²	Electrical Resistivity, <u>öhm-em</u>	Cost, Ş lb	Serface <u>Area, m² g</u>
TaB ₂	11, 0	2600	65×10^{-6}	-56 (high purity)	ī, ö
TISI ₂	4, 4	×70	123 x 10 ⁻⁶	10	7.2
WSI ₂	, 9,3	1050	33 x 10 ⁻⁶	10	ł
${ m MoSi}_2$	6, 2	1290	21×10^{-6}	to	
в ₄ с	2, 5	2800	variable 0.3	25	11

Physical Properties of Electrocatalyst Supports

Although high purity TaB_2 is at present considerably more expensive than commercial boron carbide, t^{h_0} silicides are much cheaper and are obtainable in pure form and of uniform particle size. Boron carbide has the disadvantage that the commercial product vertes considerably in composition and frequently contains from impurity and free graphite which affects its physical properties and performance in the fuel cell. It is also very hard and reduction in particle size to a useful level is a very tedious operation. On the other hand, very satisfactory electrodes have been made from commercial powdered silicides with no further treatment or processing.

The performance of these support materials in II_0 -CO fuel cells is discussed below.

As described in the previous section, certain metal combinations, notably Pt-Ru, Pt-Rh and Pt-Ir, have shown markedly greater tolerance for carbon monoxide in mixed H_2 -CO fuels than has been observed for platinum alone. The electrodes tested in this work all contained massive quantities of noble metal, generally around 34 mg/cm² of electrode surface. For economic and practical reasons it is, therefore, desirable to reduce this platinoid metal content without undue sacrifice of performance. A desirable loading of noble metal would be in the range of 1 to 5 mg/cm².

The metal powders previous., used have been found to possess high surface areas (exceeding $100 \text{ m}^2/\text{g}$ in some cases) and a well developed pore structure. It is, the other, possible that the observed behavior towards H₂-CO fuels arises from mass transport effects in the narrow pores of the catalysts. Such diffusion effects would not be likely to occur with supported catalysts containing only small amounts of the active metal phase and it is not, therefore, obvious that such supported catalysts will show the same tolerance for CO exhibited by the alloy blacks. Encouraging performance has, however, been observed for blnary metal catalysts, especially those containing Pt-Ru, supported

on a variety of substrates. These results have given rise to the hope that satisfactory catalysts for synthetic reformer gas can be prepared using very small loadings of platinum group metals.

B. Preparation of Supported Catalysts

Noble metals were generally deposited on the substrate materials by thermal decomposition and reduction of suitable complex salts. For example, platinum and ruthenium were co-deposited by a variety of methods, including: evaporation of mixed solutions of platinum "P" salt (Dinitritoc' ammino platinum, $Pt(NH_3)_2(NO_2)_2$) and ruthenium nitrosohydroxide, $RuNO(OH)_3$, H_2O ; platinum "P" salt and ruthenium nitrate; and platinum "P" salt and ruthenium chloride and chloroplatinic acid and rathenium chloride. A final metal composition of $Pt-20^{\frac{10}{2}}Ru$ was initially chosen as this was within the optimum composition range observed with the unsupported metal catalysts. The samples were generally reduced at 150°C in flowing hydrogen, ground and screened to 400 mesh before fabrication into electrodes by the "painted screen" technique.

Platinum and rhodium were co-deposited from mixed solutions of platinum "P" salt and ammonium rhodium nitrite, $(NH_{1/2}NaRh(NO_{2/6})$, evaporated to dryness, then reduced in hydrogen. Platinum-iridium catalysts were prepared from platinum "P" salt and irldium chloride solutions and platinum-palladium catalysts from the mixed "P" salt solutions.

Details regarding preparation of a typical supported Pt, Ru electrode are given in Appendix 4.1.2.

C. Performance of Pt-Ru Supported Catalysts

Typical data for a catalyst preparation containing 2.6 mg noble metal (N. M.)/cm² (Pt-20⁶Ru) = B₄C are shown in Figure 2.1-5. Anode vs reference data for a standard Pt black are also shown for comparison purposes. The test cells used 5N sulfuric acid at 85°C and synthetic gas mixtures containing 2, 5 and 10 % CG in H₂. All measurements were made with a Kordesch-Marko bridge In the usual way. It is evident that, in spite of the low noble metal loading, the performance of the supported catalyst is considerably improved over that of the standard platinum electrode and a Pt-B₄C electrode under the same conditions. A comparison of the performance of this electrode with a Pt-29% Ru unsupported alloy electrode is shown in Figure 2.1-6 for a 5% CO-H₂ mixture. Figure 2.1-7 shows anode vs reference data for a (Pt-20⁶⁷ Ru) = L_4 C electrode containing the very low loading of 1.6 mg N. M. / cm² which still shows an improvement over the standard Pt electrode over a wide range of eurrent density.

The performance of electrodes incorporating borides and silicides as supporting materials for the Pt/Ru are shown in Figures 2.1-8 thru 2.1-10. Uniformly good performance was found in each case, suggesting that the improved tolerance for carbon monoxide is due neither to some effect of the substrate nor to the pore structure of the catalyst but rather to some intrinsic property of ruthenium.



Figure 2.1-5. Performance of 10% (Pt - 20%Ru) - B_4C (2.6 mg N. M. /cm²) Anode with H_2 - CO Mixtures at 85°C







Q.,

Figure 2.1-7. Performance of 5% (Pt - 20%Ru) - B_4C (1.6 mg N. M. /cm²) Anode with H_2 -CO Mixtures at 85°C



Figure 2. 1-8. Performance of 10% (Pt - 20 %Ru) - TaB₂ (4.9 mg N. M. /cm²) Anode with H₂-CO Mixtures at 85°C



Figure 2. 1-9. Performance of 10% (Pt - 20%Ru) - WSi₂ (7.4 mg N. M. /cm²) Anode with H₂-CO Mixtures at 85°C





2-11

473

e'

Generally, the best catalysts were prepared from mixed solutions of Pt "P" salt and $Ru(OH)_3(NO)$ or $Ru(NO_3)_3$, chloride salts giving somewhat inferior performance with the mixed fuels but not with pure hydrogen. It is uncertain whether this reduced activity is due to poisoning of the electrode by halide or as a result of incomplete reduction of ruthenium chloride to the metal. The effect of variation in the Ru/Pt ratio on the support and the influence of initial reduction temperature on the catalyst activity is currently being studied.

D. Behavior of Other Bi-Metallic Supported Catalysts

The high level of performance towards H_2 -CO mixed fuels found for unsupported Pt-Rh and Pt-Ir blacks has not generally been maintained in supported catalysts containing these metal combinations. Typical data for a 10% (Pt-50% Rh) - TaB₂ electrode and for a 20% (Pt - 50% Ir) - B₄C electrode are shown in Figures 2.1-11 and 2.1-12. Some improvement over the behavior of pure platinum is indicated, but the electrodes were generally inferior to those containing supported Pt-Ru. This somewhat inexpected result may be due to the difficulty of finding suitable thermally unstable salts of rhodium and iridium which can be used to deposit these metals on the supports. There is evidence that the halides are not completely reduced under the conditions used. Alternatively, the improved tolerance for CO shown by the unsupported Pt-Rh and Pt-Ir blacks may be related to the surface morphology of these catalysts, rather than to some intrinsic property of Rh or Ir. Additional methods of depositing these metals on substrates are at present being investigated,

2.1.1.3 Conclusions

Platinum-rhodium and platinum-iridium catalysts, like platinum-ruthenium, show an exceptional tolerance for carbon monoxide in hydrogen. In the platinum-iridium system, maximum activity is obtained with a Pt-50% Ir catalyst. In the rhodium system, high activity is evident over the range from about 10 to 100% rhodium. The experimental results suggest that the excellent performance of all these catalysts results from the availability of a larger number of sites for preferential hydrogen adsorption and oxidation than in the case of platinum. Promotion of the oxidation of carbon monoxide does not appear to be the determining factor.

The exceptional tolerance for carbon monoxide exhibited by platinum-ruthenium blacks has been found also with supported Pt-Ru catalysts containing very low concentrations of noble metal. On the other hand, the performance of Pt-Rh and Pt-Ir combinations is reduced when these metals are deposited on a substrate. Preliminary results indicate that selected metal borides and silicides are potentially useful materials for catalyst supports.







a the

2.1.2 Metal Oxide - Noble Metal Catalysts (L. W. Niedrach, J. Haworth)

Work has been continuing on the promotion of platinum catalysts with metal oxides, particularly those based upon the lower oxides of tungsten. In the past, these oxides have shown exceptional activity in promoting the electro-oxidation of carbon monoxide and impure hydroger, on platinum when the noble metal was present in high concentration in simple admixture with the oxide. It is anticipated that these and related oxides will serve as useful supports and promoters for hydrocarbon oxidation reactions. Before this application can be evaluated it is felt desirable to develop suitable materials and procedures for the purpose. This includes improved corrosion resistance, methods of incorporating the noble metal catalyst into the structure, and methods of preparing satisfactory electrodes. For these purposes it has been considered advantageous to perform evaluation work with impure hydrogen as the fuel.

During the present reporting period, effort has been concentrated on reducing platinum loadings from 34 mg/cm² to the range of 1 to 5 mg/cm² and to examine the corrosion resistance of oxides in the chromia-tungsten oxide system. This system has proven to be the most attractive one to date. During the present period, electrode apositional variables have been examined and attention has been given to the optimum distribution of the platinum catalyst, i.e., direct support on the oxide, support on another substrate such as graphite or boron carbide, or a combination of both. In addition, a very preliminary look has been taken at the behavior of the oxides mixed with composite noble metal catalysts, Pt-Fu, Pt-Rh and Pt-Ir.

2.1.2.1 Procedures

A. Preparation of Materials

In order to obtain highly dispersed oxides as the base materials, a precipitation method was employed for their preparation. The general approach involved precipitation of hydroxides of chromium, titanium or niobium from solutions of their chlorides with ammonium hydroxide. These precipitates were wet-blended with tungstic acid, H_2WO_4 , having a surface area of about $12 \text{ m}^2/\text{gm}$. After air drying at 150°C, the mixes were reduced at 600-800°C in flowing hydrogen for periods of 4 hours. After cooling in argon the materials were ready for use. In a few cases, alternative treatmentr were employed in an effort to induce further activity. One of these variations involved the use of nitrate solutions to avoid contamination with chlorides. In another approach the starting materials, air dried chromium hydroxide-tungztic acid mixtures, were heated in air at 600°C prior to reduction at 600°C in hydrogen. Another set of chromium hydroxide-tungstic acid mixtures was cycled through a hydrogen reduction, an air oxidation and a second hydrogen reduction, ali at 600°C. It was hoped through these treatments to obtain more uniform products that would show enchanced activity.

A number of platinized oxides were also prepared for use in electrodes or in corrosion tests. One method of platinization involved treating the reduced oxide with a solution of chloroplatinic acid in water. The amount of water was limited to that required for thorough mixing with the solid. After drying at ambient temperature in a vacuum desiccator, the catalyst was treated for two hours with hydrogen at 150°C. Alternatively, samples were treated with "P" salt $(Pt(NH_3)_2(NO_2)_2)$, dried in air at 105°C for one hour, and oven dried for an additional hour at 150°C in air. This procedure was adapted from that previously described (2, 1-3) for the platinization of boron carbide.

A number of samples were platinized by treating the unreduced chromium hydroxidetungstic acid with a platinum salt solution, air drying at 105-150°C, and subsequently reducing at 600°C in hydrogen for 4 hours. Several platinum salts were used in these preparations, $H_2 PtCl_6$, $Pt(NH_3)_4 Cl_2$ and $Pt(NH_3)_2(NO_2)_2$.

Properties of the oxides used during this period are summarized in Table 4, 1-1 of Appendix 4.1. Included are preparational variables, Z-ray diffraction data, resistivities and surface areas as determined with a Perkin-Elmer-Shell Sorptometer using nitrogen as the adsorbate.

Platinized boron carbide samples were prepared by the method of Grubb (2. 1-3) using "P" salt. Platinized graphite used in some of the work was commercially available material (American Cyanamid - Improved 25% Pt on Graphite, Lot No. S-7547-49).

B. <u>Preparation of Electrodes</u>

Early work with supported catalysts indicated that the conventional composition and preparation procedures for Teflon-bonded electrodes would have to be modified. In a number of cases delamination of the electrode was encountered. Comparisons of performance for variable pressure conditions, as well as variable Teflon content, indicated that considerable effort would be required to optimize any one catalyst system and that this would not necessarily optimize another. On the other hand, early work with the "painted screen" method indicated good performance but at some possible sacrifice in structural strength.

The "painted screen" method differs from the "pasted screen" method of Grubb in a number of respects. A "catalyst paint" is prepared in a polyethylene dish with the catalyst powder in the Teflon T-30 and water mixture. This is then painted onto the clean 4C mesh platinum screen with a

 W. T. Grubb and J. G. Lucas, Technical Summary Report No. 6, <u>Hydrocarbon - Air Fuel</u> <u>Cells</u>, July 1, 1964 - December 31, 1964, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract Nos. DA44-009-ENO-4909 and DA44-009-AMC-479(T), p. 4-143.

eamel's hair brush in layers until all of the catalyst paint is used. Each coat is eured over a hotplate at 225°C and then the electrode is allowed to cool before the next coat is applied. A half-hour cure on the hotplate is followed by spraying of the Teflon film in a manner previously described. The electrode is finally cured between the platens of the 350°C het press but with no pressure or contact to the Teflon side of the electrode.

In order to obtain a good smooth paint and have a good electrode structure, finely ground powders must be used. The electrode structure has been found adequate for the current studies of catalyst behavlor. They normally are used in a cell for approximately a day with polarization data being taken for various fuel mixtures. When more of the catalyst variables have been optimized it will be necessary to optimize the electrode structure. This will be approached by varying temperature and pressure as well as the binder concentration.

C. Fuel Celi Tests

The electrodes were mounted in cells of conventional design with a hydrogen electrode serving as a reference. Tests were run at 85°C with a 5<u>N</u> sulfuric acid electrolyte. Electrolytic hydrogen and synthetic mixtures C, D and E of Table 2.1-1 were employed as fuels. The latter contained 2, 5 and 10% CO and varying amounts of CO₂ and CII₄ in hydrogen. Mixture C was used in most of the work. Purified oxygen was used as the oxidant at the counter electrode.

D. Resistivity Measurements

Resistivity measurements were made on the powdered samples with a 1 Kc General Radio bridge using a procedure previously described (2, 1-4). The powders were compressed in a 1/4 inch diameter die of heavy wall glass tubing. Brass plungers were employed and a standard torque of 5 in, -lb was applied to the serew drive for compression. It is estimated that the compression force was about 10,000 psi. The thickness of the pressed pelicts was between 0.03 and 0.10 cm. While the resistivities have little significance in an absolute sense, they do permit comparisons among sample 5 and they were found useful in following gross resistance changes that occur during corrosion tests.

E. Corrosion Tests

Apart from prellminary runs with 85% phosphoric acid at 150°C in preparation for future work with hydrocarbons, all corrosion tests were run with 5<u>N</u> sulfuric acid at 85°C. The tests were conducted under reflux in air and in an atmosphere of nitrogen containing 0.5% hydrogen. It had

(2, 1-4) W. T. Grubb, Ref. 2, 1-3, p. 5 - 4 ff.

previously been found that this nitrogen-hydrogen mixture poised the system at a potential of about 0.075 V positive with respect to pure hydrogen in the same system (2, 1-5). This potential is in the normal range of anodic polarization in a desirable fuel coil.

In most cases the oxide samples were platinized at the $9\frac{\alpha}{2}$ level prior to test. This was accomplished using chloroplatinic acid as previously described. For comparison purposes, a few samples were exposed in the absence of platinum. The exposure time was 9 days (about 216 hours).

Upon completion of the tests the samples were recovered by filteration. After washing they were dried overnight in a vacuum dessicator and their resistivities were measured. Portions were also submitted for X-ray diffraction analysis. The filtrates were analyzed for tungsten and the added metal.

2. 1. 2. 2 Chromia Stebilized Oxides with Low Platinum Loadings

A. Effect of Type of Support, Tetion-loading and Composition

It was felt that the most attractive approach to lower platinum loadings would be through the use of supports. Three directions were considered: 1) direct support on the oxide; 2) support on B_4C ; and 3) support on graphite. In the latter two cases, oxides were physically admixed with the platinized supports during electrode fabrication, just as had been previously done with platinum black catalysts.

An initial comparison of the performance of platinized boron earbide and graphite in the presence and absence of $0.1 \text{ Cr}_2\text{O}_3$. WO_x is shown in Figure 2.1-13. Detailed data concerning electrode composition are given in Tables 4.1-2A thru 4.1-2C of Appendix 4.1. While it is clear that the addition of the oxide results in beneficial effects in both cases, it was not certain that optimum electrode compositions were employed, particularly with regard to the Teflon content.

In a subsequent series of experiments, the Teflon content was varied with both types of electrodes. Performance data showing the effect of Teflon content are summarized in Figures 2.1-14 and 2.1-15. It is clear that the range of Teflon contents permissible with the two supports are quite different, and that the most satisfactory performances were obtained with the boron carbide support. In the latter case, a fairly wide range of Teflon contents may be used without great veries ons in performances. Amounts less than 10% seem to result in some additional improvement in performance

(2, 1-5) L. W. Niedrach, Technical Summary Report No. 9 <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, January 1 – June 30, 1966, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract No. DA44-009-AMC-479(T) p. 2-29.

2 - 17



-

CHARLEND FOR THE PARTY OF THE PARTY.

Figure 2. 1-13. Effect of 0. 1 $\operatorname{Cr}_2 \operatorname{C}_3$. WO_X On Performance of Platinized Graphite and B₄C Electrodes



Figure 2. 1-14. Effect of Teflon Content on Performance of Platinized Graphite - $0.1 \operatorname{Cr}_2O_3 \cdot WO_X$ Electrodes

2-18

)/# 6 . #.,


10101

÷

1

à

. 5 a. 127

Figure 2.1-15. Effect of Teflon Content on Performance of Platinized $B_4C = 0.8 Cr_2 O_3 WO_x$ Electrode







but this range has not been investigated further to date, partly because it is suspected that the struetures may be lacking in strength.

An additional variable that was examined with the boron carbide support was the effect of the amount of added oxide. The data summarized in Figure 2, 1-16 indicate that a 1:1 ratio of the carbide to the oxide is in a satisfactory range in that moderate deviations in either direction cause little change in electrode performance.

Additional exploratory work also indicated that platinization of the oxides themselves is feasible. As illustrated by the data in Figures 2, 1-17 and 2, 1-18, these materials perform satisfactorily in admixture with unplatinized B_4^{C} or when used alone. It is felt that with some of the oxides having higher electrical resistivities, performance may benefit from adding a conductor such as boron carbide to the electrode structure. This p. int has not been fully resolved.

On the basis of this work, boron carbide was adapted as a standard material for use as a support or as a conducting diluent in preparing electrodes for the work that follows. A ratio of 0, 310 gm oxide to 0, 310 gm boron carbide was also used and Teflon contents in the range of 8 to 13% (0, 06 to 0, 10 ec of T-30 suspension) were used. Since it is possible that optimum electrode composition may change from oxide to oxide, further investigation of these variables will be in order at a later date when other system variables have been settled.

B. Effect of Cr:W Ratio in the Oxide

While the previous work with the chromia-stabilized oxides and high platinum ioadings indicated some decline in activity with increasing chromium content (2, 1-5), the superior corrosion resistance of the high-chromia oxides justified additional work with these materials. The performance of a series of catalysts covering the range from 0, 1 to 1, 0 Cr_2O_3 per WO_X has been re-examined in admixture with platinized boron carbide (5 mg Pt/cm² of electrode area). Data are summarized in Figure 2, 1-19. A small increase in anode polarization again appears to be evident as the chromia content is increased. The penalty associated with chromia additions is not considered severe, however, in the light of the corrosion data given in Section 2, 1, 2, 5.

In part, the effect of increasing the chromia content may result from the associated increases in electrical resistivity of the oxide. It is anticipated that this may be circumvented by suitable "doping" of the material.

On the basis of these results, most of the subsequent work was performed with oxides containing 0.8 to 1.0 Cr_2O_3 per WO_x.



164 4 6 d -

ŧ

Figure 2.1-17. Comparison of $B_4C = 0.8 Cr_2O_3 \cdot WO_x$ Electrodes with Different Platinum Distributions



Figure 2.1-18. Comparison of Platinized Cr_2O_3 WO_x Electrode with Platinized $B_4C - Cr_2O_3$ WO_x Electrode

2-21

n

÷



The state of the s

Figure 2.1-19. Effect of Chromium Content on Performance of Platinized B_4C - Mixed Oxide Electrodes



Figure 2.1-20. Effect of Reduction Temperature On Performance of Cr_2O_3 . WO_x in Electrodes with Platinized B₄C

С.

C. Effect of Conditions of Preparation of Oxides

Two variables were examined, the reduction temperature and the effect of pre-treatments prior to a final reduction step at 600°C. For the former, reduction temperatures of 600°C, 700°C and 800°C were used. It was hoped that the higher temper tures would result in improved conductivity and, therefore, improved performance. The results with 0.8 $\operatorname{Cr}_2 \operatorname{O}_3$, WO_x and 1.0 $\operatorname{Cr}_2 \operatorname{O}_3$, WO_x in Figures 2.1-20 and 2.1-21 indicate only minor effects from changing the reduction temperature. The meaning is somewhat obscured, however, because of the compositional changes that occurred in the catalysts with temperature (see Table 4.1-1 of Appendix 4.1). Because of this, the effect of reduction temperature will be investigated further by performing the reductions in controlled atmospheres. In this way the final product will be determined by equilibrium rather than kinetic factors.

With regard to pretreatments, two were considered. In the first, the starting mixture, air dried precipitated chromium hydroxide mixed with tungstic acid, was heated in air at 000° C prior to reduction at 000° C in hydrogen. In the second, the starting mixture was reduced in hydrogen at 000° C, re-oxidized in air at 000° C, and then reduced in hydrogen at 000° C. While slight differences in appearance, X-ray diffraction pattern, and surface area resulted from these treatments, no significant improvements in performance resulted from these more involved preparation procedures. The materials were tested only with gross loadings of platinum black (34 mg/cm² of electrode area) and the data are summarized in Table 4, 1-2C of Appendix 4, 1.

D. Effect of Platinum Loading

A few attempts were made to reduce the platinum loadings below 5 mg/cm² of electrode area. In most of these experiments the platinum was supported on boron carbide with the amount adjusted to give the desired electrode loading while retaining the amount of platinized carbide constant at 0.31 gm. Performance data obtained with fuels containing 2 and 5% carbon monoxide are summarized in Figures 2.1-22 and 2.1-23. An additional performance curve obtained with an electrode containing platinized Cr_2O_3 . WO_x at the 3 mg Pt/cm² level but in the absence of boron earbide was presented in Figure 2.1-18.

While the results showed the anticipated trend towards poorer performance with lower platinum loadings, it is felt that loadings below 5 mg Pt/cm^2 are within grasp as other variables are optimized.

E. Alternative Routes to Plaunized Oxides

As an alternative to platinization of the reduced oxides, some attention was given to introducing the platinum before the reduction step. Three different salts were employed, $H_2PtCl_{e^*}$



ALTER CALLING STATES STATES

Figure 2.1-21. Effect of Reduction Temperature on Performance of 0.8 Cr_2O_3 ·WO_x in Electrodes with Platinized B₄C



Figure 2.1-22. Effect of Platinum Loading On Performance of Platinized $B_4C - Cr_2O_3$ WO_x Electrodes



ł

17

Figure 2. 1-23. Effect of Platinum Loading On Performance of Platinized $B_4C \sim 0.8 Cr_2O_3 \cdot WO_X$ Electrodes





Z



Figure 2.1-25. Effect of Platinization Procedure On Performance of Platinized 0.8 Cr₂O₃·WO_x - B₄C Electrodes

No. - 148

Ξ.

ana-thread





 $Pt(NH_3)_4Cl_2$, and $Pt(NH_3)_2(NO_2)_2$. The preparation procedure is previously described. The product materials were then admixed with platinized boron carbide and Teflon in the usual fashion to prepare electrodes. Performance data obtained with these materials are summarized in Figures 2, 1-24 and 2, 1-25. Considerable scatter is evident and no definite trends are evident. In no ease, however, did the performance exceed that previously obtained with earlier electrodes.

2.1.2.3 Chromia Stabilized Oxides with Noble Metal Alloy Catalysts

In view of the improved performance of impure hydrogen with noble metal alloys as well as turgsten oxides, it was felt desirable to determine whether additional advantages would accrue from combining the two types of catalysts. Preliminary experiments have been performed with such combinations, and results are summarized in Figure 2.1-26. In this figure anodic polarization curves are shown for electrodes containing the following catalyst loadings:

No. 902 34 mg/cm² Pt black + 3.0 mg/cm² 0.1 $\text{Cr}_2\text{O}_3 \cdot \text{WO}_x$ No. 937 34 mg/cm² Pt-29 w/o Ru alloy + 3.0 mg/cm² 0.1 $\text{Cr}_2\text{O}_3 \cdot \text{WO}_x$ No. 938 34 mg/cm² Pt-51 w/o Ir alloy + 3.0 mg/cm² 0.1 $\text{Cr}_2\text{O}_3 \cdot \text{WO}_x$ No. 950 34 mg/cm² Pt-50 w/o Rh alloy + 3.0 mg/cm² 0.1 $\text{Cr}_2\text{O}_3 \cdot \text{WO}_x$

In all cases, 3.0 mg/cm² Teflon was used as a binder and 1.6 mg/cm² Teflon was used in the hydrophobic film. The electrolyte was $5N H_2SO_4$. The fuel mixture consisted of $78\% H_2$, 2.0% CO, 20% CO₂, and 0.25% CH₄. Operation was at 25 and 85°C.

At the relatively high catalyst loadings employed, little advantage was seen for the alloys over straight platinum at 85°C. At room temperature the system based upon the platinum-ruthenium alloy combined with the tungsten oxide performed unusually well.

Additional work is planned in this area, although emphasis will be placed on studies of oxides combined with supported alloys.

2. 1. 2. 4 Other Stabilizing Agents

In the previous report some work was discussed in which other oxides than chromia were employed in an effort to stabilize the tungsten oxide. This work was continued with titanium oxide and niobium oxide.

In the case of titanium oxide, the previous work was extended to $3\text{TiO}_2 \cdot \text{WO}_x$ and pure TiO_2 . (Previously, $0.1\text{TiO}_2 \cdot \text{WO}_x$, $0.3 \text{TiO}_2 \cdot \text{WO}_x$ and $\text{TiO}_2 \cdot \text{WO}_x$ had been examined.) In addition to pure TiO_2 , two other oxides were prepared in which the conductors B_4C and graphite were mixed with the titanium hydroxide precipitate before the material was fired in hydrogen at 650°C. The three samples

were prepared without tungsten because it had previously been fe t that the earlier data may have indicated some activity from hydrogen-fired titania itself. All of the results obtained with titaniumcontaining oxides are summarized in Figure 2.1-27 and in Table 4.1-2 of Appendix 4.1. While the performance of $\text{TiO}_2 \cdot \text{WO}_x$ is slightly better than that of the chromia stabilized oxides, this material has not been found as resistant to corrosion. None of the tungsten-free oxides showed promise. Further work with titania-containing systems is not planned.

Performance data for the niobium oxide system are summarized in Figure 2.1-28. These materials all show moderate performance, however, preliminary corrosion data are not encouraging. A decision with regard to further work with this system will await the results of corrosion tests which have not yet been completed.

2, 1, 2, 5 Corrosion Stud

Results showing the resistance of chromia stabilized oxides towards corrosion by $5\underline{N} H_2SO_4$ at 85°C are summarized in Table 4, 1-3 of Appendix 4. 1 and Figures 2, 1-29 and 2, 1-30. Interpretation is complicated by several factors: 1) much of the attack results in the formation of insoluble WO_3 and its hydrates; 2) the resistivity of the starting materials, both platinized and unplatinized, changes as the chromium content is varied; 3) the resistivity measurements on the pressed powders are not highl" precise; and 4) surface areas have not yet been determined for all of the powders. Nevertheless, a definite indication of increasing corrosion resistance with increasing chromium content is evident. This trend is supported most strongly by the resistivity data for the samples corroded in air, the X-ray diffraction results for the corroded samples, and the analytical data for chromium in the filtrates.

The results of the chromium analyses in Figure 2. 1-29 indicate that the potential of the system is quite important and that attack is markedly greater at high potentials (under air), particularly at low chromium contents. In Figure 2. 1-29 the data are plotted in two ways: 1) in terms of total chromium lost to the filtrate from a 500 mg sample; and 2) in terms of the percent of the oxide attacked. The latter data were derived on the assumption that attack of the tungsten and chromium in the samples was directly proportional to the amounts of the two metals in the oxides. The fact that the attack in the air and nitrogen (hydrogen) atmospheres is essentially identical for the 1:1 oxide $(Cr_2O_3 \cdot WO_x)$ is particularly significant since it indicates that overpolarization of an electrode containing this oxide should not lead to degradation. Similarly, such an electrode could be exposed to air without concern.

It is clear from the data of Figure 2.1-30 that serious changes in the properties of the WO_2 and low chromium oxide catalysts result even from the relatively small attack that occurs at low



+

and a

in entra

7

Figure 2. 1-27. Effect of Titanium Content On Performance of Titania Stabilized Oxides Mixed with Platinum Black





2-29

-10

đ



Figure 2. 1-29. Corrosion Losses from Chromia Stabilized Oxides in $5 \underline{M} + 2SO_4$ at 85°C.

÷.,

2-30

.

potentials under the nitrogen-hydrogen atmosphere. Much smaller effects are observed as the chromium content increases, and the resistivity data are in agreement with the chromium analyses in indicating that little attack of the 1:1 oxide occ rs even in air.

Related tests have also been run with TiO_2 and $\text{Nb}_2\text{O}_{\varepsilon}$ "stabilized" tungsten oxides. The results tend to confirm observations of the previous report (2.4-5) that chromium oxide is the most effective additive. Additional tests are required, however, to confirm that the resistance of catalytic activity towards decay parallels the corrosion resistance. It would also appear desirable to investigate means of reducing the electronic resistivity of this oxide since this may well lead to improved catalyst performance.

2.1.2.6 Conclusions

Considerable success has been realized in improving the corrosion mesistance of tungsten oxide towards acid electrolytes. Chromium additions have been most effective in this regard, and reduced oxides containing Cr: W ratios close to one appear to be most desirable. Such oxides appear to be promising catalyst supports. When used in conjunction with impure hydrogen fuels containing carbon monoxide, they effectively promote anodic oxidation with 2 to 5 mg/cm² platinum loadings. The systems are reaching a stage of development that should warrant investigations with hydroearbons.

2.1.3 Activated Boron Carbide Electrodes (W. T. Grubb, L. H. King)

2.1.3.1 Platinum-Activated Boron Carbide Electrodes on Hydrocarbon Fuels

A. Ceneral

During the present reporting period some studies have been carried out concerning the effect of conditions on the reduction of platinum supported in oxidized form on boron carbide. It has been found desirable in the past to prepare electrodes from electrocatalyst containing unreduced platinum and reduce it in situ after the finished electrode has been assembled into a fuel cell. An especially convenient way to do this is to reduce the electrode with a hydrocarbon fuel. Propane is especially convenient as both a reducing agent and a test fuel for evaluating the effectiveness of an electrode or electrocatalyst variation being tested. In the current experiments, it has been found that the heat *reatment of the electrode during its fabrication had a pronounced effect upon the rate of reduction of the platinum by propane at a given temperature. In cases in which the reduction of platinum was very slow as 150°C, it was found that the oxidized form of platinum dissolved slowly in the phosphoric acid and could be detected in the effluent from the cell by taking the ultraviolet spectrum of a complex.

of platinum formed by the addition of hydrochloric acid to the solution. It became evident that the amount of platinum dissolved before reduction could ¹ present a significant fraction of the total platinum present. Subsequent to this, analysis for platinum in a nitric acid leach employed during the preparation of the electrode revealed that some platinum was also present in this solution. It is evident that significant losses of platinum have occurred in the past with electrodes of this type. Future work will aim to prevent such loss. In particular, conditions which promote rapid reduction of the supported platinum "oxide" at as low a temperature as possible (to reduce dissolution before reduction) are indicated. No platinum dissolution was detected after reduction. In addition to this, elimination of the nitric acid leaching step in preparing electrodes will be evaluated. Some of the conclusions reached in this part of the work will be valuable for future experiments using other refractory carbides as supports.

B. Effect of Temperature upon Reduction of Supported Platinum "Oxide"

Three similar electrodes were prepared using standard procedures previously described (2.1-6), but without nickel foam and not pressed. These were heated in assembled fuel cells to a given temperature and propane supplied to the anode (oxygen to the standard platinum black cathode). Cell voltage was monitored continuously with a recording voltmeter and at selected times with a potentiometer. The cell was kept on open circuit. A typical voltage vs time plot is shown in Figure 2.1-31. The reduction was considered complete at a cell voltage of 0.6V. The time for reduction varied from about 5 hours at 100°C down to about 2 minutes at 150°C, see Table 2.1-4.

Table 2.1-4

Electrode Reduction Times and Temperatures

Reduction Temperature, *C	Reduction Time, min.	Platinum Loading, mg/cm ²
100	308	4.8
125	67	4.2
150	2. 0	5.2

(2,1-6) W. T. Grubb and L. H. King, Technical Summary Report No. 9, <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract No. DA44-009-AMC-479(T) p. 2-1 (1966).

C. Effect of Electrode Heat Treatment Variable Upon the Reduction of Supported Platinum "Oxide" by Propane

In the preparation of Teflon-bonded platinum black or other electrodes it is standard practice to heat the electrode containing uncured Tefl a binder and electrocatalyst to about 250°C to decompose wetting agent present in the T-30 suspension used as a source of Teflon (2, 1-7). This is normally carried out on a hot plate starting from room temperature and holding at 250°C for about 30 minutes including heat-up time. Such a method vias also used in preparing platinum-activated boron carbide electrodes. It was discovered that electrodes prepared during this and the previous reporting period were actually receiving the above heat treatment at 260°C due to calibration changes in the hot plate used. This was not thought to be significa if since the electrode was subsequently cured at 350°C. However, it has been found that this has a distinct ellect upon the rate of reduction of the electrode with propane.

Using the method described above, the reduction times of different electrodes by propane gas at 145°C were determined. These values are given in Table 2, 1-5 for electrodes with platinum loading of $5 \pm 0.5 \text{ mg/cm}^2$.

. · <u>111</u>		
Electrode (5 ± 0, 5 mg Pt	bi Hulleding Times with a pane	
Heat Treaiment Temp, *C	in Hodaction Time at 145*C, min.	
260 (Electrode No. 427)	120	
280		
305	.≍ +3	

The results of Table 2. 1- σ indicate that \Rightarrow platinum diaminine dinitrite salt used to activate the boron carbide substrate in these electrodes is $\Rightarrow d$ oncerted into a form readily reduced to platinum when the electrode is heat-treated at 260° t for 30° minutes followed by a short, 2 minute cure at 350°C. Tightly complexed residual oxides \Rightarrow altrogen may remain at 260°C and be removed only at higher temperature. The slow reduction r light her of itself be a disadvantage, except that such slow reduction adds to the aforementioned pl \Rightarrow immediate outproblem.

D. Analysis for Platinum in Cell Ele Arolyie Effluent

The first electrode of Table 2, 1-5 sper $\int some two hours at 145^{\circ}C$ in unreduced condition with electrolyte flowing through the cell. It was not fi that the effluent electrolyte was slightly colored and began to emerge water-white after reduct on had taken place. Suspecting that the form of

(2, 1-7) L. W. Niedrach and H. R. Alford, J. Electrochem, Soc. 112 117 (1965).

달~(É)1

platinum which was hard to reduce also might be that which was dissolving in the phosphoric acid electrolyte, a portion of the electrolyte was measured for ultraviolet absorption and no bands were found. Addition of some HCl to this sample caused little change. However, after standing for 72 hours at room temperature, bands developed which were identical to those obtained from a dilute solution of chloroplatinic acid in concentrated phosphoric acid. The electrolyte collected after reduction showed no absorption bands under the same conditions.

The ultraviolet spectra were obtained with a Perkin-Elmer Model 202 Spectrometer using automatic scanning from 200 to 390 millimicrons. The other conditions and solutions compositions are indicated in Figures 2. 1-32 thru 2. 1-34. Figure 2. 1-32 shows the absorption spectrum of chloroplatinic acid. Figure 2. 1-33 is the ab orption spectrum of the electrolyte from the first cell of Table 2. 1-5 after the addition of HCl and after 72 hours standing at room temperature. Figure 2. 1-34 shows the absorption spectrum of a second sample of the cell electrolyte (with HCl added) after several different time intervals at room temperature. The slow formation of the absorbing complex is characteristic of a number of noble metal complexes (2. 1-8). The zero has been shifted in all curves by 0. 2 absorbance units and is actually near 0 at 390 millimicrons. The effluent from the cell contains platinum in an amount which can be detected by ultraviolet absorption of the chloride complex and car be estimated quantitatively by comparison with known solutions of chloroplatinic acid in phosphoric acid-hydrochloric acid solvent of the same composition. For quantitative estimation of the platinum concentration, the absorption peak at about 260 millimicrons is the more reproducible and useful of the two peaks and is found to obey Beer's law as shown in Figure 2. 1-35.

Quantitative estimate of a few milligrams of Pt per liter of phosphoric acid is easily made. However, it was found that below about 0.3 mg/l the band is lost in a background absorption and estimates below this point cannot be made by the method described.

The first electrode of Table 2.1-5 was found to have lost 18.5 mg of platinum out of a total of 102 mg, which lowered its platinum loading from 5.7₂ to 4.6₈ mg/cm².

As noted earlier, electrodes during preparation are leached in 50 vol % nitric acid for 1 hour at about 100°C. An analysis of this leachant for platinum by a different method (see Appendix 4. 2-1) showed that from an electrode similar to the above, 8.5 mg of platinum were removed during this step (in 130 ml of leachant solution). This loss of platinum will further reduce the platinum loading of electrode No. 427 to 4.2₀ mg/cm².

(2.1-8) L.E. Orgel "An Introduction to Transition Metal Chemistry," John Wiley and Sons, Inc. New York, N.Y., 1960, pp. 103 ff.

(2.1-9) H. Taube, Chem. Rev. 50 69 (1952).



Figure 2.1-31. Reduction of Platinum "Oxide" on Boron Carbide by Propane at 100°C as Measured by Propane-Oxygen Cell Voltage vs Time





气. 月二日







Figure 2.1-34. Ultraviolet Absorption of Electrolyte from Cell No. 427. Curve O, Before HCl addition; Curve 1, Just After HCl Addition; Curve 2, After 4 Hr; Curve 3, After 12 Hr; Curve 4, After 23 Hr; Curve 5, After 31 Hr; and Curve 6, After 59 Hr.

 $\nabla^{\mathbf{1}}_{\mathbf{A}}$



Figure 2.1-35. Beer's Law Plot for H₂PtCl₆ in Concentrated H₃PO₄ with Excess HCl Present, Using Peak Absorbance Near 260 Millimicrons.



Figure 2.1-36. Performance Curve for Platinized Boron Carbide Anode No. 427 Against Standard Pt Black Cathode with Propane Fuel, Oxygen Oxidant, Electrolyte 14.7 M H₃PO₄ at 150°C.

è

E. Performance of Electrodes on Propane

Electrode No. 427 was operated on propane fuel at 150°C using 14.7 M H_3PO_4 as electrolyte. The performance curves are shown in Figure 2.1-36. This electrode is considerably short of the performance of the best electrodes at its calculated platinum loading of 5.7₂ mg/cm² but it is not bad based on the corrected value of 4.2₀ mg/cm².

F. Conclusions

It has been sometimes thought that the slowest practicable rate of reduction of supported platinum "oxide" will give the best results. This will not be true at elevated temperatures unless the particular oxidized form of platinum is resistant to dissolution in the electrolyte. In the present case it has been found that platinum daimmine dinitrite should be decomposed at a temperature greater than 260°C and preferably at about 280°C in order to facilitate its reduction. The less completely decomposed platinum diammine dinitrite is probably more readily dissolved in phosphoric acid at elevated temperatures. In the future, electrodes of this type will be heat-treated at 280°C or higher and their reduction with propane in the cell will be carried out during the heat-up period beginning at about 100°C. The effectiveness of these measures will be monitored by platinum analysis of the electrolyte from the cell.

2. 1. 3. 2 Platinum-Activated Boron Carbide Electrodes of the Leached Nickel Foam (V.C.) Structure

A. General

The previous work has been extended during this period with the exploration of new variables and some optimization of those already identified as important. Air performance at room temperature and at 80°C with 6N sulfuric acid electrolyte was taken as the standard performance test for these electrodes. The method of preparation gives a high degree of porosity concentrated in the large pores formed from leaching out the strands of nickel foam and leaving active material between these large pores which is probably rather highly compressed and not very porous.

The concept of producing an electrode in which small pores branch out from the large pores has been explored. This has been achieved by incorporating a second leachable additive into the mixture of activated boron carbide and Teflon. This technique gave a considerable improvement in air cathode performance (relative to platinum loading). The better of two second additives tried was the one which has elongated, needle-like particles and would be expected to form a larger number of small pore-large pore intersections. An electrode of this structure produced the highest ratio of performance to platinum loading so far achieved. In wet-proofed electrodes, electrolyte will tend to fill the large pores preferentially while the small tributary pores remain filled with gas. A

particularly large amount of electrocatalyst surface covered with electrolyte film and still possessing good access to the bulk gas phase and low electrolytic resistance to the bulk electrolyte phase is probably achieved by this structure. It may be considered a dual porosity electrode in which the interface between large and small pores wanders throughout the volume of the electrode in three dimensions.

B. Electrodes Prepared Using a Second Leachable Additive

The most effective electrode structure produced in the current series was achieved by combining two approaches already described:

- 1. The leaching out of nickel foam of extremely high porosity to form a pore system of interconnected tunnels in a Teflon-bonded electrode.
- 2. The simultaneous leaching out of a particulate additive to form smaller pores intersecting with these larger pores.

In compilation of Appendix 4. 2. 2, electrodes No. 436, 444, 446, 461, and 473 were prepared in this manner using either a silica gel, Cab-O-Sil*, or a calcium metasilicate, Cab-O-Lite*, as the second leachable additive. The current density at 0.7 volt iR-free obtained from a cell with a standard platinum black anode supplied with pure hydrogen and the test cathode supplied with ambient air (no forced circulation) was used as an index of performance. This was divided by the platinum loading of the cathode \rightarrow get a performance ludex in ma/mg of Pt. By this criterion, the two 5% Cab-O-Lite electrodes produced 68. 6 and 72. 6 ma/mg, a 20% Cab-O-Lite electrode 50. 4 ma/mg, a 5. 6% Cab-O-Sil electrode 58. 5, and a 5% Cab-O-Sil electrode 33. ma/mg. The best electrode without a second leachable additive produced 59. $_{A}$ ma/mg.

The best electrode prepared with Cab-O-Lite as the second leachable additive exceeded the best of all the other electrodes of the leached nickel foam structure by about 22%. The better of the two Cab-O-Lite electrodes gave the performance shown in Figure 2.1-37. For comparison, a standard platinum black cathode of hlgh (45.5 mg/cm²) platinum loading is included. By the criterion of ma/mg at 0.7 volt the new electrode is about 9 times as good as the standard platinum black electrode. The new electrode achieved a much higher limiting current and was better than the Pt black electrode at current densities above approximately 450 ma/cm².

It is somewhat surprising that the total $\frac{6}{6}$ void volume of the dual porosity electrodes is not generally greater than the leached nickel foam electrodes. This is caused either by the approximate nature of $\frac{6}{6}$ void vc¹ une calculation or the fact that the total porosity really is about the same but has

^{*} Godfrey L. Cabot Co., Boston, Mass.







ΩÅ.

a more favorable distribution with respect to pore size.

Optimization of the percentage of particulate additive needs to be carried out, in addition to testing of the dual porosity electrodes on air and other reactants at high temperature.

It was planned to test electrode No. 473 on hydrocarbons and air at elevated temperature in phosphoric acid. Unfortunately, it was damaged in removal from the low temperature air housing. A similar electrode will be evaluated in the future.

In general, the many variables involved in preparation of these electrodes have been adjusted to more nearly optimal values and performance has improved considerably. The ma/mg at 0.7 volt had an average value during the current reporting period of 44. $_5$ compared with 30. $_3$ during the preceding period. The last electrode of this period produced 72. $_6$ ma/mg.

The shape of particles in the second leachable additive appears to be important. The more effective calcium metasilicate additive possesses clongated particles as shown in Figure 2.1-38. The less effective silica additive has rather spherical particles as shown in Figure 2.1-39. (These are agglomerates of much smaller particles of silica.) On geometri , grounds, it might be expected that the elongated particles would produce more small pores intersecting the tunnel-like macropores.

Some simple computer programs were written for the purpose of calculating percent void volume and other electrode parameters of leached nickel foam electrodes. This eliminated many straightforward but tedious calculations especially the void volume calculation. Appendix 4.2.2 contains a table of all the electrodes prepared and tested during the last two contract periods and includes a complete set of parameters, some of which were obtained from the computer calculations not included in the previous report.

C. Leakage Prevention with Leached Nickel Foam Electrodes

This electrode structure is easier to make than a standard pasted electrode with no nickel foam pressed into the current collecting screen because the screen-foam aggregate presents a means of holding the activated boron carbide-aqueous Teflon dispersion slurry in a uniform layer. For this reason, adventitious pinheles as such can be all but eliminated. However, the pores formed by removal of the nickel foam can be large enough to leak under some head of electrolyte. That is, a good electrode tends to be entirely leak-tight, but electrolyte may begin to go through the larg st of the macropores under a head of only a few centimeters. Some means of overcoming this defect is needed.



Figure 2.1-38. Particles of Calcium Metasilicate (Cab-O-Lite) Photographed at 58X



 r_{i}

Figure 2.1-39. Particles of Silica Gel (Cab-O-Sil) Photographed at 58X

Some initial experiments have been performed which show promise that a hydrophilic layer next to the electrode on the electrolyte side strongly reduces the leaking tendency. To test this idea, a Millipore* filter of 0.3 micron average pore diameter was mounted in a cell and held against the electrolyte side of the electrode by a platinum screen.

This had the effect of increasing the electrolyte head which could be tolerated without leakage and, in fact, at an electrolyte head of a few contimeters this barrier completely stopped the electrolyte from leaking through the electrode. This test was performed on an electrode which in the absence of the Millipore filter was one of the leakiest electrodes made in this series.

It is, of course, undesirable to have to hold a barrier against the electrode mechanically. It is planned to investigate some bonded barrier layers.

D. Conclusions

Activated boron carbide electrodes continue to show promise for both anode and cathode structures of low platinum content. Great interest attaches to determining if the improvements in heat treatment and reduction procedures can be combined with the structure improvements to yield better phosphoric acid cathodes and better performance on hydrocarbon fuels than previously observed. The attainment of controlled porosity of nickel foam removal has produced much more consistent limiting current behavior than previously observed in air electrodes. The use of two or even more leachable additives to obtain a controlled ratio of small and large pores promises to improve the utilization of electrocatalyst surface. This could lead to even better performance at current densities of practical interest. An interface between tunnel-like macropores and microporous walls that is distributed throughout the volume of the electrode may also be interesting from the point of view of theories of electrode structure.

2.1.4 Electrodes with Other Carbides (W. T. Grubb, L. H. King)

2. 1. 4. 1 Tungsten Carbide Electrodes

During the current period some initial experiments have been performed with Teflon-bonded, tungsten carbide electrodes containing no precious metal.

Pasted, unpressed electrodes were prepared with the finest available tungsten carbide powder (from :!. Starek, Goslar, Germany). In two electrodes, the percentage of Teflon binder (based on total weight of electrocatalyst) was 9.5% (electrode No. 1) and 6.7% (electrode No. 2). These electrodes were given the same heat treatment and cure used for boron carbide electrodes.

^{*} Millipore Filter Corp., Bedford, Mass.

Figure 2. 1-40 shows performance curves in 14.7 M H₃PO₄ at 145°C for these electrodes in a complete fuel cell with a standard platinum black electrode as the oxygen cathode in the cell. Electrode No. 1 was first operated on propane and then on argon and gave currents which were identical in the two cases and indicated that the electrode was self-oxidizing in the potential region of 0.6 volt anode overvoltage (vs a reversible hydrogen electrode in the same electrolyte). Gas chromatographic analysis showed that CO₂ was produced in these experiments. This is thought to be due to the oxidation of the tungsten carbide and not to propane oxidation, since it was present with argon as the "fuel." This has been discussed in the preceding report (2, 1-6). It is assumed that tungsten exide forms on the surface and may be in a porous, high-area state due to the manner in which it is formed from tungsten cartide with carbon dioxide evolution taking place. Hydrogen was briefly evolved from electrode No. 1 and it was then placed under load with hydrogen as fuel. Its performance was surprisingly good under these conditions. A current density of 150 ma/cm² was maintained at steady state with an overvoltage of only about 60 millivolts against reversible hydrogen electrode. The curves in Figure 2.1-40 all show the cell voltages free of ohmic loss. The resistance of the ceil with electrode No. 1 was somewhat higher, 0.24 ohm vs. 0.13 ohm, than usually observed with this cell geometry (3/8 inch, 0.95 cm electrolyte gap). This also suggests the formation of an oxide film on the electrode. Electrode No. 2 was run first on hydrogen as shown in Figure 2.1-40. Its performance was lower and the cell resistance was normal (0.13 ohm). This suggests that the anodizing of electrode No. 1 made it more effective for subsequent hydrogen oxidation, Electrode No. 1 was subsequently operated at room temperature and it produced a current density of 100 ma/cm² at an overvoltage (vs reversible hydrogen) of 0.28 volt. The performance curve is shown in Figure 2, 1-41.

The anodizing of metal carbides seems to present an interesting method for forming metal oxides on an electronically conducting support. It is possible that such materials with or without the addition of noble metals to the surface layer will have more interesting electrocatalytic properties. At present, of course, the long-term stability of such materials is entirely unevaluated and there is no evidence to suggest hydrocarbon activity at present. The high activity of the anodized surface of tungsten carbide for hydrogen at elevated temperature is encouraging. It appears to exceed the activity of anodized titanium carbide (2.1-7), although neither system has been optimized and the titanium carbide was of somewhat lower surface area.

(2, 1-7) L. W. Niedrach and H. R. Alford, J. Electrochem. Soc. 112 117 (1965).



1.79.7

Figure 2.1-40. iR-Free Performance of Cells with Standard Pt Black Cathode, and Various Anodes with 14.7 M H₃PO₄ Electrolyte at 145°C



Figure 2.1-41. Performance of the Cell of Figure 2.1-40 Curve 2 on Hydrogen at Room Temperature 6 N H₂SO₄ Electrolyte

2. 1. 4. 2 Conclusions

Further exploratory work with transition metal carbides and mixed carbides is indicated in hope of finding some hydrocarbon activity. Failing this, minimal amounts of platinum activation may be especially effective if the carbide substrate or a surface oxide layer on it can take over some of the functions of the noble metal electrocatalyst. If the surface oxide layer is indeed porous due to CO_2 evolution accompanying its formation, then platinum in the pores would find itself in very intimate contact with both the oxide and the conducting carbide underneath it. Such systems should have an excellent chance of displaying synergistic effects if they exist.

2.1.5 <u>Multipulse Potentiodynamic Studies of the Adsorption of Carbon Monoxide and Hydrogen on</u> <u>Rhodium Electrodes</u> (S. Gilman)

2. 1. 5.1 Carbon Monoxide Adsorption

A. Introduction

Hydrogen fuel cell anodes of the noble metals show varying sensitivity to the presence of CO in the gas feed (2.1-10). Studies of the mixed adsorption of CO and hydrogen on microelectrodes of these metals may provide insight into the mechanistic details of electrode "poisoning."

While the adsorption of CO on Pt has received some attention in past years (2.1-11 thru 2.1-14), similar studies on Rh electrodes have been lacking. On the other hand, considerable background information has been provided as a result of various voltammetric studies (2.1-15 thru 2.1-20) of the adsorption of oxygen and hydrogen on Rh. The latter work has been reviewed by

- (2.1-10) D. W. McKee, L. W. Niedrach, I. F. Danzig and H. I. Zeliger, Technical Summary Report No. 9, <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, 1 January - 30 June 1966, ARPA Order No. 247, Contracts Nos. DA-44-009-ENG-4909, DA-44-009-AMC-479(T), DA-44-ENG-4853, p 2-4.
- (2.1-11) S. Gilman, J. Phys. Chem. 66, 2657 (1962); 67, 78 (1963).
- (2.1-12) T.B. Warner and S. Schuldiner, J. Electrochem. Soc., 111, 992 (1964).
- (2, 1-13) R.A. Munson, J. Electroanalyt. Chem. 5, 292 (1963).
- (2.1-14) S. B. Brummer and J. I. Ford, J. Phys. Chem. 69, 1355 (1965).
- (2.1-15) M. Breiter, C. Knorr and M. Volkl, Z. Elektrochem. 59, 681 (1955).
- (2.1-16) M. Breiter, H.Kammermaier and C. Knorr, Z. Elektrochem. 60, 119, 454 (1956)
- (2.1-17) K. Franke, C. Knorr, and M. Breiter, <u>Z. Elektron am. 63</u>, 226 (1959).
- (2.1-18) W. Bold, and M. Breiter, Z. Elektrochem. 64, 897 (1960).
- (2.1-19) F. Will and C. Knorr, Z. Elektrochem. 64, 258, 270 (1960).
- (2.1-20) M. Breiter, K. Hoffmann and C. Knorr, Z. Elektrochem. 61, 1168 (1957).

Frumkin (2.1-21). The voltammetric approach followed in this and the subsequent section is similar to that used in previous studies of Pt electrodes (2, 1-11).

B. Experimental

1. Chemicals

The electrolyte (4N H_2SO_4) was prepared using triply-distilled water and Vycor-distilled sulfuric acid. Reagent grade CO and argon were used. Mixtures of these gases were prepared, bottled and analyzed by the Mathieson Co.

2. Electrodes

Platinized Pt counter and reference electron 3 were employed. The Rh test electrode was not cound to vary gradually in its properties in a manner which might be ascribed to adsorption of Pt ions.

The test electrode was fabricated of 99.98% pure Rh wire, 0.030 inch in diameter. The wire was degreased, etched in aqua region ashed and dried. It was the resistively heated almost to the melting point in an ultra-bigh vacuum system. This served to anneal the sample and to cleanse the surface further (actual evaporation of metal was observed). The treated wire was then sealed into a soft ground glass joint (using a hydrogen flame) so as to expose 0.08 cm² of surface. The electrode was given a light final etch in aqua regia. Electrodes prepared using the flom support instead of glass had similar electrochemical properties, but exhibited a time-variation in properties characteristic of impurity adsorption (see below). This must be ascribed to slow out-diffusion of organic materials from the Teflon.

The charge, S_{H}^{Q} , corresponding to saturation coverage of the electrode with hydrogen atoms, was 0.25 mcoul/cm². If it is assumed that all of the low index crystal faces are equally represented on the surface and that one hydrogen atom is adsorbed per Rh atom, then a perfectly smooth surface would correspond to $S_{H}^{Q} = 0.22 \text{ mcoul/cm}^2$. On that basis, the "roughness factor" (ratio of true to geometric area) of the electrode was 1.16.

3. Test Vessel and Electronic Equipment

The electronic equipment was described previously (2.1-11). The test vessel was made of pyrex glass, had separate compartments for counter, test, and reference electrodes and was

Engineering, "Vol. 3, Edited by P. Delahay, Interscience Publishers, Inc., N.Y., 1963.

^(2.1-21) A. N. Frumkin, Chapter 5 in "Advances in Electrochemistry and Electrochemical

equipped with a glass paddle-stirrer (water-sealed). All electrodes were attached with ground glass joints and the cell was air-tight.

4. <u>Electrolyte Prctreatment</u>

After "activating" the tett electrode, its properties were found to vary in a manner characteristic of contamination by impurities dissolved in the electrolyte (see below). The following procedure was employed in purifying the solution.

A "cleanup" electrode was fabricated of platinized platinum screen. This electrode had a geometric area of 40 cm² and a surface area of 4000 cm² based on H-deposition measurements. The electrode was degreased, cleaned in hot chromic acid solution and rinsed in distilled water. It was then immersed in 200 cc of 4 N H_2 SO₄ contained in a beaker which also contained a large smooth Pt counter electrode. The cleanup electrode was made cathodic under current flow of 1 ampere for 2 minutes to desorb foreign anions. A similar anodic current was passed to desorb cations and organic materials and to generate the "oxygen" film which prevents re-adsorption of materials. After changing the electrolyte, the cycle was repeated. The passivated electrode was then withdrawn from the beaker and transferred to a 200 cc volume of electrolyte in the test vessel. The electrode was then reduced at 0.4 v, and the potential was held at 0.7 v for 4 hours with the solution stirred vigorously with the paddle-stirrer (360 rpm). Under these circumstances, the electrode "getters" dons and organic substances from the solution. The electrode was then withdrawn from the test vessel without previously interrupting the circuit.

5. Experimental Conditions

All measurements were made at 80°C in a thermostatted air bath. All potentials are referred to a reversible hydrogen electrode in 4 N H_2 SO₄. All currents and changes are reported on the basis of the geometric area of the electrode.

- C. Procedures and Results
 - 1. Steady-State Oxidation of CO and H

A slow (0.04 v/sec) linear anodic sweep was applied to obtain the current-voltage curves of Figure 2.1-42. To renew the surface of either the Pt or Rh electrode before each measurement, the electrode was held at 0 v for 10 sec, at 1.8 v for 2 sec, at 1.2 v for 10 sec, and at 0 v for 0.1 sec. The electrolyte, saturated with either CO or H_2 , was paddle-stirred (360 rpm) throughout the experiment.



i. T

Figure 2. 1-42. Current-Voltage Curves Measured for Smooth Pt and Rh Electrodes During Application of a Linear Anodic Sweep of Speed 0.04 v/sec. The electrolyte was saturated with the gas at 80°C and the solution was paddle-stirred (360 rpm) throughout the experiment. The hatched areas correspond to regions of oscillation of the current.









Figure 2.1-44. Current-Time Transients Measured During Reduction of a Rh Electrode. The traces were measured during step F of the potential sequence of Figure 2.1-43.



2. Preparation of a Reproducible Rhodium Surface

A clean Rh surface will become contaminated in the course of an experiment, either due to intentional exposure to an adsorbate (70) or to unintentional adsorption of solution impurities. It is possible to renew the surface in situ by the application of potential pulses, as in the case of Pt electrodes (2, 1-11). The sequence of Figure 2, 1-43 was found to serve this purpose. In this sequence, the electrode is normally held at 0 v in a thoroughly reduced state (Step A). At this low potential, the coverage with aniors will be small, but the coverage with organic materials may be quite extensive. At the high potential of Step B, even large coverages with organic materials are eliminated. However, the anodic film is so extensive as to require very lengthy (more than 1 sec) reduction for its removal. To cope with this problem, the surface was reduced at 0.12 v (Step D). This results in only moderate coverage with refractory organic materials, readily eliminated during application of the moderately high potential of Step E. The moderate anodic film of Step E suffices to prevent adsorption or reaction of CO and other organic materials while the solution adjacent to the electrode is equilibrated with the bulk. For the experiment of Figure 2, 1-43, a 90 sec period was allowed (during Step E) for the solution to become quiescent so as to limit subsequent transport of the adsorbate to ordinary diffusion. This quiescent period was eliminated when solution agitation was required during the subsequent adsorption step. In Step F the electrode was reduced, exposing a clean and reproducible surface to the electrolyte. The state of the surface could be explored by means of the linear anodic sweep, Step G.

1

Trace 1 cf. F'sure 2. 1-43a was obtained for $T_F = 20$ msec to 10 sec (unstirred solution) and corresponds mainly to exygen adsorption on the clean Rh surface. Trace 2 was obtained after $T_F = 100$ bec and is indicative of some change in state of the surface. This change becomes more pronounced with stirring (trace .) suggesting transport-controlled adsorption of impurities from the solution. After pro-electrolysis of the solution (see section 2. 1. 5. 1. B), the trace characteristic of the clean surface was obtained up to $T_F = 100$ sec, even in the stirred solution (see trace 3 of Figure 2. 1-43b). A slight impurity effect is still noted for $T_F = 1009$ sec (trace 4 of Figure 2. 1-43b). After $T_F = 0.1$ msec, trace 1 of Figure 2. 1-43b was recorded, and is indicative of grossily incomplete reduction of the surface. The reduction is still somewhat incomplete after $T_F = 1$ msec (trace 2 of Figure 2. 1-43b). The reduction process was also followed through measurement of the corresponding current in Figure 2. 1-44. In Figure 2. 1-44a it is seen that the reduction appears largely complete within 2 msec, but more sensitive measurement (Figure 2. 1-44b) reveals that the process is not entirely complete for $T_F > 20$ msec.

After the electrode is reduced at 0.12 v (for more than 0.1 sec) the potential may be raised to some higher value before applying the linear anodic sweep. For potentials up to 0.5 v, applied

for up to 100 sec, the trace recorded was the portion anticipated from trace 1 of Figure 2.1-43a. For potentials of 0.6 v or more, the subsequent sweep currents cuminished rapidly with time corresponding to irreversible formation of the anodic film.

3. Measurement of CO Coverage by Anodic Stripping

In the experiment of Figure 2.1-45, traces "1" were measured in argon-saturated electrolyte for $T_F = 10$ msec to 100 sec, and corresponds mainly to oxidation of the clean Rh surface. Traces "2" were obtained in electrolyte saturated with a CO - argon mixture, and correspond mainly to combined oxidation of adsorbed CO and of the Rh surface. Using Figure 2.1-45d as an example and assuming that the charges corresponding to capacitive charging and to oxidation of the surface are equal for traces 1 and 2, we have the following relationship:

$$\Delta Q = Q_2 - Q_1 \simeq Q_{CO} + Q_{CO}' \tag{1}$$

where

 Q_2

is the area under trace 2 from points a to b

Q₁ is the area under trace 1 from points a to b

Q_{CO} is the charge corresponding to anodic stripping of adsorbed CO present before application of sweep G

Q_{CO}ⁱ is the charge corresponding to oxidation of CO arriving at the surface by diffusion, after initiation of sweep G.

For the low concentration of CO and the relatively high sweep speeds involved here, $Q_{CO} \gg Q_{CO}'$, and if the other assumptions are correct then:

∆Q≃Q_{CO}

(2)

If Q_{CO} corresponds to complete oxidation of CO to CO₂, then ΔQ should be constant over the entire range of sweep speeds. This was tested (or v = 4 to 1000 v/sec, and the results appear in Figure 2.1-46. It is apparent from this figure that results exhibit a scatter amounting to only 3% average deviation from the mean value.

4. Measurement of the Rate of Adsorption of CO

The rate of accumulation of CO may be measured by anodic stripping by means of the sequence of Figure 2.1-47. In addition to the pretreatment steps discussed in Section 2 above, steps F and H were introduced to eliminate surface oxygen or hydrogen whenever potential U was considerably removed from 0.12 v. The adsorption of CO occurred itom ε quiescent solution. Figure 2.1-47a and b correspond to increasing coverage of the surface with CO at 0.12 v. Values of Q_{CO} determined from such traces are plotted against the square root of the adsorption time in Figure 2.1-48. Similar experiments were performed to determine maximum CO coverages from



01111111

Figure 2.1-45. Determination of CO Adsorbed on Rh by Anodic Stripping. Adsorption occurred during step F and the traces were recorded during the linear anodic sweep (step G) of the sequence. Traces "1" were recorded after $T_F = 0.1$ sec in argon-

saturated 4 N H_2SO_4 . Traces "2" were recorded in electrolyte saturated with a gas mixture of 10% CO + 90% argon after adsorption for $T_{ads} = 100$ sec.

a,


19. - 5. e











BOD V/ SEC

WITH PADDLE - STIRRING (360 RPM





Figure 2. 1-47 as CO adsorbed from a solution of $4 \text{ N} \text{ H}_2 \text{SO}_4$

saturated with pure CO. Fractional and absolute coverages of the electrode are directly proportional to Q_{CO} .

2 56

stirred solution (Figure 2. 1-49). Traces corresponding to partial CO-coverage at various potentials are compared in Figure 2. 1-50.

D. Discussion

A. Steady-State Oxidation of CO and Hydrogen

The polarization curves of Figure 2.1-42 are useful in establishing the approximate range over which the adsorbates of interest will be unstable with respect to oxidation. Results for the more extensive postulied Pt surface are included for comparison.

With hydrogen as depolarizer, a plateau current is observed for both Pt and Rh (Figure 2.1-42a and b), and corresponds to mass transport limitation. For Pt, the current declines above the potential (0.8 v) at which surface oxidation becomes significant. For Rh, the decline comes at a lower potential (0.6 v), corresponding to the tendency for the Rh surface to undergo oxidation at correspondingly lower potential (see trace 1 of Figure 2.1-43a). For both metals, the passivation effect becomes complete within a few tenths of a volt after the initial decline.

The curve obtained for CO on Pt (Figure 2. 1-42d) is similar to that previously measured in perchloric acid (2. 1-11). It differs markedly from the corresponding curve for H_2 on Pt, in that there is no plateau current, and in that the passivation occurs more gradually after the initial onset. A plateau current is lacking because by the time the overvoltage is sufficiently high for the sluggish oxidation of CO, oxidation of the surface has already begun, leading to passivation. The result is a peak current which is close to the expected mass transport limit. Because the surface is not completely passivated against CO oxidation until high potentials are impressed, a potential of 1. 8 v has generally been used (2. 1-11) in surface pretreatments when rates of adsorption were studied.

The curve for CO on Rh (Figure 2.1-42c) is similar to that for CO on Pt. One significant difference is that lower overvoltages are required for initial oxidation of CO. The initial passivation of the surface comes at a potential which is somewhat disproportionately low than for Pt. The balancing effect of these two opposite tendencies is a peak current for CO or dation which is somewhat smaller for Rh than for Pt. Another significant difference between CO oxidation on Rh and Pt is that the passivation effect on Rh is complete at significantly lower potentials than on Pt. The practical result is that surface pretreatment at only 1.2 v is satisfactory for holding off CO adsorption and oxidation in the studies of CO adsorption rates.



B. Preparation of a Reproducible Rh Surface

eriments similar to those of Figure 2.1-43 reveal that a reproducible surface state may be generated by anodic pulsing and that this state is stable over a period of time (up to 1000 sec) consistent with electrolytc purity. Judging from such traces, the surface state may be reproduced to within a few percent, over many months of experimentation, and many hundred cycles of pretreatment and measurement. An occasional electrode was found to undergo abrupt change in electrode area, and this is believed to have resulted from accidental exposure to a high-speed periodic triangular potential-time signal.

C. Measurement of CO Adsorption Rates

From Figure 2.1-48, it is evident that the plot of Q_{CO} vs. $T_{ads}^{1/2}$ is linear with approximately 80% of full coverage is achieved. Assuming conditions of linear diffusion for the short time involved, and assuming that the adsorption of CO is diffusion-controlled, then the relationship between charge and time must be (2.1-22):

$$\frac{d Q_{CO}}{d T_{ads}} = I_{ads} = \frac{nF D^{1/2} C}{T_{ads}^{1/2} \pi^{1/2}}$$
(3)

or the integral expression:

$$Q_{CO} = \left(\frac{2 n F D^{1/2} C}{\pi^{1/2}}\right) T_{ads}^{1/2}$$
(4)

n = number of electrons required to oxidize and desorb one molecule of adsorbed CO.

- F = Faraday constant
- **D** = Diffusion coefficient of CO
- C = Concentration of dissolved CO

The solubility of CO in water at 80°C is 7.62 cc/1 (S. T. P.). (See 2.1-23.) Making appropriate correction for the vapor pressure of 4 N sulfuric acid, and assuming the solubility of CO in the acid is the same as in pure water, $C = 2.02 \times 10^{-7}$ moles/cm³. Assuming that n = 2 and that the slope of the linear portion of Figure 2.1-48 (0.48 mcoul/sec^{1/2}) is equal to the term in brackets of Equation 4, we deduce a value of D of 1.08 x 10^{-4} cm/sec. This is larger than the value deduced

(2.1-22) H.A. Laitinen and I.M. Kolthoff, J. Am. Chem. Soc. 61, 3344 (1939).

(2.1-23) "Solubility of Inorganic and Organic Compounds," Vol. 1, part 1, edited by H. Stephen and T. Stephen, Macmillen Co., N.Y., 1963, p. 364.

(2.1-11) at 30°C by a factor of 3.5. A factor of 2 ($2\%/^{\circ}$ C) is reasonable (2.1-22) for the increased temperature. The additional factor of 1.7 could derive from an error of only 30% in estimating the solubility of CO. The evidence therefore strongly suggests that the adsorption of CO is initially diffusion-controlled at potentials lower than 0.5 v and that the method for determining the surface coverage is quantitative. At 0.5 v, according to Figure 2.1-48, the adsorption rate is smaller than that at lower potentials. This is probably due to the onset of signific t CO oxidation at that potential.

D. Structure of the Adsorbed Layer

For an organic substance it is always possible that the parent molecule will undergo a major change in composition (bond-splitting, oxidation, or reduction) in the course of adsorption. Such a process might be expected to depend on the potential. To obtain an indication of structural variation of the adlayer, the sweeps for anodic stripping were compared at approximately equal values of the charge, Q_{CO} . From Figure 2.1-50, we see that the traces are almost identical for potentials extending from - 0.2 to 0.5 v, suggesting constant structure of the adlayer over this wide potential range. For CO on Pt, the res its were similar, except that some variation was suggested at very low (-0.2v) potential (2.1-24).

E. Steady-State Surface Coverage of Rhodium with CO

The absolute coverage, Γ_{CO} (moles/cm²), of the surface is related to the charge Q_{CO} by:

$$Q_{\rm CO} = 2F \Gamma_{\rm CO}$$
(5)

Values of Q_{CO} were determined over a wide range of potentials and of CO concentrations (Figure 2.1-49). Up to 0.5 v the coverage is essentially constant over the entire range of CO concentrations, and independent of whether or not CO was pre-adscribed on the electrode at 0.12 v. Above 0.5 v, the results do depend on the concentration of CO and steady-state is somewhat sluggishly established (the mean of the value achieved with and without pre-adsorption at 0.12 v). It seems reasonable to conclude that for this highly irreversible chemisorption, there is the tendency for full monolayer coverage over the entire range of concentrations and potentials, and that only the opposing rate of oxidation of CO to CO₂ tends to drive the coverage down at high potentials.

(2.1-24) S. Gilman, J. Phys. Chem. 70, 2880 (1966).

2, 1, 5, 2 Mixed Adsorption of CO and Hydrogen

A. Introduction

In Section 2.1.5.1, it was shown that CO adsorption on rhodium may be studied in a quantitative manner (by anodic stripping) if a "multipulse potentiodynamic" sequence is used to establish reproducible initial conditions. In this section, comparisons will be made between the amount of CO and of hydrogen atoms co-adsorbed under dynamic conditions.

B. Experimental

Chemicals and equipment were as previously described. The rhodium test electrode was similar to the one used previously. It had a geometric area of 0.08 cm², and the charge, ${}_{S}Q_{H}$, corresponding to "saturation coverage" with hydrogen atoms had the value 0.23 m coul/cm². The "roughness factor 'for this electrode was 1.06 if ${}_{S}Q_{H} = 0.22 \text{ mcoul/cm}^2$ is taken to correspond to R. F. = 1.0. As previously all values of current and of charge will be reported on the basis of the geometric area. All measurements were made at 80°C in a 4 N H_oSO_A electrolyte.

C. Procedures and Results

1. Determination of CO Coverage Through Anodic Stripping

In a solution saturated with CO, the adsorption occurs within 1 second. Under those conditions, the adsorption is diffusion-controlled until approximately 80% complete and exhibits a linear dependence on the square root of time. A linear dependence on the first power of time may be obtained by using a more dilute solution of CO and by agitating the solution, as in the experiments of Figure 2.1-51. The results of Figure 2.1-51 show the desired dependence of surface coverage (proportional to Q_{CO}) upon adsorption time for potentials less than 0.5 v, and for coverages less than approximately 0.8.

2. Determination of "Saturation Coverage" with Hydrogen Atoms

The sequence of Figure 2.1-52 was used in determining the charge, S_{H}^{Q} , corresponding to saturation coverage of the surface with hydrogen atoms. As previously discussed, steps A-E of the potential sequence serve to cleanse the surface and to protect it against adsorption of or reaction with a dissolved adsorbate. During step F, the protective "oxygen" film is reduced and dissolved materials may adsorb. Step G quickly eliminates adsorbed hydrogen. In step H, hydrogen atoms are deposited on the surface and the corresponding cathodic current is recorded. Trace 1 of Figure 2.1-52 was obtained in argon-saturated electrolyte. The current which flows up to point b corresponds mainly to deposition of atomic hydrogen, but also contains contributions to







occurred during step F, from 4 N $\text{H}_2^{\text{SO}_4}$ saturated with a gas

Figure 2.1-51. Adsorption of CO on Rh from a Stirred Solution. The .. dsorp-

tion occurred during step G of the potential sequence. Values of Q_{CO} were determined by application of sweep I. Rulative

Ş

2

Tods - SEC 20

0

V 20-- U V 00 - U U = 012 V U = 04 V U = 05 V

0 D

0.2

r = 900 v / SEC

100 50

.0 Oco - MCOUL / cm2

ŝ

and absolute coverages are directly proportional to Q_{CO} . The

4 N $H_{2}SO_{4}$ solution was saturated with a gas mixture of 1% CO,

99 % argon at 80°C. The paddle-stirrer was rotated at 360 rpm.

charging of the ionic double layer and to evolution of molecular hydrogen gas. Past point b the current becomes steeply cathodic cor "sponding to a sharply increasing rate of H_2 evolution. For Rh, the rates of hydrogen atom deposition and H_2 evolution are significantly sluggish so that the potentials of the esthodic trace have no simple thermodynamic significance at this sweep speed.

Assuming that the hydrogen atom monolayer is approximately complete before gas evolution becomes very rapid, we may attempt to derive the corresponding charge by means of the construction lines on trace 1 of Figure 2.1-52. The vertical line ac was drawn from the point of intersection of tangents be and de. The line ac was drawn as an extrapolation of the capacitive current measured above 0.1 v. The area aeeba is taken as ${}_{S}Q_{H}$. Keeping v constant at 60 v/sec, ${}_{S}Q_{H}$ was measured for values of T_{ads} from 0.01 to 100 sec in the argon-satur: de solution. This charge was found to maintain the average value of 0.23 mcoul/cm² with an average deviation of 3%. At much longer values of T_{ads} or when the solution was agitated, ${}_{S}Q_{H}$ was found to decrease. This corresponded to the adsorption of impurities, as already detected through anodic stripping. Keeping T_{ads} constant at 1 sec, and varying v from 10 to 1000 v/sec, ${}_{S}Q_{H}$ was again found to remain constant with an average deviation of 5%.

The effect of CO adsorption upon ${}_{S}Q_{II}$ was examined in traces 2 - 6 of Figure 2.1-52. As in previous studies (2.1-25), it was ascertained that the cathodic sweep caused no desorption of adsorbed CO. For the CO - containing solution, values of ${}_{S}Q_{H}$ are plotted against the adsorption time in Figure 2.1-53.

3. Determination of Hydrogen Atom Coverage by Anodic Stripping

At any potential, the charge corresponding to transient hydrogen-coverage may be determined by application of a linear anodic sweep. In the sequence of Figure 2.1-54, steps A-E serve as electrode pre-treatment. The surface is quickly reduced at potential U (step F) and hydrogen atoms are quickly adsorbed on the clean surface. There is subsequent slow desorption of hydrogen as CO adsorbs from solution. The amount of hydrogen present at any moment may be determined by applying sweep H and recording the resulting current-time transient. Trace 1a was obtained for $T_{ads} = 0.1$ sec and corresponds to the essentially clean surface. The initial current maximum corresponds mainly to the stripping of adsorbed hydrogen. After the minimum, the current rises again as both the surface and adsorbed CO are oxidized. To correct for the non-hydrogen currents, trace 1b was measured after applying step G which quickly eliminates adsorbed hydrogen. Trace 1b was back-extrapolated (c-a) to correct for capacitive charging and the resulting closed area

(2.1-25) S. Gilman, J. Phys. Chem. 67, 78 (1963).



Figure 2. 1-53. Variation of Saturation Coverage with Hydrogen as CO is Adsorbed on Rh. The saturation coverage with hydrogen is proportional to the charge, S_{H}^{Q} , and was determined from traces such as those of Figure 2, 1-52. The accumulation of CO is given by Figu. $\ge 2.1-51$. The 4 N H₂SO₄ solution was

saturated with a gas mixture of 1% CO, 99% argon at 80°C, and paddle-stirred (360 rpm) throughout the experiment.



THEFT.

> During the Adsorption of CO. The adsorption occurred during step F from 4 N H_2SO_4 saturated with a gas mixture of 1% CO, 99% argon which was paddle-stirred (360 rpm) throughout the

experiment. Traces "a" were measured during step H without application of step G, and include a current corresponding to stripping of ads cbed hydrogen. Traces "b" were obtained during sweep H, after previously removing hydrogen during step G. Traces "b" serve as a correction for currents other than those corresponding to stripping of hydrogen.



abca defines Q_H . Traces 2 and 3 show how Q_H may also be determined when the surface is largely covered with CO. Values of Q_H were obtained both in the CO - free (Figure 2.1-55) and CO - containing solution (Figure 2.1-56).

D. Disc._sion

1. Structure of the CO Adlayer

From Figure 2.1-51, the absolute coverage, Γ_{CO} , under transient conditions may be obtained:

$$Q_{\rm CO} = 2F \Gamma_{\rm CO} \tag{6}$$

It is seen that the rate of adsorption (which is mass transport controlled up to large coverages) is independent of potential over the entire range of hydrogen adsorption (below 0.15 v). Decreased rates of adsorption above 0.5 v are probably entirely due to the competitive oxidation of CO to CO_2 . Under the same conditions, Figure 2.1-53 reveals how ${}_{S}Q_{H}$ varies with CO adsorptic v. For ${}_{S}Q_{H}$, the following relationship may hold:

$${}_{S}\mathbf{Q}_{H} = \mathbf{F}_{S} \mathbf{\Gamma}_{H} = \mathbf{F}\left(\!\!\begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{S} \mathbf{\Gamma}_{H} \!\end{pmatrix}_{O} - \mathbf{m} \mathbf{\Gamma}_{CO}\!\!\right)$$
 (7)

where S_{H}^{Γ} = "saturation coverage" (moles/cm²) of the surface with H atoms in t'e presence of some adsorbed CO

$$_{S}\Gamma_{H}$$
 "saturation coverage" of the surface with H atoms in the absence of adsorbed CO.

m = number of hydrogen sites obscured per molecule of CO adsorbed.

Dividing the slope of the plots of Figures 2. 1-53 and 2. 1-51 gives the value of m at any instantaneous value of the coverage with CO. With some scatter, m was found to have a constant value of 0. 9 until the coverage is almost complete. This implies that one adsorbed CO molecule occupies one hydrogen adsorption site. This situation contrasts with that found for Pt at lower temperature (2. 1-25). In the latter case, the results suggested that each adsorbed CO molecule occupies two " 'ogen adsorption sites ("bridged" structure) in the earlier stage of adsorption, and only one site ("inear" structure) in the later stage of adsorption. These analyses assume, of course, that CO and hydrogen adsorption sites are similar, and that hydrogen adsorption is blocked in only a direct manner by the formation of the surface-organic bond.



Figure 2.1-55. Hydrogen Coverage on a Clean Rh Electrode. The hydrogen coverage is proportional to the charge Q_H, measured in the argon-saturated electrolyte by the method of Figure 2.1-54.



Figure 2.1-56. Hydrogen Coverage on an Rh Electrode Partially Covered with CO. The charge Q_H was measured by means of the procedures

of Figure 2.1-54 while CO was adsorbing from $4N H_2SO_4$ sat-

urated with a gas mixture oi 1% CO, 99% argon (80°C), paddicstirred at 360 rpm. The accumulation of CO under the same circumstances is given by Figure 2.1-51.

2. The Hydrogen Adsorption Isotherm and CO Adsorption

The plot of Figure 2.1-55, obtained in argon-saturated electrolyte, is similar to that obta ed by Will and Knorr (2.1-26) and by Bold and Breiter (2.1-27) by integration of slow periodic triangular potential-time sweeps. The abscissa of Figure 2.1-55 might alternatively be represented in units of the logarithm of hydrogen partial pressure (through the Nernst equation) and hence the plot is an experimental adsorption isotherm. Such isotherms have been studied in detail by Bold and Breiter (2.1-27), who found that the apparent heat of adsorption of hydrogen decreases irregular's with increasing hydrogen coverage. Such an observation suggests heterogeneity of the surface. Such heterogeneity may generally be "original" (corresponding to such structural variations as imperfections, crystal orientations, etc.) c^{-} "induced" (caused by the very act of adsorption).

Figure 2.1-56 shows that the hydrogen coverage at any fixed potential drops off linearly with increasing time (and hence increasing coverage with CO, according to Figure 2.1-51) until high coverages are achieved. The empirical relationship followed for coverages less than approximately 80% of maximum is:

$$\theta_{\rm H} = \left(\theta_{\rm H}\right)_{\rm o} \left(1 - \frac{\theta_{\rm co}}{1.4}\right) \tag{8}$$

where: $\theta_{\rm H}$ = fractional coverage with hydrogen atoms = $Q_{\rm H}/_{\rm S}Q_{\rm H}$

 $\begin{pmatrix} \theta \\ H \end{pmatrix}_{O} = \theta_{H}$ in absence of adsorbed CO

 θ_{co} = fractional coverage with $CO = Q_{co}/(Q_{co})_{maximum}$ The significance of the factor 1.4 in Equation 8 is that (according to the extrapolations of Figure 2.1-56) θ_{H} would drop to zero only if the surface coverage with CO exceeded by 40% the maximum amount observed in Figure 2.1-51. From Equation 8 it must be concluded that the adsorption isotherm retains its original form when CO adsorbs, i.e., that there does not appear to be preferential CO adsorption on sites with the highest haves for hydrogen adsorption. This may be interpreted in two different ways. One possibility is that "original" heterogeneity leads to no significant differences in the heats of adsorption of CO on various sites. A surface partially covered with CO rimply acts as if the effective area had been decreased and retains the same adsorption isotherm. The

tlternative is that heats of adsorption do vary over the surface due to original heterogeneity, but

(2, 1-26) F. Will and C. Knorr, Z. Elektrochem. 64, 258, 270 (1960).

19. 24. **1**9.

^(2.1-27) W. Bold and M. Breiter, Z. Elektrochem. 64, 897 (1960).

under conditions of mass transport controlled adsorption there is a completely random distribution of CO molecules over the various sites. Due to immobile adsorption, there is no subsequent re-distribution of adsorbed CO according to the heats of adsorption of the surface sites. Hence, a random distribution of CO molecules is retained as is the form of the original hydrogen adsorption isotherm.

E. Conclusions

Polarization curves for oxidation of hydrogen and CO on Rh are similar to those for Pt. One major difference is that the passivation of CO and H_2 oxidation occurs at lower potentials for Rh than for Pt, corresponding to earlier oxidation of the Rh surface. A second major difference is that the oxidation of CO occurs at lower potentials on Rh than on Pt. The difference in reactivities for CO on the two metals might be understood through careful study of the adsorption of CO and of the oxidation of adsorbed CO. The adsorption process for Rh was examined in this work.

The adsorption of CO on Rh was found to be diffusion controlled from -0.12 to 0.5 volt. Over the same range of potentials, the steady-state coverage with CO (based on hydrogencodeposition measurements) was found to correspond approximately to a monolayer of singly-bound CO molecules. At higher potentials the coverage decreases (presumably due to competitive oxidation of CO to CO₂) and the coverage depends on the partial pressure of CO. Over the entire range of potentials, the evidence suggests that the structure of the CO adlayer remains constant.

At any potential in the hydrogen region, the (reversible) fractional hydrogen coverage decreased linearly with increase of CO coverage. This dependence does not vary with potential. This implies that CO does not adsorb preferentially on "active sites" under the (diffusioncontrolled) conditions of these experiments.

2.2 MULTI-COMPONENT FUELS

2.2.1 Extended Life Tests With Multi-Component Fuels (Unsupported Platinum Anodes) (J. Lennon, E. Luksha, E. Weissman)

In the previous report (2. 2-1) certain long-term aspects of the electrochemical oxidation of multi-component fuels were presented. It was found that several additives, up to 5 mole % naphthenes, 5 mole % olefins, and 1 mole % aromatics do not affect anode performance on a cumulative detrimental basis for extended periods of operation. It was also shown that the overall decrease in anode performance can be intolerably severe if the abovementioned concentrations are exceeded.

This report represents a completion of the work on multi-component fuels started during the previous report period (2.2-1). The concentrations of the "unreactive" components studied was extended up to 50 mole % in an effort to determine whether the tolerance to certain species changes in the presence of high concentrations of others. These tests were conducted directly on a long-term basis since no further short-term screening was needed. In addition, some uncertainties in the previous data, especially those involving methylcyclopentane, were sindied in further detail.

2.2.1.1 Experimental

The experimental apparatus used in this investigation was described in an earlier report (2.2-2). The electrodes, both anode and cathode, contained 35 mg Ft/cm^2 (85 wt % Pt-15 wt % TFE) on gold-coated tantalum screens for anodes and platinum screens for cathodes.

The following procedure was used for the collection of the experimental data. After establishing the desired gas flow rates, usually $20 \mu l$ fuel/min. corresponding to 10 times the stoichiometric octane requirement at 1.0 amp and 10 times the stoichiometric requirements of oxygen (from air), and isothermal conditions (350°F), an open-circuit potential was recorded and data for an initial polarization curve wore obtained. Thereafter, the cell was maintained at 1.5 amps (30 ASF) and the cell potential and current were continuously recorded on dual-channel strip chart Varian recorders. IR-free potential data were obtained by means of \subseteq Kordesch-Marko bridge.

The circulating electrolyte was maintained at 95-98% H₃PO₄ by means of controlled addition of water to the electrolyte sump.

(2.2-1) Technical Summary Report No. 9, <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, 1 Jan-30 June 1966, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract DA44-009-AMC-479(T), p. 2-121 ff.

(2. 2-2) Technical Summary Report No. 5, <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, Jan-June 1964, ARPA Or³ No. 247, Contract DA44-009-ENG-479(T).

Polarization curve data points, usually obtained at the end of each experiment and at prescribed intervals, were taken by first activating the anodes to greater than 0.90 volt vs. H_2/H^+ and waiting for the cell output to stabilize (usually 3 to 4 minutes). In this way, cycling disturbances were avoided. A more thorough description of the life testing procedure was givan earlier (2.2-1).

During this report period, 27 life tests of different fuel cells with "unreactive" components were performed. The fuels tested are listed in Table 2.2-1.

2. 2. 1. 2 Interpretation of Test Data

Generally, in all tests with octane-based fuels, four distinctly different periods of operation were observed:

- 1. Induction period
- 2. Ripple period
- 3. Onset-of-cycling period
- 4. Cycling period

A detailed description of these various modes of operation was described previously (2.2-1). Two exceptions from this generalized four-step sequence were noted, when there was no cycling at all. First, when anode performance penalties produced anode potentials in excess of 680 mv (H_2/H^+). This result was to be expected in view of previous results on anode performance at high potentials (2.2-1).

The second, and more important exception, was noted when anodes were operated on fuels containing high concentrations of methylcyclopentane. The absence of cycling and the unusually good performance for these types of fuel will be described in the following section.

The life test data was interpreted using the same rationale established in the previous report (2. 2-1, pg. 2-123). The anode performance effects of the various additives were compared after an initial 25-hour period. Measurements after longer periods of time would have included the bias contributed by electrode structure deterioration.

2, 2, 1, 3 Results and Discussion

The long-term tests of the fuels listed in Table 2. 2-1 were made in order to corroborate existing data and obtain additional information regarding the performance of multi-component fuels. For comparison with n-octane, see Ref. 2. 2-1, pg. 2-124ff. Detailed tabulations and graphical representation of all the life tests are given in Appendix 4. 3. The following are summaries of each category of t -.

Isble 2.2.1 Summary of Life Test Data

						Amakra H H D.C	
	Cell Nu.	Fuel	T.me,	C D., 4×F	P.D	Putenlial, solt	Resistanc
٨	163	13 tolurne	2	30	19.5	ü 1 10	0,006
	-	5% octașa -2 5% MCH# 15% MtP**	-	6Ú	17 4	0,515	
		74% leo + n-octane	14	1\$	0,0	> 1, 0	
	205	1% toluene 5% octone-2	1	30 60	12 a 16. #	0 540	ê ulê
		5% MCH 15% MCP 74% 199 ፣ n-octane	84.H	30ù 20	6 U 7. 2	0,≈10 >1.0	
Н.	20×	1 toluene	ĩ	30	11, *	0,465	0, 00 #
		9 E OULERE-X 15TL MCH 30'E MCP 49'T. n-octane	: 6 6	30 20	6.0 3.0	0, 540 0, 560 0, 56	
e.	1+2	5% toluene	1	30	4. 3	0, 790	9. 010
		19분 octene=2 10년 MCH 39분 MCP 45분 tan + n-octane		×0	4 8	9,730	
	184	-ibid -	ŧ	30	5.9	4 50G	0. 00 6
			144	60 30	16.× 0.0	0,\$10 >1.0 0 sd0	
	107	53 Johnson	,	50		0.580	0.010
	141	5% octane - 2 5% MCH	30	60	12.0	0,590	0,010
		5% MCP 15% MCP 70% % * 180-octane	~	15	3. 5	0, 929	
D,	160	7% toluene	1	30 50	9, 2	0.510	ə. 010
		FJ E T-GLIERE	144	30 60	6, 9 0, ç	0, 440 > 1, 0	
	195	10% toluene	1	30	5, F	0, 425	0 010
		\$0% n-octane	130	60 30	7.8 9.9	0,715 >1.0	
	104	105 Infusion		29	2. 4	0, 766	
		Suff a -octane	1	30	7.4	9, 579	Q. 010
	201	5% octone-2 95% n-octane	1	50 50	14, 0 23, 8	0, 360 0, 440	9. 00 7
E.	207	3% octene-2 93% a ∘octanø	30	90	9, 0	0, 500	9, 011
	211	5% octene-2 85% n-octane	1 72	30 30	11.7	0, 529 9, 530	0.010
	144	103 1021	1	¢0 30	18,5 9.0	9, 359 9, 329	0, ±10
	199	90% n-octane	179	60	14.4 E.1	0.550 9.5#0	
				30	3,0	0.700	
	192	10% MCH 90% a-octane	1	30 90 30	7,9 0,0 7,7	9,363 1,0+ 5,600	0.010
	144	114 10-1	1	30	10. 8	9, 500	0 919
		85% n-octane	165	60 30	14.4	0.606	
		•		60	6, 9	0,067	
	193	20% MCH ROL n-octane	1	30 60	0.4 13 ×	0, 520 0, 550	0.008
	197	20% MCH	1	30	19, 2	0, 505 9, 910	0,919
		eve z-octabe	142	30 60	6,9 0	0.026 >1.0	
	196	30% MCH	1	30	8. 3	0, 841	9.008
		70ų n-octane	143	50 30 60	11,4 5,4 3,0	6, 590	
	292	50% MCH	1	30 60	9. 0 0	0.370	9, 907
	203	TOT MCH	1	30	8.7	0, 370	0, 010
		30 k s-octane	95	60 30	7.2	0,075 0,750	
				60	0.0	21,0	
G.	191	.30% MCP TVE n-octane	1	30 60	21.6	0,305 0,430	··. 414
			204	60	19, 8	0, 509	
	124	50% MCP 00% n-octane	1	30 69	14.7 22.5	0.540 0.423	6, 669
			040	30	4, 0	9, 690	
Н.	212	10% MCH 20% VCP	1	30	0.4 10.2	0, 545 0, 450	9.910
		70%	45	30 00	8, 1 2, ē	0,580 6,770	
	210	20% MCH	1	30	0.6	9.550	0.012
		40% MCP 40% n-octane	38	30	0,0	0. 050	

* MCH – Methylcyclohexane ** MCP - Methylcyclopentane

÷

1

A. <u>74% lso + n-octane + 15% inethylcyclopentane + 5% octene - 2 + 5%</u> methylcyclohexane + 1% toluene

It has been shown (2. 2-1) that additions not exceeding 1 mole % aromatics, 5 mole % olefins, and 5 mole % naphthenes did not affect anode performance by more than a 50 mv penalty to the polarization obtained when oxidizing pure n-octane. This conclusion had been demonstrated on the basis of four separate tests, of an average duration of 124 hours. Specifically, the additives tested were: 1 mole % toluene, 5 mole % octene-2, and 5 mole % methylcyclohexane. It will be recalled that addition of 15% methylcyclopentane to this facl resulted in an unexpected additional anode performance penalty of 40 mv. On the basis of no performance penalty for 15 mole % methylcyclopentane, when present as a single additive, or good performance when run pure (slightly better than n-octane), this extra 40 mv polarization was rather unexpected.

To further check this point, two additional cells were operated on this particular fuel combination. At the end of the initial 25 hour period, the DC anode vs. H_2/H^+ potential was greater than 625 mv at 30 ASF in both cases. The previous two tests showed DC anode voltages of 640 mv under similar circumstances. It is noted that the 1 mole % toluene, 5 mole % octene-2, 5 mole % methylcyclohexane combination produced anode potentials ranging from 580-609 mv vs. H_2/H^+ . The added performance penalty discussed above has therefore been confirmed by the latest results.

B. <u>49% n-octane + 30% methylcyclopentane + 15% methylcyclohexane</u> + 5% octene - 2 + 1% toluene

A fuel consitting of 1 mole % toluene, 5 mole % octene-2, 15 mole % methylcyclohexane, 30 mole % methylcyclopentane, with n-octane brought the DC anode potential, at 30 ASF, to 660 mv vs. H_2/H^+ after an initial 25 hour period. Initial power density was greater than 10 WSF. However, as with other high-percent additives (except methylcyclopentane when taken as a single additive) performance decayed to less than 6. The after the initial 25 hours of operation. The cycling pattern followed the sequence described in Section 2.2.1.2.

C. <u>70% n + iso-octane, + 5% toluene + 5% methyleyclohexane</u> + 15% methylcyclopentane + 5% octene-2

This cell was run with the relatively high concentration of aromatics, 5 mole %. As was to be expected, initial performance was low (~8.0 WSF at 30 ASF) and it decreased abruptly after 1 hour (<6.0 WSF at 30 ASF); after 25 hours the cell would not support 30 ASF. During its operation the cell cycled as described in Section 2.2.1.2. DC anode potential vs. H_2/H^+ after 15 hours was 700 mv.

D. 93% n-ociane + 7% toluene

This cell was operated in order to investigate long relative reactivity effects at higher concontrations of aromatic additives to a base octane fuel. The initial performance was low (9.2 WSF at 30 ASF) and decreased with time. After one nour the power output decreased to approximately 7.0 WSF and after 25 hours to approximately 6.0 WSF. After 150 hours the DC anode potential vs. H_u/H^+ was 650 mv. "Typical" cycling was apparent throughout the test.

90% n-octane + 10% toluene

Two more cells were operated with 10% toluene as a single additive. Initial performance in both cases was approximately 7.0 WSF. Performance decreased abruptly within one hour to <5.0 WSF and after five hours to approximately 3.0 WSF. In both cases, DC anode potential vs. H_2/H^+ was greater than 730 mv. At these potentials, no cycling was present, as expected from previous findings on the subject (2. 2-1, pg. 2-171).

E. 95% n-octane + 5% octenc -2

Three tests were conducted using 5 mole % octone-2 as a single additive. In two of the tests, the DC anode potential did not exceed 600 mv vs. H_2/H^+ at 30 ASF after the initial 25 hours had elansed. The other did exceed 650 mv vs. H_2/H^+ reference during the initial 25 hours (as great as 650 mv after 20 hours). There was no immediate explanation of this variation from expected performance. All of the cells exhibited g od initial performance (12.3 WSF at 30 ASF average). One decayed to approximately 7.5 ASF after the initial 25 hours of operation. Cycling occurred in the previously described sequence in all cases.

F. n-octane with 10-70% methylcyclohexane

In this series of tests, varying additions of methylcyclohexane were evaluated. A plot of the IR-included mode potential vs. H_2/H^+ indicates a linear trend of performance degradation with an increase in the concentration of methylcyclohexane in the fuel (Figure 2. 2-2). Initial performance varied from 8.0 - 10.0 WSF at 30 ASF and the rate of performance decay appeared to increase with an increase in the naphthene concentration. Interestingly enough, cycling was absent only for the case of 70 mole % methylcyclohexane, although the DC anode potentials for the naphthene concentration range 30-70% were all higher than 650 mv within several hours after the start of a given run.

G. n-octane with 30-50% methylcyclopentane

One of the interesting results obtained in the two tests, was the performance of fuels containing relatively large amounts of methylcyclopentane. In both instances, the DC anode potentials

did not rise above 580 mv vs. H_2/H^+ at 30 ASF after the initial 25 hours of operation. Furthermore, no cycling was evident in either test.

The cell fed with 50 mole % methylcyclopentane was operated in excess of 500 hours with no cycling and with a maximum DC anode potential of 630 mv vs. H_0/H^+ at 30 ASF.

H. <u>n-octane with 20-40% methylcyclopentanc in the presence of 10-20%</u> methylcyclohexane

As indicated in Table 2.2-1, two tests were conducted in this category. The initial performance of both cells was similar (approximately 9 WSF at 30 ASF) and after 25 hours both cells reached a DC anode potential of 680 mv vs. H_2/H^+ at 30 ASF. As expected, there was no cycling under these conditions.

I. <u>General</u>

The overall results of these tests appear to confirm the fact that while anode operation is possible with a great variety of additives over a relatively wide range of concentrations, the performance penalty will be severe at higher concentrations of additive. The only desirable byproduct of this situation is the absence of performance cycling. This is represented in Figure 2.2-1 where DC anode potential measured after the initial 25 hours of testing is plotted vs. mole % addition to the base octanc fuel. For more than 1 mole % toluene, 5 mole % octene-2, and 5 mole % methylcyclohexane, it is seen that there is an increase in performance penalty with any additive including methylcyclopentane.

A plot of anode potential after 25 hours is presented in Figure 2. 2-2 for various concentrations of single additives (naphthenes). A similar performance degradation trend is observed for increasing additive concentrations.

2.2.1.4 Conclusions

It has been shown that a platinum-catalyzed fuel cell anode, operating at stcady-state on octane at temperatures of the order of 350°F with concentrated phosphoric acid as an electrolytc, can tolerate a much greater variety of types and concentrations of organic fuel additives than previously thought possible.

A remarkable feature of the results of the test program described here is the high reactivity of methylcyclopentane, when taken as a single additive to n-octane. Not only can this paraffinnaphthene mixture be oxidized with naphthene concentration of up to 50 mole % and conceivably higher, but the resulting anode potential is of the same order of magnitude or better than that for pure octane. Furthermore, the oxidation process is not accompanied by any performance cycling.



tration of Several Additives to n-Octane

7

2-75

 δ^{-1}

1

ŝ

â

In general though, very high steady-state DC anode potentials of the order of 600-700 mv vs. H_2/H^+ for 10-60 mole % of various additives are encountered. The only advantageous byproduct of this situation is the absence of performance cycling.

2.2.2 Relative Reactivitics of Hydrocarbon Fuel Components (E. Luksha, E.Y. Weissman)

-

In the previous report (2, 2-3) the tolerance of a fuel cell anode to n-octane containing various types of hydrocarbon additives, aromatic, olefinic, and naphthenie was determined. It was found that the octane-based fuel of the composition shown in Table 2, 2-2 behaved very similarly (50 mv or less difference), at least on a short term basis, to n-octane alone.

Tab.c 9.2-2

Model Hydrocarbon Fuel Cell Fuel

Compound Type	Concentration Mole %
Olcfins	0-5
Aromatics	1
Naphthenes (cyclohexane type)	5
(cyclopentane type)	15
n + i octane	balance

If the reactivities of cach one of the fuel components in Table 2. 2-2 are different it can be inferred that anodic oxidation will proceed, at steady-state, according to the extent of electrode coverage by the most reactive species. This implies, of course, that probably a major portion of the anode will be covered by more refractory species; these may be recent, in the original fuel and may also consist of reaction intermediates.

The question of relative reactivities in a binary mixture consisting of n-octane plus one hydrocarbon additive was briefly treated in the preceding report (2.2-3) with respect to benzene. This work was completed during the precent report period and expanded to include the mixtures: 5 mole % pentene-1 + 95 mole % n-octane; 5 mole % cyclohexane + 95 mole % n-octane; 0.1 mole %diethylsulfide + 99, 9 mole % n-octane; and a much more complex fuel consisting of 74 mole % n-octane + 5 mole % pentene-1 + 5 mole % methylcyclopentage + 1 mole %m-xylene. The concentrations of these various additives were chosen consistent with the findings summarized in Table 2.2-2.

 ^(2. 2-3) Technical Summary Report No. ⁹ <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, January 1966-June 1966, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract Nos. DA44-009-ENG-4909, DA44-009-AMC-479(T), and DA44-009-ENG-4853, p. 2-107 et. seq.

2.2.2.1 Experimental

The experimental deta, s of this investigation have been previously described (2, 2-3). Essentially, a fuel mixture after making a single pass through a fuel cell anode (anode compartment volume 7, 5 cm³) was passed together with its oxidation products into a Perkin-Elmer 801 gas chromatograph equipped with a heated gas sampling valve and a differential flame ionization detector.

The anodes were platinum-Teflon-sercen composites of a type described in the literature (2, 2-4). They were of 3 x 3 inch $(0, 05 \text{ ft}^2)$ active geometric area. The electrolyte was phosphoric aeid, maintained at 95 wt. % by controlled addition of water. All measurements were made at 350°F.

The measurement of the exhaust composition with the gas chromatograph, together with the cell current and the inlet fuel composition and flow rate, supplied enough data to calculate the current contributions from each component in each fuel. The calculations were performed on a General Electric 625 computer using programs written in Fortran IV. The complete programs are given in Appendix 4. 4.

The anodes were operated, for the most part, at potentials in the range of 0.5 volt vs. H_2/H^+ ; this is a practical potential at which hydroearbon anodes can be operated for extended periods with reasonable power outputs (2.2-3).

2. 2. 2. 2 Results

A. Binary Fuels

1. Aromatic Additive (benzene/n-octane)

To study the relative reactivity of aromatics and n-paraffins, a binary fuel consisting of benzene + n-octane was examined. A large part of this work was completed in the last report period (2, 2-3) but will be summarized here, together with new data so as to present a complete pleture of the problem.

For this particular fuel the benzene concentration was varied from 1 to 5 mole %, and the liquid fuel flow rate was varied from 5 to $40 \,\mu$ l/min. For n-octane, this corresponds to at least two times the stoichiometric and int for all cases. The experimental results for all the benzene/n-octane mixtures studied are summarized in Table 2.2-3 Columns 4 and 7, respectively, give the exhaust composition of the cell* and the current contribution from benzene. A comparison

^(2, 2-4) L. W. Niedrach and H. R. Alford, J. Electrochem. Soc., 112, 117 (1965).

^{*}This composition is referred to the total mix of hydrocarbons only, since the flame ionization method used for the analyses cannot detect CO_2 or H_2O .

2-3	
N	
Table	

- 10

Inlet Fuel Composition, mole %	Liquid Fuel Flow Rate. µ l/min.	Benzene Flow Rate, mole/min. x 10 ⁶	Benzene Concentration in Exhaust, 2 mole % x 10 ²	Total Cur.cnt, I _T - amp	Anode Potential vs. H ₂ /H ⁺ , volt	Current from Benzene, I _A - amp
99% a-octane + 1% benzene	10	0.313	13.0	1. 46	0.510	0.014
_	- 11	0.688	5.0	1, 35	0. 447	0.032
	20	1.25	5,3	1.53	0. 525	0.047
	30	1.88	4.6	1.52	0. 456	0.057
	38	2.38	4.39	1.52	0. 550	0.110
	10	2.48	26.8	0.49	0.505	0.089
	1 0	2.48	29.2	0.49		0, 086
	1 0	2.48	16.5	1.01	0. 530	0.101
	40	2, 48	15.6	1.01	0.525	0.102
	10	2.46	10.9	1.46	0.514	0.108
	10	2.48	11.7	1. 44	0. 540	0.107
	40	2.45	16.9	1.50	0.525	0.101
	40	2.48	14.7	1.51	0.500	0.104
	40	2.48	7.95	2.03	0.490	0 111
	40	2.45	6. 55	2.00	0.510	0.113
	0†	2.48	5.35	2.00	0.480	0.114
	10	2.48	7.62	2. 32	0.520	0.112
	10	2.48	6.35	2.49	0.497	0.113
	0 1	2.48	5. 55	2.97	0.500	0 1:4
- þ	40	2.48	4.97	3.01	0.500	0.114
97% n-octane + 3% benzene	10	1.87	17,8	0.78	0. 485	0.085
	20	3.73	9.72	2.54	0. 535	0.176
	30	5.62	26.8	1.26	0.540	0.25
-	38	7.03	23.5	1. 39	0. 535	0.315
95% n-octane + 5% benzene	10	3. 15	5 - 1.5	0.75	0. 302	0.146

Current Contribution and Exhaust Composition for Benzene

of columns 1 and 4 indicates that benzene is preferentially oxidized. In Figure 2.2-3 the quantity l_A/l_T the current fraction from benzene, is plotted against the fuel flow rate for a fuel consisting of 55 incle % n-octane + 1 mole % benzene. These data points were obtained at an essentially constant current (~1.5 amps) and anode potential (~0.5 volt vs. N.H.E.). The current fraction from benzene is directly proportional to the fuel flow rate. This indicates that the aromatic is consumed as rapidly as it is supplied, at least for the range of flow rates studied, and provided that $l_T > I_A$.

Further generalization is provided by Figure 2, 2-4 which is a plot of I_A , the current from benzene, vs. the benzene flow rate, for fuels consisting of n-octane + 1, 3, and 5 mole % benzene. The current from benzene is proportional to the benzene flow rates, again indicating that the aromatic is consumed as rapidly as it is supplied, independent of whether it is supplied at high concentrations and low total fuel flow rates or low concentrations and high total fuel flow rates.

The current contribution from benzene, I_A , under these conditions can be represented by the relation:

$$I_{A} = 4.51 \times 10^{4} V_{A}$$
(1)

where V $_{\Lambda}$ is the benzene flow rate in units of gm. mo. /min.

If this result can be generalized to all aromatics, at these conditions of operation, the following relationship can be obtained:

$$I_A = 0.934 \text{ nF } \mu N_A$$
 (2)
where:
 $\mu = \text{mole feed rate, moles per minute}$

 N_{A} = mole fraction of aromatic in feed stream

and the other terms have their usual significance.

2. Olefin Additive (pentene-1/n-octane)

The reactivity of olefins in a fucl was determined by studying a binary fuel consisting of 95 mole $\frac{6}{26}$ n-octane + 5 mole $\frac{6}{26}$ penter -1. The experimental data is summarized in Table 2.2-4. Columns 4 and 7 give the exhaust composition of the eell and the current contribution for pentere-1, respectively. A comparison of columns 1 and 4, the pentere-1 inlet and exhaust concentrations, respectively, shows that the olefin is preferentially oxidized irrespective of the fuel flow rate. As for the case with benzere, this indicates that the olefin is consumed as rapidly as it is supplied for the range of flow rates studied, and provided that $i_T \ge I_{ol}$.



畫

-

Figure 2, 2-3. Current Fraction from Benzene vs. Fuel Flow Rate



Figure 2. 2-4. Current from Benzene vs. Benzene Flow Rate for Fuels Containing 1-5 mole % Benzene

2-80

ne w st

Table 2.2-4

Current Contribution and Ev'.aust Composition for Pentene-1

٦

à

Inlet Fue! Composition, mole %	Liquid Fuel Flow Rate, µ l/min.	Pentene -1 Flow Rate, molcs/min. x 10 ⁶	Pentene-1 Concentration in Exhaust, 1 mole % x 10	Total Current, I _T , amp	Anode Potential vs. H ₂ /H ⁺ , volt	Current from Pentene - 1 01, amp	
95% n-octane + 5% Pentene-1	م	1. 56	2.82	1.00	0. 445	0.074	
	10	3.16	0.054	1.00	0.483	0.152	
	10	3.16	0.067	1.00	0.485	0.152	
	10	3.16	0.058	1, 00	0. 520	0.152	
	10	3.16	0.060	1.00	0.496	0. 152 A	Ave.
	20	6.31	0.043	2.00	0. 535	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.037	2.00	0.510	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.033	1. 50	0. 505	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.030	1. 30	0.525	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.075	1. 50	0.475	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.077	1.50	0.475	9.304	
	20	6.31	0.109	1.00	0.480	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.114	1.00	0.475	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.174	0.50	0.475	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.153	0.50	0.515	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.105	0.50	0.510	0.304	
	20	6.31	0.124	0. 50	0. 525	6.304	
	20	6, 31	0.090	8 8 1 1	0.500	i). 304 A	Ave.
	ç		001 0	00		0.456	
	SU	3. 41	0. 100		1. J.		
	30	9.47	0.112	0.99	0. 525	0.456	
	30	9.47	0.106	0.99	0. 525	0.456 A	Ave.

1.00

0.575

0.550

1. 00

3.06

12.6

40

The average values of the current contribution from pentene-1, I_{01} , are plotted against the pentene-1 flow rate in Figure 2, 2-5. It can be seen that there is a linear relationship between the current I_{01} , and flow rate, and since there is virtually no pentene-1 in the exhaust, the current produced is the stoichiometric amount calculated from its flow rate. It is noted that at the higher ilow rates there is a curvature towards the abscissa. This suggests that at high flow rates or high concentrations of the olefin the current from this compound will probably reach a limiting value.

The current contribution from pentene-1 for these reaction conditions and at low flows, as determined from Figure 2.2-5, can be expressed as:

$$I_{01} = 4.83 \times 10^{4} V_{01}$$
 (3)

where V_{ol} is the pentene-1 flow rate in gm mole/min. If the results are generalized to apply to all olefins the following result is obtained:

$$l_{01} = nF \mu N_{01}$$
(4)

where the symbols have the same meaning as described above for benzene.

3. Naphthene Additive (cyclohexane/n-octane)

Experiments to determine the relative reactivity of cyclohex....?-type naphthenes and n-octane were conducted on a binary fuel consisting of 95 mole % n-octane and 5 mole % cyclohexane. The cyperimental results are summarized in Table 2.2-5.

The cyclohexane-type naphthenes are considerably different from the aromatic and the olefin compounds previously discussed. By comparing columns 1 and 4 which show the cyclohexane concentration in the inlet and exhaust streams, respectively, it is seen that only 27 to 44% of the naphthene is removed. This is in marked contrast to the aromatics and olefins which were virtually entirely removed (93 to 100%). However, it is of importance to note that the cyclohexane concentration in the exhaust is always substantially lower than the inlet concentration. This is shown in Figure 2. 2-6 in which the cyclohexane concentration in the exhaust is plotted against the liquid fuel flow rate. It is seem that the cyclohexane concentration levels out at about 44% of the inlet concentration.

÷



Figure 2. 2-5. Current Contribution from Pentene-1 vs. Pentene-1 Face 7 Rate from a Fuel Containing 5 mole % Pentene-1



Figure 2. 2-6. Effect of Liquid Fuel Flow Rate on Cyclohexane Concentration in Exhaust for a Fuel Containing 5 mole % Cyclohexane at Inlet

2-83

- 27

i

Table 2.2-5

Current Contribution and Exhaust Composition for Cyclohexane

	Liquid Fuel	Cyclohexane	Cyclohexane Concentration	Total Current,	Anode Potential	Current from	R
Inlet Fuel Composition Molv %	Flow Rate, μ l/min.	Flow Raw, mole/min. x 10 ⁶	in Exhaust, mole %	I _T , amp	vs. H ₂ ' H ^T , volt	Cyclohexan I _N , amp	
95% n-octane + 3% cyclohexane	10.7	3. 34	1.39	0.800	0. 475	0.148	
	10.7	3, 34	1.37	0.800	0. 485	0.149	
	10.7	3. 34	1.35	0.800	0.485	0.149	
	10.7	3.34	1. 37	0.800	1 1 1	0.149	Ave.
	20	6. 25	1.94	0.990	0.525	0.236	
	20	6.25	1.98	0.990	0. 525	0.233	
	20	6.25	1.99	0.980	0. 525	0.233	
	20	6.25	1.97	0.987	 	0.234	Ave.
							. 4
	30	9.37	1.89	0.980	0.510	0.352	•
	30	9.37	2.01	0.960	0.540	0.339	
	30	9.37	1.93	0.960	0.510	0.347	
	30	9.37	1.94	0.967	8 8 8 1	0.346	Ave.
	40	12.5	2. 23	0.980	0.540	0.419	
	40	12.5	2.19	0.970	0.500	0.426	
	40	12.5	2.20	0.960	0.510	0.423	
•	40	12.5	2.21	0.970		0.423	Ave.

From a consideration of thermodynamic equilibrium data (2, 2-5) for the gas phase dehydrogenation reaction:

it follows that, for the conditions prevailing at the anode, the product of Reaction (5) will contain 2.3 mole % benzene and 2.7 mole % cyclohexane. The benzene (and hydrogen) will be rapidly and almost completely consumed (see Section 2. 2. 2. 2 on binary itels and aromatic additives).

From these equilibrium considerations, 46% of the benzene would be consumed with some consumption of the accompanying cyclohexane. This compares favorably with the experimental values ranging from 56 to 72% (Table 2.2-5). The agreement with the low value (56%) obtained at the higher flow rates is in better agreement since under high flow conditions the electrochemical "tilization of cyclohexane is lower than under low flow conditions.

The average values of the current contributing from the naphthene, I, is plotted vs. the naphthene flow rate in Figure 2.2-7. A linear relationship is again obtained as with benzene and pentene-1, but here it is noted that the line does not pass through the origin.

The experimental results in Figure 2.2-7 can be fitted to the following empirical equation:

$$I_{N} = 0.05 + 3.55 \times 10^{4} V_{N}$$
(6)

where $V_{\rm N}$ is the flow rate of cyclohexane in mole/min.

Once again, if the results are generalized to all cyclohexane-type naphthenes the following relationship is obtained:

$$I_{N} = nF (8.65 \times 10^{-7} + 0.613 \ \mu N_{N})$$
(7)

when N_N is the mole fraction of the naphthene at the inlet and the other terms have the significance described above.

4. <u>Sulfur Additive (diethylsulfidc/n-octane)</u>

τ. 145, <u>ε</u> A brief study was made to determine the reactivity of sulfur-bearing compounds at the fuel cell anode. A fuel consisting of 0.1 mole % diethylsulfide (~300 ppm sulfur) in n-octane was studied. Diethylsulfide was chosen because it was believed that a basic (Lewis base) sulfur compound would be very harmful to anode performance. The experimental data is given in Table 2.2-6. It can be seen

(2.2-5) F. D. Rossini et. al., "Selected Values of Properties of Hydrocarbon," Circular C4(1 N. B. S. 1947.

And the state of the second
An and a set of the se

Table 2.2-6

Current Contribution and Exhaust Composition for Diethylsulfide

	i	Ave.	Ave.		Ave.	Ave.
	Current from DES, 3 amps x 10 ³	0. 11 0. 11 0. 11	0. 53 0. 50 0. 52	0.18	1. 5 2. 1 1. 8	3.0 3.0
	Anode Potential vs. H ₂ /H ⁺ , volt	0.510 0.490 	0.480 0.480	0.510	0.530 0.500 0.515	0.520 0.530 0.525
	Total Current, I _T , amp	0.800 0.780 0.790	0.97 0.97 0.97	0.88	1.0 1.0 1.0	1.5 1.5 1.5
	DES Concentration in Exhaust, mole %	0.136 0.135 0.136	0. 102 0. 103 0. 103	0.106	0.0887 0.0827 0.0857	0.0814 0.0817 0.0816
	DES Flow Rate, ₆ moles/min. x 10	0.03 0.03 0.03	0.06 0.06 0.06	0.12	0.19 0.19 0.19	0.25 0.25 0.25
	Liquid Fuel Flow Rate, µl/min.	ດມາ	10 10 10	20	30 30 30	40 40
1	Inlet Fuel Composition, mole %	99.9% n-octane + 0.1% diethylsulfide				

e ne



Figure 2. 2-7. Current Contribution from Cyclohexane vs. Cyclohexane Flow Rate for a Fuel Containing 5 mole % Cyclohexano





2-87

•_____ 18. 19. in column 7 that the current contribution from this compound is in the anticoup range and is therefore of no consequence. It is also noted that the anode potential is normal (see column 6).

Most notewort: Is column 4 which shows that the exhaust becomes enriched in the sulfurbearing compound as the fuel flow rate is decreased. In Figure 2.2 S the diethylsulfide concentration in the exhaust is plotted against liquid fuel flow rate. It is seen that the diethylsulfide concentration in the exhaust can be increased by some 50%. This is the only case caccuntered in which an "unreactive" compound actually becomes enriched in the anode exhaust. This result is indicative of weak electro-sorption so that the sulfides under these conditions are probably not strong poisons and are real examples of unreactive compounds. Studies of other classes of sulfur compounds should prove to be interesting.

B. Five Component Fuel

A fuel consisting of 74 mole % n-octane + 15 mole % : ethylcyclopentane + 5 mole dmethylcyclohexane + 5 mole % pentene-1 + 1 mole % m-sylene was studied to determine whether the results reported above using bluary fuels are applicable to more complex fuels. It is possible that one or more of the components are selectively oxidized at the expense of the others. A fuel of this particular composition was chosen since it was previously shown (2, 2-3) to behave very similarly to pure n-octane. Furthermore, this study comes closer to simulating operations with a real commercial fuel. The experimental results are given in Table 2, 2-7.

Figures 2 2-12 and 2.2-13 show the peatene-1 and maximum concentrations in the exhaust, respectively, plotted as a function of liquid fuel flow rate. As for the case of binary faels, the unsaturated compounds are virtually entirely depleted from the fuel stream as low fuel flow rates (approximately 10 μ l/min.). The breakthrough of these compounds above these flow rates must be a result of competition for surface rates between the various fuel component moleculus. However, the concentrations of these compounds are greatly reduced; thus, better than 70% removal of the aromatic compound and better than 80% of the olefin is observed. This fact is extremely significant, since it

Table 2.2-7

ه ۲۰٫۳ م<u>و</u>ر معر**ب**ه

Current Contributions and Exhaust Composition of Components of a Synthetic Fuel

Inlet Fuel Composition, mole 3: 74% n-octane + 15% methylcyclopentane + 5% methylcyclohexane + 5% pentene-1 + 1% m-xy lene

Liquid Fuel Flow Rate, µ1/min.	10	20	30	40
Octane Flow Rate, moles/min. x 10 ⁶	49.16	98. 32	147.5	196. 6
MC.? Flow Rate, moles/min. x 10 ⁶	9.92	19.8	29.8	39.7
MCH Flow Rate, moles/min. x 10 ⁶	3. 32	6.64	9, 96	13. 28
Pentene-1 Flow Rate, mole/min. x 10 ⁶	3.32	6.64	9. 36	13. 28
Xylene Flow Rate, mole/min. × 10 ⁵	0.664	1. 33	1.99	2.66
n-Octane Concentration, mole $\%$	95, 6	87 0	83.0	80.7
MCP Concentration, mole %	3, 49	11.7	13. 1	14.1
MCII Concentration, mole $\%$	0, 822	2.84	3.19	4.17
Pentene-1 Concentration, mole $\%$	0.0581	0. 267	0.534	0.774
M-Xylen ${ m c}$ Concentration, mole ${ m \%}$	0.000	0.177	0. 226	0.273
Total Current, amp	1.20	1.45	1. 50	1.50
Ande Potential, voit	0.550	0. 550	0.590	0. 580
I, Octane-amp p	0.320	0. 422	0.268	0. 267
I _N , MCP-amp	0.479	0.405	0. 396	0. 326
I _{N2} , MCH-amp	0.198	0. 239	0. 292	0.217
I Pentene-1, amp	0.159	0. 306	0. 436	0. 551
I _A , m-Xylene, amp	0, 04:9	0. 0768	0.108	0. 135



-

inter-

2-90

No. a

-

,


Figure 2. 2-11. Effect of Liquid Fuel Flow Rate on Methylcyclohexane Concentration in Exhaust for a Fuel Containing 74% n-Octane + 15% Methylcyclopentane + 5% Methylcyclohexane + 5% Pentene-1 + 1% m-Xylene



Figure 2. 2-12. Effect of Liquid Fuel Flow Rate on Pentene-1 Concentration in Exhaust for a Fuel Containing 74% n-Octane + 15% Methylcyclopentane + 5% Methylcyclohexane + 5% Pentene-1 + 1% m-Xylene

i.

T I



Figure 2. 2-13. Effect of Liquid Fuel Flow Rate on m-Xylene Concentration in Exhaust for a Fuel Containing 74% n-Octane + 15% Methylcyclopentane + 5% Methylcyclohexane + 5% Pentene-1 + 1% m-Xylene



Figure 2. 2-14. Effect of Octane Flow Rate on Current Contribution from Octane for Fuel Containing 74% n-Octane + 15% Methyleyelopentane + 5% Methylcyelohexane + 5% Pentene-1 + 1% m-Xylene

indicates that the more harmful components are preferentially oxidized resulting in an "exhaust fuel" that is richer in the more desirable components.

The current contributions of the five components unde consideration are shown in Figures 2, 2-14 thru 2, 2-18. They were obtained by means of the simultaneous solution of five linear equations (see Appendix 4, 4). Unfortunately, the solutions are quite sensitive to relatively small variations in each of the variables. Thus, an experimental error of about 1 to 3% in the chromatographic analysis can cause rather severe distortions in the calculated current contributions of the components for which the errors were made. Furthermore, the assumptions made for the parameter n (number of gm-equivalents/gm-mole) of each species and for the Faradiae efficiency, which was assumed to be 100%, will also influence the results.

These comments are pertinent, in view of the curve discontinuities observed in Figures 2. 2-14 thru 2. 2-16. These discontinuities were unexpected, considering the smooth variation of the exhaust composition data with flow rate (Figures 2. 2-9 thru 2. 2-11).

On the other hand, the relative reactivity of olefins and aromatics yield results as exhibited in Figures 2, 2-17 and 2, 2-18. These results are reminiscent of the binary fuel results and reflect the situation where it was shown that there is not necessarily an additive effect on performance when two or more "refractory" additives are present in a given fuel (2, 2-3).

It is clear from the above discussion that the current contributions from *n*-octane, methylcyclopentane, and methylcyclohexane are difficult to calculate. This is not the case, however, for m-xylene and pentene-1. The current contributions for each of these components, at low flow rates, are given by the equations:

$$I_{01} = 0.963 \,\mathrm{nF} \,\mu\mathrm{N}_{01} \tag{6}$$

$$I_A = 0.93 \,\mathrm{nF} \,\mu \,\mathrm{N}_A \tag{9}$$

Equations (8) and (9) are in very good agreement with Equations (2) and (4) which apply to binary fuels. It should be noted that a different aromatic additive was used in the binary mixture. This is an alternate way of expressing the fact that the electrochemical oxidation of olefins and aromatics at low fuel flow rates appears to proceed independent of the other species present in the fuel.

C. General Considerations

Figure 2. 2-19 shows that aromatics, olefins, and naphthenes in pure form exhibit considerably poorer polarization characteristics than n-octane when oxidized electrochemically.



Figure 2, 2-15. Effect of Methylcyclopentane Flow Rate on Current Contribution from Methylcyclopentane for Fuel Containing 74% n-Octane + 15% Methylcyclopentane + 5% Methylcyclohexane + 5% Pentene-1 + 1% m-Xylene



Figure 2. 2-16. Effect of Methylcyclohexane Flow Rate on Current Contribution from Methylcyclohexane for Fuel Containing 74% n-Octane + 15% Methylcyclopentane + 5% Methylcyclohexane + 5% Pentene-1 + 1% m-Yylene



Figure 2. 2-17. Effect of Pentene-1 Flow Rate on Current Contribution from Pentene-1 for Fuel Containing 74% n-Octane + 15% Methylcyclopentane + 5% Methylcyclohexane + 5% Pentene-1 + 1% m-Xylene



Figure 2. 2-18. Effect of m-Xylene Flow Rate on Current Contribution from
m-Xylene for Fuel Containing 74% n-Octane + 15% Methylcyclo-
pentane + 5% Methylcyclohexane + 5% Pentene-1 + 1% m-Xylene



Figure 2. 2-19. Polarization Curves for n-Octane, Methylcyclopentane, Cyclohexane, Pentene-1, Benzene, and m-Xylene



Figure 2, 2-20. Fuel Cell Anode Compartment

The rather unexpected relative reactivities observed in the present work for fuel mixtures is, therefore, probably due to competitive adsorption effects, with the more refractory species achieving high coverages of the active sites and being selectively oxidized. Unfortunately, no electrosorption data are available for the classes of compounds studied to put this discussion on a more quantitative basis.

2, 2, 2, 3 Discussion

A clearer understanding of the preceding results can be obtained from some fundamental relationships. Consider an anode compartment of thickness t, containing an electrode of area A, as is shown in Figure 2.2-20. There is a steady flow, μ , of reactant mixture expressed as moles per unit time. A volume element, dA, is selected so that the concentration of component i is N_i expressed as mole fraction and the eoneentration leaving is $N_i - dN_i$. The rate of change in the number of moles of component i at a given point in the anode compartment, m_i , can be expressed by the equation:

$$\frac{dm_i}{dt} = \mu dN_i + r_i dA$$
(10)

where r_i is the rate of oxidation of component i in the anode compartment expressed as moles of reactant converted per unit area of electrodc per unit time, and the remaining symbols have their customary significance.

Considering the anode compartment as a flow reactor at steady-state, Equation (10) simplifies to:

$$\mathbf{r}_{i} \, \mathrm{d}\mathbf{A} = - \, \mu \mathrm{d}\mathbf{N}_{i} \tag{11}$$

Considering mainly activation effects and expressing the current density of a component i in terms of the reaction rate, we obtain:

$$i_{i} = n_{i} F r_{i}$$
(12)

Combining Equations (11) and (12) and integrating yields:

$$\int_{0}^{A} dA = -nF\mu \int_{N_{o}}^{N} \frac{dN}{i}$$
(13)

here the subscript i has been eliminated for sake of simplicity and N_0 is the molc fraction of the component under consideration at the inlet.

Expressing the current density in terms of the electrochemical kinetics of an activation limited, anodic, forward reaction

$$\left| \begin{array}{c} \eta \\ n \end{array} \right| >> \frac{RT}{nF}$$

where η_{a} is the anodic activation polarization, we can write:

$$i = nFN^{-3}k \exp\left(\frac{-\Delta G^{*}}{RT}\right) \exp\left(\frac{-\alpha nFE^{*}}{RT}\right) \exp\left(\frac{(1-\alpha)nFn}{RT}\right)$$
 (14)

where Y is the reaction order, k is a vate constant, ΔG^* is the standard free energy of activation. E° is the reversible potential, and ϕ is the transfer coefficient. It is recognized that Equation (1) is the correct kinetic e: — ission for the hydrocarbons studies, but for our purposes the following simplified equation can be

$$\mathbf{i} = \mathbf{k}^* \mathbf{X}^{\mathbf{Y}} \mathbf{e}^{\mathbf{i} \times \mathbf{E}}$$
 (15)

more easily fitted to the experimental data, where $\frac{1}{2}$ and β are now constants to be fit to the experimental data. Substituting Equation (15) into Equation (13) yields:

$$\int_{0}^{A} dA = \frac{-nF + e^{-F}E}{k^{4}} = \int_{N_{O}}^{N} \frac{dN}{N^{4}}$$
(16)

which upon integration and rearrangement gives:

$$\frac{|\mathbf{k}'| \mathbf{A}(\mathbf{1} - \mathbf{\gamma})}{n\mathbf{F} \boldsymbol{\mu}} = \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{0}}^{(1-\boldsymbol{\gamma})} - \mathbf{N}^{(1-\boldsymbol{\gamma})}$$
(17)

for the case where $\gamma \neq 1$. Since none of the additives studied have a reaction order of unity this case was not considered. The constants in Equation (17) are listed in Table 2.2-8 for the additives studied.

Table 2, 2-8

Constants for Equation (17)

Compeund	k', ASF	<u> </u> \$	<u> </u>
Benzene	0.039	9, 3	-0.11
m-xylene	0.17	6.7	-0.11
Methylcyclohexane	0. 029	11,4	
Pentene-1	0.26	9, 3	-0, 16
N-octane	0.12	13, 1	~ 0.5

*estimated

The empirical constants k^{i} and β were determined from the linear portion of curves in Figure 2, 2-21. The reaction order for benzene was given in a recent study by Bockris et. al.(2, 2-6) and the values of the orders for m-xylene and pentene-1 were estimated from Bockris's data. The other values for γ were obtained by fitting the binary fuel data to Equation (17). Equation (17) permits the calculation of the exhaust composition of any compound for which the constants are known. It is hoped that the constants for various compounds in a particular class will be sufficiently similar to make Equation (17) general enough to calculate the exhaust composition (and therefore current contribution) of a fuel cell anode at any given set of anode operating conditions.

The fit of the experimental data for the five component fuel to Equation (17) is only fair if the condition:

$$e^{\beta E} \leq \frac{nF \mu N^{(1-\gamma)}}{k' A (1-\gamma)}$$
(19)

is obeyed. The utilization of the components that were believed to be unreactive prior to this investigation can be explained by Equation (18), indicating that the results obtained can be explained from simple fundamental considerations.

2.2.2.4 Conclusions

1. Under anode operating conditions that present-day direct hydrocarbon fuel cell technology permits, the components of a practical fuel (aromatics, olefins, and to a certain extent naphthenes) can be preferentially oxidized. This is apparently a result of the magnitude of the relative coverage of the active sites with the components in question. The anode effluent becomes cnriched in the more desirable paraffin component.

Sulfur compounds that are basic in nature are not preferentially adsorbed and oxidized in the manner described above.

2. The preferential oxidation of the "unreactive" components can be explained by simple kinetic considerations.

The engineering significance of these indings is extremely important since it is now evident that no fuel pretreatment beyond established limits is necessary and that the fuel can be recycled without any harmful side effects.

(2.2-6) J. O. M. Bockris, et. al., Trans. Faraday Soc., 61, 515, 1965.



Figure 2. 2-21. Current Density vs. Anode Potential for n-Octane, Pentene-1, Cyclohexane, Benzene, and m-Xylene

.

2.3 INVESTIGATIONS WITH ALTERNATE ELECTROLYTES (J. Paynter, J. R. Morgan)

The previous work with carbon-supported electro-atalysts using liquid octane fuel and hydrofluoric acid electrolyte has been extended to include higher area graphitic and non-graphitic substrates.

2.3.1 Experimental

2.3.1.1 Electrocatalyst Preparation

Properties of the substrate materials chosen for evaluation, together with the corresponding catalyst identification numbers are given in Table 2, 3-i. Except for that corresponding to Prep. No. 51, all of the substrates are non-graphitic carbons. The Prep. No. 51 substrate was obtained by heat treatment of Prep. No. 60 substrate to 2700°C for approximately two hours in an inert atmosphere.

Table 2.3-1

Properties of Carbon Substrates

Source: Cabot Corp.

Name	Туре	Surface Area (a), m ² /gm	Avcrage Particle Diameter (b), Millimicron	Volatile Content ,	рН	Catalyst Prep. No.
Sterling 10	Oil furnace non-graph.	42	41	1.0	8.0	70
Spheron 6	Regular color channel non-graph.	110	25	5.υ	4.5	80
Black Pearls 71	Medium color channel non-graph.	380	16	5.0	5.0	90
Black Pearls 2	Hlgh color channel nor-graph.	850	12	13.0	3.0	60
Black Pearls 2	Graphitic	212		0.0	10.0	51
(a) No S. A.						

(b) From electron micrographs.

(2.3-1) E. J. Cairns, E. J. McInerney, and J. Paynter, Technical Summary Peport No. 9, <u>Hydrocarbon - Air Fuel Cells</u>, Jan. 1 - June 30, 1966, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract No. DA44-009-AMC-479 (T).

The substrates were activated by making a siurry with a nitric acid solution of $Pt (NH_3)_2$ (NO₂)₂ and heating in air to decompose and oxidize the $\gamma = 3alt$, following procedures similar to those outlined in Appendix 3.4 of Technical Summary Report No. 8. Recently, results of thermogravimetric analysis have indicated that the optimum decomposition temperature is around 250°C (2, 3-1). However, with the higher area non-graphitic carbons used in the present work, final decomposition temperatures over 200°C generally resulted in vigorous burning of the catalysts. It was found that a final oxidation temperature of 200°C, together with prolonged heating at 100°C, did not result in any visible reaction with the highest area material studied (850 m²/g). The time - temperature profile used for all laminations in the preparation of the electrocatalysts is shown in Figure 2, 3-1. Three laminations were made on each substrate corresponding to 10 w/o Pt increments. Large agglomerates were broken up before transfer to the air thermostat. The catalysts were ground an i sieved through 200 mesh screen after the third lamination.

2.3.1.2 Electrode Preparation

All anodes were of the dry - blended variety (2, 3-1) fabricated with 45 v/0 T-7, a $0.27 - 0.31 \text{ mg/cm}^2$ porous TFE film, and a press force of 5000 lb. The Al foil backing material was removed by electrochemical oxidation in dilute KOH solution at a potential above O_2 evolution to prevent premature reduction and sintering of the platinum by the H₂ evolved in the chemical stripping process.

Two types of dry - blended electrodes were used, differing only in the method of mixing catalyst and Teflon powders. One set was made following the grinding and sieving procedures described previously (2.3-1). The agglomeration and leathering of the Teflon encountered with this procedure was avoided in the second set by using boiling liquid nitrogen to simultaneously wet. disperse, and sieve (100 mesh screen) the powders. This technique is much less time-consuming than the standard one and should result in a dry blend of better homogeneity and smaller agglomerate size.

2.3.1.3 Fuel Cell Studies

The electrolyte used in this study was the 36 m/o HF - H_2O azeotrope at 105°C. Normal - octane (Phillips research grade) was fed to the anode compartment in the liquid state by means of a constant - speed syringe drive. The anodes were reduced electrochemically in situ under octane at about 7 ma/cm².

The performance measurements were made using the usual interrupter technique. All results are reported on a resistance - free basis unless otherwise indicated. The reference electrode was a reversible hydrogen electrode in the same electrolyte at the same temperature.



Figure 2.3-1. Time - Temperature Profile Used for Preparation of Carbon-Supported Platinum Electrocatalysts

. -

÷

2.3.2 Results and Discussion

Performance data expressed as current density and specific current (ma/mg Pt) at anodereference voltages of 0.4 and 0.5 V are given in Table 2.3-2. Suffix A in the "Catalyst" column refers to electrodes made using the modified dry - blending technique. It is apparent that both types of electrodes gave similar results.

The effect of the specific surface area of the substrate on the average specific current of the two types of electrodes at $E_{a-r} = 0.4$ and 0.5 V is shown in Figure 2.3-2. At the lower areas performance improved with increasing surface area, but above approximately $350 \text{ m}^2/\text{g}$ performance fell off sharply. The areas used in this plot are those given by the supplies for the untreated substrates.

The effect of Pt activation on the original surface areas was investigated by estimating average particle diameters from electron micrographs of the electrocatalysts. It is seen from the results summarized in Table 2.3-3 (c.f. Table 2.3-1) that the 850 m²/g carbon lost much of its original surface area during the activation procedure. Figures 2.3-3 and 2.3-4 show electron micrographs of the electrocatalysts made using the 850 (Prep. No. 60) and the 380 (Prep. No. 90) m²/g carbons, respectively. Note that the Pt crystalilte size of Prep. No. 60 is the same order of magnitude as the carbon particle size of Prep. No. 90. As shown in Figure 2.3-5, there is a good correlation between performance and actual electrocatalyst surface area, expressed as the reciprocal of the diameter of the average electrocatalyst particle.

The following are some of the experimental observations which suggest the cause of the loss in surface area occurring during activation of the substrates. The weight gain of the carbons as a result of Pt activation decreased with increasing volatile content of the untreated substrate. The apparent weight ioss is accounted for fairly well by assuming removal of the substrate volatile content. These data are summarized in Table 2.3-3. A sample of the $850 \text{ m}^2/\text{g}$ carbon which was subjected to the activation procedure without the addition of Pt salt showed no significant weight change. These facts suggest that Pt catalyzes the oxidation of the carbon volatile content during activation of all the carbons studied. Under the conditions used for activation, the heat of this reaction is sufficiently high to cause sintering of the $850 \text{ m}^2/\text{g}$ carbon, which has a relatively large volatile content and small particle size. The reaction is sufficiently vigorous above 200°C to ignite the non-graphitic carbons.

(2.3-2) E. J. Cairns and E. J. McInerney, Technical Summary Report No. 7, <u>Hydrocarbon - Air</u> <u>Fuel Cells</u>, Jan. 1 - June 30, 1965, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract Nos. DA-44-009-ENG-4909 and DA-44-009-AMC-479 (T).

Table 2.3-2

۲

а А. **Б**

Electrocatalyst Comparisons

$C_8H_{18(1)}$ (30 w/o Pt/C)/36 m/o HF/(Pt)O₂ T = 105°C

Press force 5000 lb; Binder 45 v/o T-7; Film 0.27-0.31 mg TFE/ cn^2 ; Dry blend

Catalyst	Pt Loading, mg Pt/cm ²	i $(E_{a-r} = 0.4 V)$, ma/cm ²	$i (E_{a-r} = 0.5 V),$ ma ^{/cm²}	$\frac{ma}{E_{a-r}} = 0.4 \text{ V}$	ma/mg Pt, (E _{a-r} = 0.5 V)	Cell
Prep. No. 51	10.29	5.31	16.6	0.516	1.61	8620-4
10	10,29	4.05	12.0	0.394	1.17	-16
51A.	15.19	7.20	15.5	0.474	1.02	iç P
05	13.80	2.63	4.92	0, 191	0.357	5656-1
60A	13, 12	2.76	5.53	0.210	0.421	8620-12
70	11.40	1.96	4.08	0.172	0.358	-9
70A	12.52	2.01	4.57	0, 161	0.365	1~
80	13.55	5,92	11.6	0.437	0, 856	30 1
80 A	16.41	4.90 *	10.6	0.299	0.646	6-
00	12,96	5, 55	1 ., 1	0.428	1.01	-10
A08	15.88	8.05	17.1	0.507	1.05	-13

2-105

A-CH



Figure 2. 3-2. Effect of Specific Surface Area of Carbon Substrate on Specific n-Octane Performance at E a - r = 0.4 and 0. 5V

~ • •

Table 2.3-3

ş

Properties of Carbon-Supported Catalysts

Nominally 30 w/o Pt/C in Three 10 w/o Laminations

Pt Salt: Pt (NH₃)₂(NO₂)₂

Amount of Substrate: 3.00 gm

Theoretical Weight Gain as Pt O2: 1.50 g

Total Weight Gain + Substrate Volatile Content, gr	1.54	1.57	1.43	1.38	1.58	
Total Weight Gain of Substrate, gm	1.51	1.42	1.28	0.99	1.58	
Average Particle Diameter (a), Millimicron	59.1	28.7	16.3	50.6	15.2	
Catalyst Pre. No.	02	80	06	60	51	

2-107

(a) Estimated from electron photomicrographs.



Figure 2. 3-3. Electron Micrograph of Non-Graphitic Carbon Powder (850 m²/g Carbon, Prep. No. 60) Activated with 30 w/o Pt. 100,000 x (before reduction for printing)



Figure 2. 3-4. Electron Micrograph of Non-Graphitic Carbon Powder (380 m²/g Carbon, Prep. No. 90) Activated with 30¹ w/o Pt. 100,000 x (before reduction for printing)

2-109

-9 -**4** #


Ŧ

Figure 2.3-5. Effect of Average Particle Size of Pt/C Electrocatalyst on Specific n-Octane Performance at $E_{a-r} = 0.4$ and 0.5V



Figure 2.3-6. Anode Performance on n-Octane with 30 w/o Pt on C, Preparations 51, 80 and 90A

2-110

It should be possible to avoid sintering by preheating the untreated carbons at 800 - 1000°C in an inert atmosphere. This will result in a significant loss of volatiles without appreciable loss in surface area. Alternatively, milder conditions of activation may be used.

Performance curves for the three best electroeatalysts are shown in Figure 2, 3-6. Assuming an average standard eathode performance (2, 3-2). Prep. No. 51 gave 0, 83 watt/g Pt at the anode at an I-R free cell voltage of 0, 4 V, or 0, 69 watt/g Pt at 0, 4 V I-R included with an 1 \leq inch electrolyte spacer. The results are encouraging, especially in view of the fact that no attempt was made to optimize electrode structure for any substrates tested. The electrode structure used was designed for an 11, 4 m²/g graphitic substrate (2, 3-1) and is not necessarily optimum for any of the earbons used here. Further improvements are likely through the use of higher area substrates in an optimize electrode structure.

2.3.3 Conclusions

1. Of the catalysts tested for the anodic oxidation of octane in HF at 105°C a 212 m² /g graphite - supported material is the most active, yielding 0.83 watt/g Pt at t) node based on an average standard cathode performance at an I-R free cell voltage of 0.4 V.

2. Increasing the surface area of the non-graphitic carbon substrate (up to at least $380 \text{ m}^2/\text{g}$) improves octane performance, using given electrocatalyst and electrode preparation procedures.

3. Non-graphitic carbons having surface areas greater than about 500 m^2/g and high volatile contents undergo sintering under the conditions of the Ft activation procedure presently used.



3.0 ANALYSIS OF DIRECT HYDROCARBON/ AIR FUEL CELL SYSTEM FOR LIQUID FUELS

(P.J. C'ıludzinski, D.C. Shah)

3.1 Background

3.1.1 Summary

Much research and development has been conducted on the direct hydrocarbon/air fuel cell during recent years. A variety of fuels, electrolyies, and electrode structures have been investigated in order to develop a high performance fuel cell system. At this point it was decided to review all these studies, and analyze the direct hydrocarbon cell as an integral component in a total fuel cell system. The intention was to point up the capabilities of such a system, as well as the limitations which must be further explored for future improvement.

Based on the data assembled under these government contracts, certain choices of components which scemed logical from the standpoint of high renformance were chosen. Phosphoric acid seemed to be the best electrolyte in spite of the anodic cycling which has been observed in single cells. Teflon-bonded platinum electrodes supported on tantalum screens were chosen in spite of their limited life and high colit. Normal octane was chosen as the fuel, even though it also is expensive. The result of the system study was, therefore, a view of the upper limit in performance attainable today, even though the system is expensive.

The fuel cell stack was optimized on the basis of weight and efficiency, taking into account the electrode physical properties, current density, electrode size and shape, and the electrolyte gap. By an examination of trends in weight and efficiency optimization, coupled with practical considerations of mechanical integrity, one "design point" at each of two operating temperatures was chosen for detailed system analysis. The cell stack was integrated into a total system containing the necessary vaporizers, preheaters, condensers and pumps. Operating conditions were found at which the system was water conservative. The weight, volume, parasitic power, heat losses, and overall thermal efficiency were calculated. A conceptual layout of 0.5 KW fuel cell system was drawn, which showed the relative sizes and functions of the components.

The "optimum" system was composed of 15 by 10 inch electrodes separated by 1/16 inch of phoephoric acid at 130°C. The fuel was normal octane, the oxidant was air at three times stoichiometric flow rate. The system produced a net power of 540 watts with an overall thermal efficiency of 20% based on the higher heating value of the fuel. Parasitic power was 60 watts if condensers were cooled by free convection air. The system weight was 220 lb and occupied about 8 ft³. If forced convection cooling were used, a weight and volume decrease of 10 and 20%, respectively, could be attained, at the expense of additional parasitic power and a second air pump. The additional parasitic power was

tolerable only if cooling air could be supplied and distributed properly at very low pressures (less than 1 inch H_2O). Since this may not be practical, it is probably better to suffer the volume and weight penaity for the convenience of free convection at a higher overall efficiency.

It was found that the weight of the stack was strongly reduced by thinner electrolyte gaps. The system weight was affected less strongly because large amounts of electrolyte were needed in the fuel vaporization equipment. System weight was affected very strongly by designing for a higher temperature of operation, but the high acid concentration needed for self-sustained operation poses the problem of electrolyte solidification when the system is shut down and cooled.

This study did not include the effects of anodic cycling, i.e., the power pulsations observed when single cells operate in phosphoric acid, since not much is known about the cycling behavior of multi-celi stacks. If the anodic cycling of individual cells in a stack are self-cancelling, then phosphoric acid is a practical-electrolyte. If not, the only alternative at this time is hydrofluoric acid, which is the only electrolyte which prevents cycling. However, it is doubtful that hydrofluoric acid can be engineered to be a practical electrolyte. This points up the great need to study anodic cycling behavior in multi-cell stacks before consideration is given to build a system.

Additional study areas suggest themselves. There is need for scale-up to the large sizes already mentioned. Noble metal cost reduction has always been a goal in fuel cell development. It has been found that it is desirable to decrease electrolyte gaps. It seems that all of these goals could be greatly augmented by the use of the matrix electrolyte currently under development. The matrix affords a low weight, non-leaking substrate upon which it is possible to apply thin layers of electrocatalyst. Of course, a secondary coolant system would be needed, the weight and complexity of which has not been assessed in this study.

3.1.2 Introduction

The purpose of this task is to evaluate the data accumulated under the previous ERDL contracts and using it as a basis, investigate a direct hydrocarbon/air fuel cell system, including cell stack and auxiliarics. In the course of the investigation some optimization would be done, and some problem areas would be uncovered which would give direction for future development work. The objective of the task can best be amplified by the contractual wording as follows:

"The experimental information obtained under parts I - III (of this contract) will be reviewed and the optimum direct hydrocarbon-air fuel cell system for use with liquid hydrocarbon fuel will be selected. This will include the:

- a. Choice of electrolyte.
- b. Choice of celi operating temperature.

- c. Choice of fuel vaporization or injection procedure.
- d. Choice of electrolyte containment method.
- e. Choice of electrode composition.

"Based on these prime choices of approach and operating conditions a system analysis of the total system will be made which will is clude detailed heat, water and mass balance calculations. Major components will be described in w ms of the functions they perform and the approximate sizings, and a preliminary conceptual layout of a 0.5 KW direct hydrocarbon fuel cell system will be prepared."

3. 2 CHOICES OF COMPONENTS AND OPERATING CONDITIONS

Upon reviewing the data assembled under previous contracts, certain choices of components and operating conditions were made, keeping as many as possible of the conditions general enough so that they would be chosen by the results of the detailed heat and mass balances.

3.2.1 Choice of Electrolyte

From the many electrolytes which have been experimentally studied only one was chosen for analytical study, namely, phosphoric acid, the temperature and concentration of which would be determined by the results of the analysis. Other electrolytes studied experimentally and reasons for their rejection are:

<u>Potassium Hydroxide.</u> Hydrocarbons used directly with this electrolyte exhibit very low performance. Conservation of electrolyte is impossible, since the electrolyte is chemically neutralized by carbon dioxide generated by the hydrocarbon reaction, as well as that carried in the ambient air.

<u>Cation Exchange Membranes</u>. Sulfonic acid ion exchange membranes show low performance for the direct electrochemical oxidation of hydrocarbons, primarily because of their low operating temperature limit, which limits fuel reactivity.

<u>Aqueous Sulfuric Acid.</u> Here again, operation is limited to relatively low temperatures, with consequent low performance. Higher operating temperature would require higher electrolyte concentration which causes sulfur compounds to be formed from chemical reduction of the sulturic acid. The sulfur compounds produced are usually detrimental to the performance of fuel cell electrodes.

<u>Aqueous Hydrofluoric Acid.</u> Water conservation is possible with this electrolyte, but conservation of hydrogen fluoride is not. There is a sufficiently high vapor pressure of HF above the liquid, so that excessive quantities of acid are exhausted to the surroundings from the cathode and anode exhausts. For example, a 500 watt battery operating continuously, using three times stoichiometric air, with the air being cooled to 70°F before being exhausted, would lose almost 4 oz per day of anhydrous HF, which would have to be replaced to maintain electrolyte invariance. If the air were exhausted at 90°F, the loss of HF would almost double.

<u>Ccsium Fluoride + Aqueous Hydrofluoric Acid.</u> The same general remarks apply to this electrolyte as to hydrofluoric acid, although the loss of HF is lcss severe.

<u>Cesium Carbonate.</u> Although unaffected by carbon dioxide, this electrolyte has shown poor performance with hydrocarbons.

One problem which is experienced with phosphoric acid, and not with hydrofluorie aeld, is anodic cycling. Single cells have shown considerable power fluctuations as a function of time. If a stack were constructed with many cells in scries, the power pulsations from the individual cells might tend to cancel one another, resulting in a smoothing of the overall output, or the surges may occur simultaneously, causing massive periodic pulsations. Before a direct hydrocarbon system is built to operate on phosphoric acid, the cycling behavior of multi-cell stacks must first be determined.

For purposes of this study, it was assumed that the ability of the system to maintain conservation of mass was in principle more important than the cycling behavior of multi-cell arrangements which is as yet undetermined. Conservation of mass, as implied here, not only refers to water conservation, but more vitally, that the system needs no makeup of non-logistical and possibly hazardous constituents. Phosphoric acid meets these requirements, since no phosphorous-bearing compounds leave the system, but in the case of hydrofluoric acid, fluorine-bearing compounds (HF) are present in the exhaust air and fuel streams. The recapture of HF would involve unconventional separation techniques, unknown at this time, or refrigeration techniques complicated by the corrosive nature of aerated, moist hydrogen fluoride. For military applications of low power (500 watts) systems, the parasitic power (perhaps 200 watts) for refrigeration techniques would be excessive.

3. 2. 2 Choice of Fuel Vaporization or Injection Procedure

The fuel chosen for the system study was n-octane. The performance of fuels ranging from pentane to octane arc close'y comparable at practical current densities. On the other hand, the fuel efficiency is quite dependent on the boiling point of the fuel. For instance, if the fuel exhaust leaves the system at 85°F, the product carbon dioxide will carry away enough raw fuel to lower the fuel efficiency to 85% in the case of octane, and 60% for heptane (or a common raffinate).

Fuel will be pumped mechanically, since relatively high pressure will be required to overcome manifold and condenser flow resistances. Preliminary calculations showed that ten times stoichiometric fuel could reasonably be vaporized by exchanging heat with the electrolyte. This would allow fuels with boiling points as high as octane to be vaporized at efficient thermal gradients (say, 50°F). Some of the raffinates could be completely vaporized, and fuels such as JP-4 could be partially distilled by adjusting electrolyte temperature.

3.2.3 Choice of Electrolyte Containment Method

Only free phosphoric acid has been experimentally stud of under contract, therefore only a free electrolyte was considered for the system analysis. The bulk of the electrolyte, used for circulation and cooling was held in a "pan" located beneath the cell stack. The pan thus served as an air

2

exhaust manifold, electrolyte reservoir, leakage sump, a cooler for heat dissipation during operation, and a heater for starting the unit with burner flue gas.

3, 2, 4 Choice of Electrode Composition

Electrodes made of Teflon-bonded platinum on tantalum sereen were chosen. These are expensive, but have good performance. Platinum on a boron carbide substrate could have been chosen, which would give longer life and lower cost, at the expense of much poorer performance. Suffice it to say that the "optimum" electrode choice would be a boron carbide electrode exhibiting the performance shown by pure platinum electrodes. Platinum screens were used in some of experimental work, but they are out of the question be- ause of cost (about \$7.07 per square inch).

3.3 PROCESS STREAM ARRANGEMENTS

Preliminary investigations indicated that particular arrangements of process streams were more feasible than others. For example, fuel could be adequately vaporized by exchanging heat from the electrolyte. Reaction air was best proheated by the hot moist exhaust air. Start-up of the unit could be accomplished by heating the electrolyte. The flow sheet based on these concepts is shown in Figure 3.3-1. The system is composed of five main components: fuel cell stack, electrolyte cooler, exhaust air condenser, fuel condenser, and fuel tank. Three pumps are also shown for air, fuel, and electrolyte. In the practical layout, the fuel cell stack and electrolyte cooler are combined into one unit. Fuel is preheated by the electrolyte and fed to the anodes. The electrolyte cooler also serves to catch the acid leakage from the cells. It cont as heat transfer surfaces for removing some reaction heat during steady-state operation, and to be used for start-up by heating with flue gas derived from burning raw fuel.

The fuel tank and pump were sized for ten times stoichiometric fuel flow, (with fuel condensate return) for ten hours continuous operation.

The exhaust air condenser is used to preheat the reaction air, and to cool the exhaust air sufficiently to condense enough water to be returned to the electrolyte for system water conservation. Similarly, the fuel condenser cools and condenses excess fuel and water to be returned to fuel tank and electrolyte, respectively. In the arrangement shown here the cooling air is under forced convection, being supplied on a common pump.

As detailed calculations were being made, it became apparent that the parasitic power required to pump cooling air was excessive because of the arrangement of the exhaust air condenser. The temperature of the exhaust air after it preheats the reactant air is low enough, so that large quantities of cooling air are required to further cool and condense. To avoid the parasitic power requirements, free convection was used for cooling the exhaust air condenser as well as the fuel condenser. Figure 3, 3-2 shows a process flow sheet in which free convection cooling is used. The exhaust air flow is split to the reactant air preheater and the exhaust air condenser. The fuel condenser is also free convection cooled. Otherwise the functions of the components are the same as in Figure 3.3-1. Free convection cooling not only eliminated much of the parasitic power requirements, but also eliminated the necessary ductwork and control valves needed with forced convection streams split from a common air pump. The volume of heat exchangers was not prohibitive, since the free convection heat transfer coefficients were reasonably high. On the other hand, forced convection cooling air might have to be pumped to reasonably high pressures (4 inches H₉O er more), not because of pressure drops through heat exchanger cores, but because of built-in restrictions necessary for proper air distribution. Free convection heat exchangers have intrinsically good air distribution because of the nature of the free convective buoyant driving forces.



3-8



ŝ

3.4 SYSTEM OPTIMIZATION

In a complete system optimization the question first arises as to what basis to use for an optimization. It has already been interfered that cost was not an overriding factor in the optimization study, since platinum electrodes were chosen. It was felt that at this time, the major factors to consider were weight, volume, and overall efficiency. These factors depend on numerous interrelated parameters, such as current density, polarization characteristics, air and fuel flow, ambient temperature, heat losse ,, and the peometry of the stack. To include all these factors simultaneously in a complete system study would involve an intractable hand calculation, or a complice d computer program for which time and money were lacking. It was more advisable to initially separate the cell stack core from the auxiliaries and see if an optimum weight vs. efficiency could be obtained. The optimum form the core analysis would then be integrated to the appropriate auxiliaries for a detailed heat and mars balance calculation, assuming that the optimum core would produce a correspondingly optimum system. Appendix 4.5 pursues the core optimization in more detail. A small computer program was run for the following cell arrangement.

A. Niedrach-Alford type electrodes on expanded tantalum screen, the active area measuring 2 (H) inches high and (L) inches wide. The current was collected from the two opposite edges of the screen in the direction of the height. The type of screen and physical properties were varied to find an optimum.

B. Frames for forming anode at d cathode compartments were assumed to be made from a material Fuch as polyphenylene oxide or polysulfone. These were chosen for their low density and good strength as compared to Teflon, for example. Gas frames were assumed to be 0.5 inch wide and 0.125 inch thick, with one anode chamber feeding two anodes, and likewise for the cathode chamber. The electrolyte frame was assumed to be made of PPO or polysulfor 0, 5 inch wide. The thickness was varied in the optimization study.

The computer plotted curves of the specific weight of the battery core, SWB (lb/KW), is. the height 2 (H) of the electrode active area for various electrode widths (L). A sample of the computer output is shown in Figure 3.4-1. It can be seen that a minimum specific weight (SWB) is obtained at various values of (H) depending on the screen geometry, electrolyte gap, electrode resistivity, current density, and temperature. It can be seen that as (L) is varied from 5 to 25 incher, the specific weight of the battery decreases continuously, and there probably is no maximum value of the electrode width which gives a minimum weight, nor is there any reason for believing such n r.aximum value should exist. However, above electrode widths of 15 inches, it seems as though little weight reduction of the stack is obtained. Fincen inches was thus chosen as a somewhat





arbitrary although seemingly practical value of the width of the electrode active area. Of course, the choice of electrode widths nigher than this value is entirely valid, limited only by manufacturing considerations, such as availability of screen, hydraulic press dimensions, and catalyst spreading techniques.

The specific weight of the stack minimizes at values of the electrody height in the vicinity of 10 inches. Below 10 inches, more cells are needed to produce the same power, since the cell area is smaller. At these conditions, the weight increased because the plastic frames contribute proportionately more weight to the system. Above 10 inches, more cells are needed because a power loss is suffered by the cell current running along large distances (in the direction of the electrode height). Because of this loss, more cells are needed to obtain the same power.

The values of the electrode active area were chosen at 10 inches for the height, which produced minimum weight, and 15 inches for the width, which seemed a practical value, producing a "minimal" weight.

When the data for 2 (H) = 10, (L) = 15 was a alyzed, a parameter called η_{LHV} /SWB was chosen as a rating factor for a core. The efficiency η_{LHV} is defined as the cell net potential divided by the theoretical voltage obtained from the heats of formation of the (octane) reaction:

$$C_8 H_{18}(v) + \frac{25}{2} = O_2 - 8 CO_2 + 5 E_2 O(v)$$

The heats of formation are evaluated at the cell operating temperature for all reactants and products, all in the gas phase. This is different from the actual lower heating value of a fuel, where remetants and products are evaluated at 25°C with the product water as a gas. In the ensuing detailed heat and mass balance, the overall efficiency was calculated by dividing the net power out of the system by the higher heating value of the fuel used, where the product water is considered at 25°C in the liquid phase. SWB is the specific weight of the cell stack core, lb/KW, exclusive of end plates, insulation, and auxiliaries. The core (and perhaps the whole system) will be rated more favorably as η_{LHV} is higher, and as SWB is lower. As SWB decreases, probably the volume of the system also decreases.

For the cases studied, the results are plotted in Figure 3. 4-2 and 3. 4-3. If one examines the trend in the "efficiency weight" parameter with electrode screen resistivity, it is apparent that there is a value of screen resistivity producing a maximum value of the parameter. Electrodes having higher resistivity and correspondingly lower weight, produce higher power losses because of the method of collecting current from the edges of the screen. More cells and more weight are needed to make up the p_{e} ver loss. Screens of low resistance cause less power loss, but because they weigh more per square foot, they also cause the stack weight to increase. For the conditions



Figure 3. 4-2. Efficiency, Weight Parameter for n-Octane/96% wt % H₃PO₄/Air, 600 Watts Gross Output, Operating Temperature = 150°C, Electrode Geometry: 10 inch High x 15 inch Wide





-

Figure 3. 4-3. Efficiency, Weight Parameter for n-Octane/100 wt. % H₃PO₄/Air, 600 Watts Gross Output, Operating Temperature = 180°C, Electrode Geometry: 10 inch Hig! x 15 inch Wide
studied here, a tantalum sereen having a resistivity of 0.0053 ohm per square proved to be the best choice for maximizing the "efficiency, weight" parameter. This particular screen happens also to be one which had been used in the manufacture of most of the electrodes life tested under the ERDL contracts. Appendix 4.6 explains the term "ohm per square" in detail.

Examination of the trend in the weight, efficiency parameter with electroylte gap (Figure 3, 4-4) shows that the rate of increase of the parameter increases with decreasing electrolyte gap. This means the 't is advantageous from a weight standpoint to decrease the gap as much as possible. The pumping power is not great even at very small gaps as is evident from Table 3, 4-1.

Table 3, 4-1

Pumping Power	and Pressure Drop to Pump	Electrolyte Through Stack,
Exclusive of	Manifolds. Flow Rate of H	Electrolyte = 274 lb/hr.
Electrolyte	Pressure Drop,	Pumping Power,
gap, inch	inch H ₂ O	watt
0. 01	38.48	0, 1952
0, 02	4, 81	0. 0244
0.04	0.60	0.0031
0, 06	0. 18	0.0009

The electrolyte gap, therefore, can be reduced to very small values without much penalty in parasitic power, although below 0.02 inch the pressure drop is very high and this may be the real limitation in reducing the electrolyte gap.

For the detailed analysis the electrolyte gap was chosen at 1/16 inch, mainly for reasons of mechanical integrity. The weight was then estimated for the same type of system using 1/32 inch gap. Actually, the total system weight for the 1/32 inch electrolyte gap was only about $7\frac{6}{2}$ lower than for the 1/16 inch gap, since the weight of electrolyte in the pan and the auxiliary weights was a large fraction of the total system weight. After laying out the total system, it was apparent that the pan had to contain a relatively large mass of bulk electrolyte in order to heat the fuel vaporizer contained in the pan. While considerable decrease in weight could be obtained in the stack itself by lowering the gap, the same amount of electrolyte had to be maintained in the pan, which buffered the overall weight decrease to only 7%.

Two eases were taken for detailed calculation at heat and mass balance and conservation for the system. They were:



EN CONTRACTOR OF
-11-14



3-16

ŝ

Case I

T = 150°C operating temperature J = 30 ASF, 600 watts gross power (ρ/t) = 0.0053 ohm per square Electrolyte gap = 1/16 inch Electrolyte concentration $\approx 95\%$ by weight

Case II

T = 180°C operating temperature J = 40 ASF, 600 watts gross power (ρ/t) = 0.0053 ohm per square Electrolyte gap = 1/16 inch Electrolyte concentration \approx 100% by weight

The two cases previously mentioned were calculated by hand according to equations in Appendix 4.7. In essence, the system components were analyzed separately for heat and mass transport to assure self-sustained operation of the fuel cells and then analyzed as a total system for the conservation of water and an overall heat balance. The heat exchangers were sized, parasitic power and heat losses were determined, and overall thermal efficiencies were determined. The detailed results of these calculations are presented in Appendix 4.8.

Table 3. 4-2 summarizes the pertinent results as taken from Appendix 4.8, and Table 3. 4-3 lists the weight breakdown.

The parasitic power requirements if forced convection cooling were used would be 220 watts, if cooling air were supplied at 4 inches H_2O . This would drop the efficiency of the system by 6 percentage points. If cooling air could be properly distributed by 0.5 inch H_2O pressure, the total parasitic power would be 80 watts, lowering the system efficiency by only 2 percentage points. Since reaction air must be supplied at about 14 inches H_2O , a separate blower would be needed for the cooling air. The weight of the forced air-cooled system would be 10% less, and the volume 20% less than the free convection system. The heat exchangers would be about one fourth the size of the free convection case. The weight of the free convection cooled system using 1/32 inch electrolyte gap at 180°C is about 67% of that of the system using 1/16 inch gap at 150°C. In order to obtain this more attractive condition, an electrode with considerably better life would have to be developed, with a minimum of performance penalty. Also, experimental work using very small electrolyte gaps and internal manifolding would have to be done.

Table 3. 4-2

Summary of Results for Direct Hydrocarbon/Air/H₃PO₄ Fuel Cell System Free Convection Cooling

Cell Active Arca = 15×10 inch = 150 in.²

	Case	e I	Case	<u>II</u>
Call operating temperature, °C	150	150	180	180
Flectrolyte gap, inch	1/16	1/32	1/16	1/32
Gross nower. Watts	600	600	600	600
Net nower, watts	543	543	548	548
Overall HHV thermal efficiency, %	2 J	20	28	28
Total system weight, lb	219	202	151	147
Total system envelope volume, \mathfrak{K}^3	8.2	28	≈6.5	26.5
t when of calls in stack	61	61	34	34
Current density, ASF	30	30	40	40
Cell voltage, net, volts	0.32	0.32	0.43	0.43
Woight of cell stack core, 1b	87	70	49	43
Volume of auxiliaries, % of total	40	40	50	50
Ambient temp. at which water				
conservation is maintained, "F	85	85	85	85

It is interesting to note that the optimum current density for the 180°C operating temperature is only 40ASF (vs. 30 ASF for the 150°C case), even though the performance on a registance free basis is much higher at 180°C. This is a result of "edge" current collection, whereby the current must traverse a large portion of the electrode before it is collected at the outer edge of the screen. Even though the higher temperature system is capable of much higher current density, it is wasted by voltage drop in the tantalum screen, and the real advantage to the higher temperature is the lower anodic overpotential.

Table 3, 4-3

Component Weights for the 0.5 KW System, Free Convection Cooling 1/32 Electrolyte gap, inch 1/16 1/32 1/16 Cell operating temp, *C <u>150</u> 150 <u>180</u> 180 Cell core + electrolyte 87.2 70.0 48.4 13.6 13.0 6,0

43.0 0.04 inch thick Ta electrolyte pan 6.0 31.0 31.0 12.1 12.0 Electrolyte in pan End plates, 0.5 inch thick PPO ΰ. 4 6.4 6.4 6,4 1.0 1.0 1.0 Fuel preheater (Teflon) 1.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 2.0 Starter-heater (Ta) 4.0 Insulation 6.6 **ð.**6 4.0 Pumps 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 8.4 **Reaction air preheater + headers (Al) *(2.1) 8.4 8.4 8.4 ******Air exhaust condenser + headers (Al) 16.4 16.4 16.4 16.4 *(4.1) ****Fuel condenser + headers (Al)** *(1.5) 6.0 6.0 6.0 6, 6 1.4 1.4 1.4 1,4 Catalytic burner 2.0 2.0 2.0 2, 0 Auxiliary battery 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 Manifolds and piping 1.0 Fuel tank (0. 04 inch thick Al) 0.8 0.8 1,0 Fuel charge fcr 10 hours 3.8 3.8 4.0 4.0 218.6 201.8 151.1 146.6 Total system weight, lb *(195.5) (178.7) (128.0) (123.5) 268 Specific weight of system, 1b/KW 404 384 276 Percent decrease in specific weight compared to 404 lb/KW 0 5 32 34

* Numbers in parentheses are values for forced convection case.

** Assuming 8% of exchanger core is solid metal and header weight=core weight.

3. CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT OF A 0.5 KW DIRECT HYDROCARBON FUEL CELL SYSTEM

The simplified layout of a 0, 5 KW system for the fuel cell operating temperature of 150°C is shown in Figure 3, 5-1. Components are drawn to scale and located in their final positions except where noted below. Piping and valves have been shown only schematically to simplify the drawing. The system is shown for the free convection eooling case.

The sizing was done on the basis of the detailed heat, mass, and energy balance, based on the use of an optimum cell stick core as derived from the core optimization program. Each component has sizes and functions as described below.

3. 5. 1 Fuel Cell Stack

The stack consists of 54 fuel cells, each having electrode areas measuring 10 x 15 inches. The electrodes are held together by 0.5 inch wide frames made of polypropylene oxide or polysulfone. Pienum chambers above and below the stack serve as air inlet and exhaust manifolds, respectively. The air exhaust manifold also serves to catch electrolyte leakage from the cathodes and direct it to the electrolyte sump. A standpipe on the aix exhaust manifold dips into the electrolyte bulk so that a slight exhaust manifold pressure can be maintained to force exhaust air to the downstream condensers.

Beneath the fuel ccll stack and air exhaust manifold is an electrolyte sump, or pan, which holds about the same amount of electrolyte as do the cells. The tantalum pan holds the fuel vaporizer and preheater in the bath of circulating hot electrolyte. Fuel is preheated and vaporized by the electrolyte heat, distributed to the cells through an end plate, and ported through the plastic frames to the individual anode chambers. The fuel exhaust is gathered by the end-plate and exits at position B in Figure 3.5-1, on its way to the fuel exhaust condenser. At position J, the electrolyte leakage from the anodes is drained off and returned to the bottom of the electrolyte pan.

Electrolyte enters the cell stack at position D and flows upward through the electrolyte chamber. Electrolyte exits through the frames and downward in channels in the other end plate, returning to the pan via the air exhaust manifold. Gas bubbles carried by the electrolyte are easily purged back to the manifold if the return channels in the end plate are large enough. The fuel cell stack and electrolyte pan are covered with 2 inches of "fiberfrax" insulation to avoid excess heat loss. The weight of the cell stack, pan with electrolyte and the fuel vaporizer is thout 130 lb and occupies about 4.6 ft³.

W - 130 Ib V - 46 ft 3 FUEL CELL STACK INSULATION ē 0 UEL PREHEATER FUEL EXHAUST AIR - 33.8"--RETARK REACTION AIR W-8.415 5.11 232.=V RETABHER EXHAUST AIR OVERBOARD EXHAUST AIR CONDENSER W=16.4 tb. V = .63 ft.³ W-ITAN FUEL CONDEN SER, TANK B FUEL W-106B FUEL EXHAUST OVERBOARD \bigcirc FLUE 4 TOP







Conceptual Layout of 0.5 KW Direct Hydrccarbon/Air/H₃PO₄

Figure 3. 5-1.

Fuel Cell System, 150°C Operating Temperature

3.5.2 Reaction Air Preheater

-

The reaction air preheater is an aluminum plate-fin heat exchanger which accepts part of the hot, moist cathode exhaust and preheats the ambient reaction air by forced convection. The exhaust air flow is split by a value at position A which is thermostatically controlled by sensing the preheated reaction air temperature. The water condensate at position C is fed under gravity back to the electrolyte pan.

The exhaust air is split into parallel streams through the preheater and the exhaust air condenser so that reaction air can be preheated efficiently by taking advantage of the high exhaust air temperature and at the same time minimize the size of the exhaust air condenser. If the exhaust air cooling were done in two series arranged heat exchangers, the exhaust air condenser would be larger, because the temperature rise available for subcooling the air exhaust would be lower.

The reaction air preheater weighs 8.4 lb and occupies about 0.365 it³.

3.5.3 Exhaust Air Condenser

This unit accepts the remainder of the exhaust air, cools it, and condenses water by use of free convection air on the fin side of an aluminum plate-fin heat exchanger. Water condensate is returned to the electrolyte pan. Free convection heat exchanger characteristics were sized on the basis of experimental work cone on another General Electric-sponsored fuel cell program. The weight of the exhaust air condenser is 16.4 lb and occupies 0.63 ft³.

3. 5. 4 Fuel Condenser and Tank

Fuel exhaust is ducted to this aluminum plate-fin heat exchanger and is cooled by free convection air, condensing water and excess fuel. The water is not needed for water conservation in the system and may either be drained off every 10 hours and discarded, or returned manually to the electrolyte pan just prior to shutdown. This extra water will dilute the electrolyte to help avoid solidification upon cooling down the unit. The weight of the condenser and aluminum fuel tank filled with 10 hours worth of fuel is 10.6 lb and occupies $0.3 + \text{ft}^3$.

3. 5. 5 Electrolyte Cooler and Starter-Heater

This unit consists of a burner box with a finned tube through which electrolyte is circulated. The finned tube is 1/2 ...ch OD tantalum tubing, 20 inches long, with ten 1.5 inch diameter fins to the linear inch. At steady-state operation, free convection air takes residual heat from the electrolyte. For start-up, raw fuel and air is burned and heats $u_{\rm F}$ he flowing electrolyte and the cell stack in 15 minuter. The weight of this component is about 1 lb and its volume is contained within the envelope of the fuel cell stack.

3, 5, 6 Air Pump

Reaction air is fed at about 14 inches H_2O pressure. Some air is split off at position H to be fed to the catalytic b. ner to burn residual hydrocarbons in the fuel exhaust. Air is diverted by a selector value at position E to the starter-heater for system start-up. The power required for a drag compressor type pump is about 50 watts for the needed capacity. Such a pump would weigh about 1 lb.

3.5.7 Acid and Fuel Pumps

The pumping power is low (10 watts) to pump fuel and aeid, but the pumps will probably have to be of special design. The two pumps will probably be run from a common motor. The acid pump recirculates electrolyte in the sump, providing uniform temperature and mixing. It also pumps part of the electrolyte flow through the cell stack at location D. The fuel pump has a selector valve, F, which allows raw fuel to be diverted to the starter-heater for warm-up of the unit. If est eptionally low ambients are encountered, the fuel may be needed continuously to keep the unit running in a self-sustained mode.

3. 5. 8 Auxiliary Battery for Start-Up

A niekel cadmium battery sized for 25 watthours will provide start-up power to run pumps and blowers and a spark plug system ior 15 minutes. The battery will be recharged over an 8-hour period, for which the fuel cell is penalized. The characteristics of 12 watthour/lb and 1.5 watthour/ cubic inch give a battery which weighs about 2 lb and occupies about 17 in. $\frac{3}{2}$.

3.5.9 Catalytic Burner

19, 24. ж In order to lower the amount of raw hydrocarbons thrown overboard from the aim-de exhaust, a catalytic burner is used. This unit contains a platinoid catalyst on a ceramic substrate which chemically burns hydrocarbons in the vapor phase if about 200% excess air is present. The unit 0.3 to operate at 800°F. With the amount of exhaust octane in Case I (150°C cell operating temperature), the flame temperature would be about 1300°F. With heat losses and adjustment in excess air if desired, the 800°F operating temperature could easily be maintained. The burner can operate up to 1100°F with the only penalty being a sacrifice in longevity.

The reactor was designed as a cylindrical bed of 1-1/4 inch OD tubing, 8 inches long. This will hold the required 8 in.³ of catalyst operating at a total gas space velocity of 10,00° ft³ per hour of total gas per ft³ of eatalyst. To start the reactor, exhaust flue gases will be diverted from the starter-heater at location G to heat the catalytic burner, while the rest of the unit is heating up.

Combustion air will be taken from the air fan at location H. The catalytic burner would more likely be located just above the starter-heater, so that full advantage could be taken of the burner flue gas for fast start-up. The weight of the eatalytic burner is about 1.4 lb.

Exhaust gas treatment by adsorption was also investigated. If a bituminous activated carbon, such as Pittsburg Activated Carbon Company's BPL carbon, is used, which has a capacity of about 0.3 gram of octane per gram of carbon, a volume of 152 in.³ would be required. This would last about 20 operating hours if used to full capacity, and then would either have to be reg nerated or discarded. In view of the bulky size of the unit and the inconvenient logistics, the adsorption concept was dropped.

3.6 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. The most practical electrolyte to use for the direct hydrocarbon fuel cell is phosphoric acid, because it shows good performance, does not form poisonous chemical byproducts, is invariant and tolerant to carbon dioxide, and is mass conservative in phosphorous compounds. Anodic cycling with this electrolyte may prove to be a difficulty, but as yet, no other practical electrolyte has solved the problem. Hydrofluoric acid, although it prevents anodic cycling, is not considered a practical electrolyte from the standpoint of conservation of hydrogen fluoride as well as corrosion and hazard to personnel.

Anodic cycling of multi-cell stacks using phosphoric acid has not been evaluated. This must be investigated before any attempt is made to build a total system, because the possibilities exist that cycling in a multi-cell arrangement might be self-damping or self-amplifying.

2. The optimum electrode structure is a Teflon-bonded platinum electrode which shows potentially the best performance. The very high cost of this structure, compounded with its short life, could possibly be solved in the future with substrates such as boron carbide, although today they give relatively poorer performance.

Substrates should continue to be emphasized, and a step beyond may also be taken, namely, the study of matrix electrolytes, which would allow both cost and weight reduction.

3. The fuel for a direct hydrocarbon system should have good performance commensurate with a low enough vapor pressure to minimize fuel losses. The fuel most favorable in these respects is normal octane, although its cost is high.

4. Calculations indicate that the electrode size should be 1 rge for minimum system weight. Additional work should be done to scale up to sizes in the vicinity of 10 by 15 inches active area. Since such electrodes for use with liquid electrolytes are extremely difficult to manufacture, the matrix cell may prove beneficial to solve these p oblems.

5. Calculations have shown that for a 500 to 600 watt system, free convection cooling of the fuel and water condensers is necessary to minimize parasitic power and to eliminate a second air pump for supplying cooling air. If forced convection cooling air can be supplied and properly distributed at very low pressures, say 0.5 inch H_2O , then parasitic power is not excessive and the system weight and volume can be reduced by 10 and 20%, respectively.

6. The system should operate at 150°C with about 96% phosphorie acid. Conservation of mass is possible at reasonable ambients, the system efficiency is reasonable, and electrode life is superior to that at higher temperature. Electrolyte gap affects the stack weight strongly, but the system weight slightly, unless the bulk electrolyte used for preheating the fuel can be reduced appreciably. Designing for higher operating temperature lowers the system weight very strongly, but life is shorter and more elaborate arrangements to prevent acid solidification from hampering start-up and operation may have to be devised.

4.0 APPENDIX

4.1 <u>METAL OXIDE - NOBLE METAL CATALYSTS</u>

4.1.1 Oxide Catalysts (L. W. Niedrach, J. Haworth)

Table 4. 1-1 lists the characteristics and properties of oxide catalysts. Table 4. 1-2A thru 4. 1-2C gives electrode composition and cell performance data with oxide catalysts of the PB series, PW and Ti series, and the Cr and Nb series, respectively. Table 4. 1-3 lists corrosion test results on oxides.

4.1.2 Preparation of a Supported Pt/Ru Electrode (D. W. McKee)

The preparation of a typical electrode of composition 10% (Pt - 20%Ru) - B₄C, as used for fuel cell tests with hydrogen-carbon monoxide fuels, is described below.

Stock solutions containing 12.34 gm Pt "P" salt, $Pt(NH_3)(NO_2)_2$, and 5.019 gm ruthenium nitrosohydroxide, $RuNO(OH)_3$. H_2O , in 100 ml of 50% nitric acid were prepared. These solutions contained 0.0753 gm Pt/ml and 0.0273 gm Ru/ml, respectively.

To 15 gm of boron carbide, which had been previously ground and sieved to 400 mesh, were added 15.9 ml of the Pt salt solution and 10.8 ml of the Ru salt solution and the mixture diluted to 50 ml. The suspension was mixed thoroughly and then evaporated to dryness under a heat lamp. The dry catalyst was then ground and sieved through a 400 mesh nylon screen. Finally, the catalyst was reduced in flowing hydrogen at 125°C in a tube furnace for three hours and then cooled in nitrogen.

To 0. 468 gm of the dry catalyst were added 24 drops of water, 15 drops of Triton X-100 wetting agent and 0. 07 ml Teflon T-30 suspension (containing 59% solids). The paste was then spread on a weighed 1 7/8 inch disc of platinum gauze (45 mesh, 0. 0078 inch diameter wire). After drying on a hot plate in air and then in a vacuum desiccator overnight, the electrode was weighed again to determine the total weight of catalyst. The electrode was then sprayes on one side with a Teflon suspension, using 2. 25 ml of a 1:7 T-30:water suspension on a 5 x 5 inch area. The electrode was finally cured on a hot plate at 350°C to give a final composition of 10% (Pt - 20%Ru) - B₄C and a catalyst loading of 2.6 mg/cm² of electrode area.

The exact details of preparation vary according to the composition of the catalyst.

Tabla 4. 1-1

Characteristics and Properties of Oxide Catalysis

Sample No.	trival	Nominal Composition	Prepared from Sample No.	Trentment H ₂ Red'n. Conditions	Phases librit, from X-TAy	Resistivity, ohm	Surface Area, m ² /gm
5525-53A		lecr_0 - WO	CrCi_+H_WO	Ppt. air dried at 150°C	-	-	
#828-05B		16 Cr_0. • WO	5 2 4 5525-53A	Reduced at 500°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	WO, + W(tr)	. 10	
1018-55A		. 23 4	8528 -53A	Reduced at 500°C, 4 br; cooled Ar	WO + W(tr)	. 12	3. 8
8928-55H		11	8828-55A	EE l'd'ad air dried, reduced at 150°C, 2 br	Pt + WO_ + tetr. (A)	1, 300	
8528 +56A		**	8528-55 M	Re-reduced at 150°C. 2 hr	Pt + WO, + tetr, (8)	250	
8828-8713			6326-55A		$Pt + WO_{-} + 7 (tr)$	2, 5	
4582-57A		**	502#-55A	2% Pt'ad ^(A) vac dried, reduced at 150°C, 2 hr	$Pt + WO_2 + ? (tr)$	0.2	
5528-53B		. 15 CT 303 . MO3	CrCl2+H2WO4	Ppt. air dried at 180°C			
8528-551		, 13 Cr_0 - WO	8528-53B	Reduced at \$00°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	$WO_2 + W(tr)$	0. 20	
\$328-54D		8*	652 -53 R	Reduced at 500°C, 4 br; cooled Ar	$WO_2 + W(tr)$ (a)	0, 31	0, 2
8828-60A			8325-54D	9% Pt'zd ^{en} vac dried, reduced at 150°C, 3 hr	$Pt + WO_2 + tetr, (**)$	2. 0	
8528-29-2		. 33 Cr ₂ O ₃ · WO ₂	CrCl2 + H2WO4	Ppt. air dried at 150°C	-	-	
6028-35A		. 32 Cr. 0 WO	6528-29-2	Reduced at 000°C, 4 hr; coolad Ar	WO2 + tetr + W(tr)	0.2	
1525-48A		. 23 Cr. O WO.	CrCl +H WO	Ppt. air dried at 150°C			
5828-49B		. 33 Cr. 0 . WO	8828-48A	Reducad at 800°C, 4 br; cooled Ar	WO2 + tetr. (a)	5.7	
8528-50A			A328-49A	Reduced at 600°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	WO2 + tetr. (*)	1, 2	9, 2
5928-60B		11	8328-59A	Pt'zd ^(R) vac dried, reduced at 130°, 2 hr	Pt + tetr, (e)	5.8	
8528-85A			8528-49A	Air at 500°C, 4 hr -> H, at 500°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	WO, + tetr. ^(*) (< 49B)	-	0.4
5028-85B		"	\$326-49A	H_g at 000°C, 4 hr \rightarrow air at 800°C, 4 hr \rightarrow H_g at 800°C, 4 hr	$WO_2 + \underline{tetr}_1^{(e)} + W(tr)$	-	9.1
0028-162B		.80 Cr_0_ · WO_	Cr(NO_) + H_WO,	Ppi. air dried at 160°C	-	-	
8528-104B		. 80 Cr203 · WOx	8528-197 ¹⁰	Reduced at 600°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	$WO_2 > W + Cr_2O_2(tr) + tetr^{(-)}(tr)$	1, 570	
5618-50-2Pt			5025-104B	9% Pt'ad ⁽⁸⁾ vac dried	(4)	2,050	
\$528-102A	. 79	. 50 Cr.O WO.	CrCl + H,WO	Ppt. air dried at 150°C			
8520-103A		. 10 CT_0_ · WO	6528-162A	Reduce-1 at 800°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	<u>tetr</u> ^(A) + Cr ₂ O ₃ (tr) + W(tr)	734	
8641-36A + B			8528-103A	9% Pt'zd ^(b) air dried 159°C		250, 000	
5641-71B		•	8641-36A + B	Reduced at 150°C, 2 hr			
8641-58		*	5028-103A	24% Pt'zd ^(b) air dried 150°C			
9641-59			8541-58	Reduced at 180°C, 2 br		285	
#618-80-1Pt		n	5025-103A	9% Pt'ad ⁽⁸⁾ vac dried, reduced at 150°C, 2 hr		200	
\$670-19A		*	0528-162A	Reduced at 600°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	W + <u>i sr</u> (*) + Cr ₂ O ₂		
8641-93		*	\$526-162A	Reduced at 700°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	Cr.0., >WO, +W +WO, (r)	17,009	
8670-21A		, 80 Cr_O, + WO,	CrCl. + B.WO.	Ppt. air dried at 150°C			
4641-107B		. 50 Cr_O_ / WO_	3 2 4 8670-21A	Reduced at 500°C, 4 hr; cooled H. (7)	W>Cr_O_ + #W	2 x 10 ⁸	
5641-108B		22 8	6.70-21A	Reduced at 200°C, 4 br; cooled H	W + 1 matr ^(®) > Cr_0	25, 900	
9641-112A		**	8679-21A	Reduced at 900°C, 4 hr, cooled H	W+tetr ^(e) > Cr ₂ O	39,000	
8641-109B		. 80 CT_O_ · WO_	5676-21A	9% Pt'ad ^(b) air dried at 150°C		2, 5 a 10 ⁸	
8441-114B		2 3 •	8641-109B	Reduced at 900°C, 4 hr; cooled H 2	Pt + Cr ₂ O ₃ + tetr ^(e)	3, 100	
8441-110B			0976-21A	32 Pt'z4 ^(C) air dried at 150°C		-	
8441-1138		٣	8670-21A	9% Pt'ad ⁽⁰⁾ air dried at 150°C		. 9 A 16 ⁹	
8641-118D		н	#\$41-110B + 113B	Reduced at 600°C. 4 hr; cooled H2	Pt + WO ₂ + tetr ⁽⁰⁾ + Cr.O.(tr)	209	
			4870-914	9% Pt'rd ⁽⁸⁾ str dried at 150°C, reduced at 150°C, 2 br	2 2 2	360, 000	
		**	###1-11PD	Bedward at 600°C 4 hr: cooled H (d)	Pt + WO + tetr ⁽⁸⁾ +	3, 490	
6441-1140					Cr ₂ O ₃ (tr)	-,	
8328-29-1	. 92	Cr202 · W03	CrCi3 + H2WO4	Ppt. air dried at 150°C	(8)	-	
8828-32A		Cr203 · WO	A528-29-1	Reduced at 800°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	tetr. "" + Cr 202	400	
6525-33A		Cr202 WO	CrCl3 + H2WO4	Ppt. air dried at 150°C	(4)	-	
A929-95B		Cros WO	\$525-\$3A	Reduced at \$00°C, 4 hr; cooled Ar	var. setr, (*) + Cr ₂ O ₂	2,000	7.0
8428-96N			5828-93A	Air 800°C, 4 hr \Rightarrow red. H ₂ 600°C, 4 hr: Ar	var. tetr. (*) + Cr2WO3	8, 800	11, 4
8828-96P		**	\$525-\$3A	$H_{g'}$ 500°C, 4 hr + air, 300°C, 4 hr + $H_{g'}$ 300°C, 4 hr	var. tetr. (*) + Cr203	8, 500	0.0
A328-94A		B7	6828-93A	Air, 600°C, 4 hr	var. tetr. $\frac{1}{100}$ + Cr ₂ WO ₂	4, 000	
5828-96M			#328-93A	H2 500°C, 4 hr-eair, 200°C, 4 hr	var. tetr. $\frac{(4)}{(7)}$ + Cr ₂ O ₃	24, 000	
8528-96L			#525-92A	9% Pt'sd ⁴²⁷ vac dried, reduced at 150°C, 2 hr	var. tetr. "" + Cr 0 + Pt	8. 300	

(a) H₂ PtCl₃ platinization.

(b) "P" sait (Pt (NH3)2(NO2)2) platimization.

(c) (NH₂), PtCl. platinization.

(d) Conied to with H2, then Ar to room semperature.

(a) Unidentifi ___tragonal pheas believed to be Cr_WOg.



ୁ ନ

11 ±

Table 4.1-1 (Cont.)

Sample No.	Actual	Nominal Composition	Prepared ' om Sample No.	Tresiment H _g Red'n, Conditions	Phases Ident. from X-ray	Healstivily, ohm	Burface Area, m ² /gm
8641-11		Cr.O. WO	6826-93 H	9% Pt'zd (b) air dried at 150°C	var. tetr. (e) + Cr.O.	31, 000	
8841-13A		23 8	8528 \$3B	\$% Pt'ad ^(D) van dried	var. teir. (c) + Cr.O.	17.000	
H\$41-12		**	8841-13A	Dried at 150°C	var. tetr. (e) + Cr. O	50.000	
5841-71A			x641-12	Reduced at 150°C. 2 hr	23		
8641-81		**	8598-63A	Reduced at 700°C is brick recolled	tetr ^(e) + Cr O + 7	45 000	
8641-86		**	8825-93A	Reduced at 800°C. 4 hr: Ar cooled	Cr O + WO	230.000	
6841-87A		"	8841-58	Reduced at 800°C, 4 hr, Ar cooled	$Cr_2O_3 + WO_3 + W(am)$	190,000	
8641-67B		*	8841-87A	Reduced at 800°C, 4 hr; Ar cooled	$Cr_{2}O_{3} + WO_{3} + W(m)$	79,000	
8841-94		**	8528-93A	Reduced at 750°C, 4 hr; Ar cooled	$Cr_{2}O_{3} + WO_{3} + W(m)$	54,000	
8641-107A		*	8528-93A	Reduced at 800°C, 4 hr; cooled H	$W + Cr_{2} \Im_{3}(m) + W_{3}O$	10"	
8641-108A		10	5828-93A	Reduced at 700°C, 4 hr; cooked H (0)	tetr. $^{(0)}$ > W > Cr ₂ O ₃	53, 000	
5641-111		**	8529-93A	Reduced at 800°C, 4 hrs; a noled H	tetr. (e) + Cr20,(tr) + W(tr)	24, 000	
8841-109A			8836-93A	9% Pe'zd. ^(b) air dried at 150°C		10"	
8841-114A			8641-109A	Reduced at 800°C, 4 hr; cooled H ₂ ^(d)	Pt + W + (Cr ₂ O ₄ + WO ₂) ?	3.00	
8641-110A			AL5-8288	9% Pt'ad. ^(C) air dried at 150°C	• • •	-	
8841-113A		**	8528-93A	\$% Pt'rd. ^(C) air dried at 150°C		6, 600	
8641-116C		87	8641-110A + 113A	Reduced at 800°C, 4 hr; couled H ₃ ^(d)	Pt + leir. ^(#) + WO ₂ + Cr _n 0 ₄ (tr)	517	
8641-113C			8828-93A	#E Pt'ad. ^(a) air dried at 189°C	23	266, 900	
6641-114C		**	8641-113C	Reduced at 800°C, 4 hr; cooled H ₂ ⁽⁶⁾	Pt + totr. ^(e) + WO ₂ + Cr.O.(tr)	53	
8711-17			8528-93A	17% Pt'ad. (a) air dried at 150°C	2 3.		
8711-19		34	8711-17	Reduced at 800°C, 4 hr; cooled H ₃ ^(d)			
852 8-96 K		wo ₃	8418-14-4	6% Pt'ad, ^(A) vac dried, reduced at 150°C, 3 hr		2.890	
8528-36-1	, 783	1 TIO2 · WO3	TICI4 + H2WO4	Ppt. air dried at 150°C			
8528-42G		1 TiO ₂ · WQ	6828-35-1	Reduced 850°C, 4 hr	₩>"\$₩">₩0	8.2	
\$528-38A		"	8829-36-1	Vacuum 900°C, 2 hr	WO3 + WO3 + TIO2	1.3	
8528-41A		*	8828-36-1	Vacuum 900°C, 2 hr → H _g 850°C, 4 hr	W + W ₅ O + TIO ₃ + WO ₃	, 15	
8328-46A			6528-36-1	Reduced 650°, 20 hr	W + TIO2	. 1	
8528-47 J		**	9528-36-1	Reduced #"0 , 4 hr	$WO_2 + W_3O + W(sm)$, 54	
6670-20A		a1	8828-36-1	Reduced 850°, 4 hr			
8641-182A		"	8670-70A	Pt'zd. ⁽⁸⁾ vac dried, reduced 150°C, 2 hr			
\$528-36-2	. 26	. 33 TIO. · WO.	TICI, + H.WO,	Ppt. air dried at 150°C			
8328-42H		. 33 TIO WO.	8628-26-3	Reduced \$50°C, 4 hr	W > " &W" >NO.	0, 1	
8528-41B		2 A	8528-34-2	Vacuum 900°C 2 hr→ H., 650°C, 4 hr	" \$W" + WO_ + TIO	9.66	
8528-46B		*	8526-36-2	Reduced \$50°C. 20 hr	¥ + " 5W"	.12	
8528i7K		"	8528-36-2	Reduced 800°C, 4 hr	WO + W(tr)	, 16	
					4		
8528-36-3	. 071	. 18 TIO2 · WO3	TICI + H WO	Ppt. air dried at 150°C) wo₂ ≫w + " ∌w" (
8528-421		. 10 TIO2 · WO	8828-36-3	Reduced 550°C, 4 hr	/ w> " # w">>> wo ₃)	9. 2	
8328-102C		TIO2 · WO3	$TiCl_4 + H_2WO_4$	Ppt. air dried at 150°C			
8528-104G		³ TiO ₂ ' WO ₂	8528-102C	Reduced 650°C, 4 hr	$TiO_2 + WO_2$ (?)		
8028-100A		1102	1101	Pps, air dried at 150°C	2 10		
8525-104F		TIO + B C	8528-100A	Reduced 650°C, 4 hr	TIO ₃		
100-100r		2 4	4528-1022	a pa, wit utter at 100 0 Darborad 45090 A be			
4544-1090			Bulli A machine		110 ₂ + B ₄ C (?)		
8528-104A		and a standard	8528-102G	Reduced 850°C, 4 hr	TiO ₂		
6320-102E		N5_0_ · W0_	Mb_Cl_ + H_WO.	Ppt. air dried at 150°C			
8528-104E		2 5 3 No.O. · W	3 8 2 4 8528-102E	Reduced \$50°C, 4 hr	W + 8 Nb_O_ + NbO_ (?)		
8328-102D		5 Nb_O WO.	Nb_Cl_ + H_WO	Pot. air dried at 160°C	3 8 2 1		
8528-104D		5 Nb_0, - WU	3 8 2 4 8578-102D	Reduced \$50°C. 4 hr	6 Nb_0_ > W + NbO		
8828-1000		2 8 x	ND CL	Pot. air dried at 150°C	2 8		
\$528-104C		Mo ₃ O ₂	\$529-100C	Reduced \$50°C, 4 hr	Nbg05 + Nb02 + 7		
8641-1390		BC	Norbide	25% pt'zd. (b), all driad 150%			
8711-41R		B C	Lat No. 1000 PW	9% pt'ad (h) air dried 150°C			
A711-498		R C		17% pt'rd. (b) air dried 180°C			
V 44.0		-,-					

4-3

18. 28.

	-1	ante al subs				
Composition and	Cell	Performance	Data ^(#)	with	Oxide	Ca

Electrod talysta The PB. Series

	Р.							Electrode			Anode	vo Hel.	Voila @	D).0	vem ²
Electrode No.	mg.'em ²	Comments	ड्रमा	Pt'ad Material	gm.	Material	T-30, ce	Preparation Painted Pressed	Cell No.	¥ CO	20	5 0	100	200	390
958	5	0.1 CT 0 WO	0.31	#641-13B + C	0. 31	8528-55A	0, 10	x	PB-1	2	. 020	. 059	, 093	, 112	, 126
942	3	0.9 Cr.O. WO	0,3		0.3	8528-103A	0.20	x	PB-3	з	. 02*	, 062	, 140	. 440	
862*	8	"	0.3		0. 3	*8	0.20	Above 200 pet	PB-3	2	, 055	, 127	. 207	, 306	
848	5		0.3	81	0.3		0. 10	x	PB-4	2	. 0 35	. 073	. 054	, 129	, 140
368	3		0, 3	**	0.5	19	0, 133	x	PB-5	2	. 033	, 137	, 203	256	. 294
863	3	ta	0.3		ə. 9	44	0.10	X 200 pet	PB-6	2	. 030	. 105	159	, 305	, 333
873	5	4+	0.3		0, 3		0, 10	x	PB-7	2	. 055	. 110	. 162	. 283	290
874	3	44	0, 3	**	0, 3	*	0.06	x	PB-8	2	. 028	.059	. 095	. 11×	. 122
979	\$	0.33 Cr_O_ + WO_	0.3	11	0, 3	8528-50A	9, 10	x	PB- 9	2	. 015	. 036	. 065	. 0+2	059
984	3	C. O WO	0, 3	**	0.3	8528-95B	0.06	x	PB-10	2	,020	640	. 050	. 077	054
		23 1								5	, 025	056	. 098	, 133	
								•		10	, 052	. 09×	. 185	. 390	
	3	0. B CP 0 . WO	0, 3		0.3	8328-103A	0.04	x	PB-11	2	. 012	.032	. 071	, 114	
										10	. 067	125	. 1+3		
992	5	Cr205 WOx	0. 3		0. 3	8641-61	0.06	x	PB-12	2	, 019	. 033	. 051	. 057	
		red. 700*C								10	030	. 965	. 097	. 186 . 326	
	3	. Cr.O WO.	0.3		0. 3	8641-63	0.06	x	PB-13	2	. 017	. 036	045	. 090	. 110
		2 3 8 red. 709°C								5	. 032	. 065	. 094	179	. 166
										11	. 050	, ng ;	. 135	, 197	. 272
1000	8		0.3		0.3	CF 0	0,10	x	P8-14	5	. 233	. 288 . 356	. 305	. 304	
1013	3	Cr_O_ WO	0, 3	8641-13B + C	0, 3	5641-107A	0.10	x	PR-15	\$.017	. 045	0×2	10*	. 122
		2 3 X red. 800°C								5	. 039	983	. 118	. 159	. 205
	-									10	, 064	, 113	. 171		•••••
1014	3	Cr23 WO	0.3	-	0.3	8541-108A	0.10	x	PB-16	2 5	,018	, 045 078	. 081	, 106	. 117
		Ped. 700°C								10	. 058	. 103	145	. 295	
1013	5	Cr303 WO	0.3	**	0, 3	8641-111	0.10	x	PB-17	2	. 014	, 036	. 068	, 089	. 099
		red. 600°C								5	. 027	, 066 , 093	.095	, 127	, 149
1016	5	. 8 Cr. 0. WO	0.3	٠	0.3	#641-112A	0.10	x	PD-18	2	. 920	. 047	. 063	. 110	. 124
		re1, 600°C								5	. 024	. 060	. 091	. 120	.140
									after Ar purge	3	. 034	. 045	, 054	. 145	, 176
1617	3	. Cr.O WO	0,3		0, 3	8641-108B	0.10	x	PB-19	2	. 014	.040	. 073	. 099	. 112
		red. 700°C								5	, 028	. 071	. 103	. 148	. 195
1014		1 C= 0 - WO				4441 J070	0.10	~	DD 40	10	. 942	, 0014	, 131	. 221	
	•		v. 3		0.5	0041-101B	V, IV	^	P D-4V	ŝ	. 026	. 066	. 094	. 120	, 155
		100.0000							-	10	. 042	. 083	. 112	. 161	, 296
1607		C= 0 . WO					a 1 a		aner Al parge	3		. 000	. 051	, 104	, 122
	*	23 44	v. a		0. 5	0320-930	0.10	^	PB-21	3	. 042	,060 ,095	.128	. 177	. 128
										10	. 080	, 150	8.5		
1024	1.6	Cr203 · WO	e. 3	8711-41В 9% рг. В ₄ С	0.3	8641-111	0.10	x	PB-22	2	. 096	. 226	. 303		
1025	1.6	. 8 Cr 303 · WO	0,3	-	÷. 3	6641-112A	0,10	x	PB-23	H2	Polari	ted at 30	ma.em ³		
1024	3	Cr303 · WON	0.3	6711-42B 17% Pt B C	6.3	8641-111	0. 10	x	PB-21	2 3	. 047 . 091	. 103 . 173	, 147 , 333	, 239	. 263
1927	3	. 8 Cr303 - WO	ə, 3			5J81-112A	0,10	x	PB-25	2	. 040	. 093	.144	. 254	. 262

⁽²⁾Cell performance data 1s for an 65°C 5 <u>N</u> H₃80₄ acid cell using synthetic reformer gas xx x fuel.

≡**i** - Hilli

4-4

2

						The PW- and	i Ti- Series								
								Electrode			Anode	vs. Hef.	Yalis 😑	121	a/cm ²
Electrode No.	13. mg/cm ²	Commenta	<u>gm</u>	Pt'zd Material	gan	Material	T-30, ec	Preparation Painted Preased	Cetl No.	1 00	20	50	100	200	300
900	3	9% Pt'zd Cr ₂ 0 ₂ · WO _X	0, 6	8641-12			0. 10	x	₽₩ -1	2			н. я. ^{(t})	
959	3	*	0.0	14			9, 06	2100 pai	P₩-2	2			H, R.		
961	2	9% Pilad . 6 Cr _p O _g · WO	0.6	8641-36AB			0 20	x	PW -3	2			Н. Н.		
962	1.0	"	0.3	1+	0,3	вс	0.20	x	PW-4	2	. 060	. 131	, 1#3	, 393	• • • • •
\$63*	1.8	br	0,3	**	0. a	**	0. 20	Above 200 pel	₽₩ -5	2			H. R.		
879	8	28% Ft'ad . 8 Cr ₂ O ₃ · WO ₃	0. 2	8041-59	0.3	**	0. 1	x	₽₩-6	2	. 037	. 070	, 108	, 301	
\$63	3	+.6Cr203-WO	0.3	**	0, 3	8528-10 2A	0.06	x	PW-7	2			H. R.		
802	6	28% Pt ad .8 Cr_03 · WO	0.3	**	0, 3	B ₄ C	0.00	x	PW-8	2 5 10	. 915 . 921 . 954	. 064 . 071 . 241	145 . 463	. 152	
980	0	"p" sait pt'ad ", \$" after red.	0.4	8641-36AB	0, 2	6641-13BC	0. 10	x	PBW-1	2 3 19		.033 .071 .093	.060 .107 143	.112 .147 .202	
រុប10	5	"p" sait pi'zd "1" belore red.	0, 44	8641-114A	0, 16	**	0. 10	x	PW-9	2 8 10	014 025 034	, 039 , 067 , 058	. 074 . 107 . 133	. 106 . 172 . 245	, 131 , 244
1011	5	H2 ^{Pt"1} 0 pt'ad "1" Fuluru red.	0.44	6641-114C	0.10	**	0, 10	x	PW-16	2 0	. 037 . 048 . 074	. 056 . 109 . 146	.117 .189 .471	. 171 . 418	. 231 , 39E
1012	8	(NH _S)4 ^{PICI} 2 pt'zd ''1" before red.	0, 44	8641-110C	0, 10	"	0. 10	x	PW-11	2 5 10	. 028 . 036 . 068	. 072 . 031 . 129	. 106 . 131 . 234	. 144 . 229 . 016	. 190 . 238
1022	3	ajore .,1,, p;, sq, 1,,	0,6	6641-114A			0.10	x	PW-12	2 5 10	. 018 . 035 . 129	. 045 . 098 . 379	. 093	. 127	. 174
1019	0	"p" sait pt'ad ", \$" before red.	0. 44	6 8641-114B	0, 18	5641-1 28 C	0. 1	x	PW-13	2 6 19	, 022 , 038 , 069	. 055 . 097 . 172	. 099 . 142 . 209	. 133 . 278	, 181
1020	5	H ₂ PtCl ₀ pi'ad ". \$" before red.	9, 44	6641-114D	0. 10	1 "	0.1	×	PW-14	2 5 10	. 020 . 038 . 078	.050 .055 .132	.085 .117 .241	. 105 . 174	. 122
1021	8	(NH ₃) 4 ^{PtCl} 2 pt'zd ". 8" before red.	0. 44	6 8641-11CD	0, 16	1 "	0, 1	x	PW-15	2 0	, 033 , 062	. 077 . 102	. 103 . 161	. 171	
858	24	TIO2 · WO3 800°C vac	0.0	Pt black	0, 11	0528-38A	0.06	x	T]-1	2		. 123	, 236	, 456	
668	24	" + red.	0,8	**	0, 12	8020-41A	Ũ, 06	x	T1-2	2		. 012	. 122	. 178	
859	24	. 32 TiO ₂ · WO ₃ 800°C vac and red.	0.6	**	0, 1;	8528-41B	0. 96	x	Tf-3	2		. 018	, 036	, 067	. 110
882	34	TiO ₂ , WO ₃ red. 050°C	0,6	**	0.1	8529-42G	0, 06	x	T1-4	2		. 010	. 022	, 032	. 064
863	34	. 32 TiO ₂ · WO ₃ red. 050°C	0.0	**	0.1	2 8228-42H	0.06	x	T1- 5	2		. 029	, 058	, 968	. 106
664	24	. 10 710 ₂ · WC ₃ red. \$50°C	0.6	**	0, 1	2 0028-421	0, 06	х	T1-#	2		. 038	. 064	.146	
871	34	TIO ₂ · WO ₃ red. 050°C, 20 hr	0, 6	*	0.1	2 0225-46A	0.06	x	TI- 7	2		. 021	, 036	. 084	. 122
672	24	TiO ₂ · WO ₃ red. 000°C	0, 6	**	0, 1	2 8528-47J	0, 06	x	T1-8	2		. 028	. 070	, 144	. 183
856	24	TIO2 *B4C red.	0,8	**	0.1	2 8528-104A	0. 06	x	T1-10	2		. 200	. 222	, 244	. 270
880	34	TiO ₂ + C red	0, 0		0.1	2 8528-104A	0, 06	x	77-11	2		, 103	. 205	, 206	. 249
987	24	TiO ₂ red.	0, 1	**	0, 1	2 0528-104F	U, 06	x	T1-12	2		. 098	. 186	. 212	. 215
888	34	2 TIO ₂ · WO _X red.	0.0		0.1	2 852F-104G	0.06	×	TI-12	2		. 017	111 , معم	, 132	. 196
994	0	**	0.3	\$041-13BC	0, 3	8828-194G	0.06	X	T1-14	-		, 000	144	. 1.11	
444	0	11	0.3	*	0.3	8528-104G	0,06	X	11-10	2		. 101	1748	. 501	

	Table 4, 1-2B	
Electrode Composition	and Cell Performance Data	⁵¹ with Onide Catalysts

10

10

r

(8) Cell performance data la for an 85°C 0 N.H2804 acid call using synthetic reformer gas as a fuel.

 $^{(b)}_{\rm H,\,R.}$ = the cell resistance was high and the polarisation data is not reliable.

With Game

....

1

the state of the s

1917-19 18

-¹¹

19. 23.45-

	1	10010 4. 1-7C				
Electrode Composition	and Coll	Performance	Data ⁽⁸⁾	with	Oxide	Catalyst

					THE ST.	Ten 140 - 141144								
61 4 M-	Pt, 2			•			Electrode Preparation			Anode	va Hef.	Voite e		L/em ²
Electrene No.	mg/ cm	Compense	Em br.ta HF	terial gas	Material	T-30, ee	Painted Pressed	Cell NG.	4.00	20	90	100	200	300
221	2	0.1 Cr.O. WD	0.354 25% Pt's:	1 C . 354	5528-35A	0, 15	x	CR-24	2	. 054	. 108	. 150	. 217	, 260
922	\$		0.310 20% Pt's	1 B.C . 310	8528-55A	0. 10	x	CR-25	2	. 010	. 024	. 044	. 065	. 100
325	5		0,310 "	0, 10	8.C	0.10	x	CH-26	2	. 045	. 242	. 319	. 303	
229	5		0. 354 25% Pt's	C 0.10	graphite	0 10	x	CR-27	2	, 300	, 330			
925	5		0 150 20% Pt'sd	B_C 1.0	8528-86A	V. 10	x	C H-39	2	. 030	. 079	. 126		*
				•					5	. 180	. 418 444			
		н	a 310 "			A 10		CB 30	1.		0.57	087	110	130
	5		0.310	. 020	,	0, 10	^	C.R. 30	5	070	. 137			
									10	. 100	. 240			
930	\$	4	0. 310 -	. 150) ''	0, 13	x	CR-31	2	. 031	. 068	880	, 152	
									10	. 048	. 113	. 210		
934	1.6		0, 310 9% Pt'sd	B_C . 310	,	0, 10	x	CR-32	2	. 388	500			
235	3	**	0. 310 17% Pt'ed	B,C .310	, ·· (0, 10	x	Cr-33	2	. 070	_165			
937	34		0.6 Pt-5 1-36	0, 12		0.04	x	CR-34	2	. 011	. 006	. 016	. 53	, 158
									\$. 009	. 015	. 031	. 068	, 2 10
		•							10	. 018	. 133	. 042	. 087	_ 200
		**	0.8 BLIS N.7	0.10			v	CB 45		. 020	. 031		70	195
			0, 0 0,000 000	0, 12		0.00	^	C N-33	5	. 013	. 022	. 040		. 140
									10	. 029	. 0.90	066	129	, 187
									30	. 034	. 067	, 139		
\$ 90	34	**	0. 6 Pt-Rh L-16	0, 12		0, 04	x	CR-41	2	. 017	. 024	, 35	, 074	, 154
942	\$	0.1 Cr203 · #03	0, 354 25% Pt'nd	C 0.35	8528-55A	0.19	x	CR-36	2	. 127	. 242	. 352	. 413	
844	5	n	0, 354 "	v, 354	6 11	0. 20	x	CR-37	2	. 057	. 100	. 129	, 150	****
943	5	**	r. 354 "	0.35	6 T	0, 05	x	CR-lie	2	. 115	. 372	. 435	. 465	. 500
51A	5	11	e, 354 "	0, 354	• •	0, 40	x	CR-42	<u>6</u>	, 114	. 164	. 262	. 230	. 382
997	5	**	0. 354 "	0, 354	4 "	0, 30	x	PC-3	2	. 043	. 103	, 135	, 176	. 197
245	4 t	", 33" ax, -red.	0 9 Pi black	0, 12	8528-85A	0, 06	x	CR-39	2	, 0.30	. 058	, 104		
9-59	34	", 22" redosred.	0.6 "	0. 12	8529-85B	0, 06	x	CR-40	2	. 014	. 022	, 035	****	
953	34	"1" red, ax, red,	3,9 "	0, 12	8528-94P	0. 06	x	CR-43	2	, 105	. 18*	. 2#7	, 490	
221B	34	"1" red.	0.6 "	0, 12	8528-93B	0, 06	x	CR-44	2	, 080	, 229	, 290	. 320	
952	34	"1" as, red,	0. 4 "	0. 12	2522-94N	0, 96	x	CR -45	2					
954	34	. • Cr.O. WO	9.6	0, 12	9529-103A	0, 06	x	CR-46	2	. 018	. 938	, 060	. 105	. 235
	5	Nb 0, red.	0, 3	0.3	9528-104C	0, 96	x	NB-1	2		. 124	. 164	. 243	. 282
990	1	3 Nb O · WO	0.3	0, 3	\$525-104D	0, 06	x	NB-2	2		. 135	, 266	. 354	. 411
991	5	No OS WO	0. 2	0. 3	8529-104E	0.06	x	NB-3	2		. 066	. 105	. 147	, 184
995	5	n	0, 5 "	0, 3	**		x	ND-4	2		. 089	, 115	, 141	, 172

^(a)Cell performance data is for an 85°C 5 \underline{N} H₂80₄ acid cell using synthetic reiormer groups as a fuel.

4-6

÷.

Table 4, 1-3

Corrosion Test Results On Chides 5 N H₂80₄ ; 65°C. ; 8 days exposure; 53 mi sols. /500 mg solids

				Dunda	· Residentially		Appearance of		Amount is S	olution, mg	Per Ceut
Sample No.	Oxide	Amt, and Source of PL	Atmosphery	Oris.	After Plz.	After Corr.	Product Powder	X-ray Analysia of Product Powder	w	Cr(Ti)	Atlacked
	*0	9% - H. PICI, vac dried	N _e (H _a)	0'0	2800	3.0 x 10 ⁴	blue-gray	WO2; WO2 · H20		*	* 6. 5
port	**************************************	11 0	417 	. 33	3000	9.8 x 10 ⁴	yellow-green	WO, HO			
96K					-			3 3			
55N	9. 1 Cr.O WO.	99 - H_PICI, air dried	N ₂ (H ₂)	. 12	1 300	3 x 10 ⁶	blue-gray	H ₃ WO ₄ ; tetra. ; WO ₃	0.1	0, 22	1.0
57.4	2 3 4	" vac dried		. 13	0, 2	1. 3 x 10"	blue-gray	H ₂ WO ₄ · H ₂ O ; wtm ; WO ₂ (?)	0. 4	. 21	1. 9
JIA		" at dried	Air	. 12	1300	0.6 x 10 ⁶	vellow-gray	Cr.O. ; H.WO.	0.1	8.3	#1
55 u				19		0.8 x 10	Acces-ETBy	Cr.O. H.WO. WO.	< 0, 1	10. 0	45
57A	4.	Vac dried	All				• • • • •	23.3 • •			
		off it Diffs use dated	8.04.1	0.96	2 0	0.5 x 10 ⁰	black	H.WO, + H.O; tetra. ; WO, (?)	< 0.1	0,55	1, 7
69 A	0.15 Cr 203 WOx	0% - M PICI and anima	2.2	0.00		0 4 - 10	vellow-PPBV	H WO : WO	< 0.1	22	74
60A	"	" vac d. ted	AIT	0.20	2.0		,	1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	0, 1	17	
5412	84	No PL	Atr	0, 26		0,7 1 15	green-gray	H3W04; W02			
		an more second	Nr (14)		5.6	RAC	black	tetra, ; WO_(trace)	0, 0	0, 50	0, 85
60B	0.33 Cr 0 . WO	st - H HCi and dried	ⁿ 2 ⁽ⁿ 2)					3			#1
603		" vac tried	Air	1, 2	5, 8	0, 2 a 10	gray	WO3 · H3O; Cr2WO8; Cr2O2	<8.1	30	
	**	No PL	Air	1, 3		1.481	gray	WO3 · H3O + Cr3WO3 + Cr3O3	0,1	10	21
304		Wo Dt	Alz			8.0 a 10 ⁴	gray	WO . HO ; Cr WO ; Cr O	< 0.1	11	10
85.8	. (8)	NO FA	A1=			1.4 = 10 ⁶	STRY	WO HO CT WO CTO	< 0, 1	8.4	14
65A	т, (с)	No Pi	~				•	3 2 3 4 1 1			
	A 4 (2 A	8% . H PtCl van dried	N.(H.)	734	200	7200	black	tetrs.; Cr ₂ O ₃ ; WO ₃ · H ₂ O(tr)	0.1	0.91	0, 73
6U-1P1	4. 0 Ct 2 3	t reo tried	3' Z'	734	200	2.4 a 10 ⁴	gray	WO. H.O ; tetra. ; Cr.O.	0, _	. 12	0, 11
50 -1 Pt		vic pres	N (H)	470	9650	* * * 104	effer -blue	WO HO . CT.O.	<₽.1	, 16	, 14
50-2Pt	" (C)	" vac gried	2127			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	blue	WO - HO - CZ.O.	0, 1	, н	, #1
50-2Pt	" (c)	" vac dried	Alt	1676	2600	5, 7 E 10	D1 WE	103 120 1 1 2 3			
		off at Diffi was deled	N (N)	3400	\$300	7000	black	tetrs. ; Cr.O.(tr)	0. 2	. 54	0, 42
96L.	1, 0 CF 0 . WO x	0.5 - H. M			4300	1 2 . 104	hinch	tetra, : Cr.O.Gr)	< 0.1	. 80	0, 48
88L	11	"	AIF	2000	0300	4	black		0.1	. 48	0. 35
03B	μ	No Pl	Alt	3600		1.58 10	CERCE.		•••		
47J	1. 0 TIO ₂ ' WO	0% - HgPiCig vac dried	N2(H2)	0, 54		3. 3 a 10 ⁴	blue black	WO3 (TIO2	0	2. 0	20

(a) Hydroxide ppt oxidized at 000°C before final re 'action in Hg at 600°C.

(b) Hydroxide ppt reduced, oxidized and rereduced at 600°C.

(c) Prepared from Cr(NO3)3, rather than CrCi3.

14.

4.2 ACTIVATED BORON CARBIDE ELECTRODES

-

4.2.1 Piatinum Analysis in Nitric Acid Solutions (W. T. Grubb, L.H. King)

During the preparation of boron carbide electrodes activated with platinum from the thermal decomposition of platinum diamnine dinitrate, the finished electrode has been leached to 50 v/o nitric acid for 1 hour at 100° C. This was found in the past to improve performance of electrodes which had been made from pre-reduced electrocacityst (platinum on boron carbide). The improvement was shought to be due to the removal of traces of iron and other metal oxides, in line with the observation that the high iron content boron carbide gave poor results when employed as a support for platinum in electrocatalysts (4, 2, -1).

The method of analyzing for platinum in the nitric acid leachant described in Section 2. 1. 3. 1 could not be employed due to the strong absorption of nitric acid in the ultraviolet region of interest. Consequently, the following method for determining the platinum content of the nitric acid leachant was developed and used. The nitric acid leachant solution was diluted to a known volume, an aliquot was mixed with an equal volume of concentrated sulfuric acid and heated to fuming. The fuming residue was diluted with water to about 100 ml and 2 grams of hydrazine sulfate added. After boiling, the solution was filtered, the platinum-containing residue was ignited for 1 hour at 550°C, and the platinum was weighed as platinum metal.

4.2.2 Preparation and Activation of Leached Nickel Foam Elec.rodes (W. T. Grubb, L. H. King)

The general method of preparation of these electrodes was the same as previously described (4.2-2). When a second leachable additive was used, conditions of leaching were adjusted to promote its removal. In the case of Cab-O-Sii (electrodes No. 436 and 461 of Table 4.2-1), the nickel was leached out with 10% nitric acid and then the silica was removed with 50% NaOH solution. In the case of the Cab-O-Lite electrodes, the nickel and the calcium metasilicate were removed in a single leaching with 10% nitric acid. 1% HF in water.

The leached nickel foam structure presents a myriad of preparation variables. A few of these variables have been selected as most important: the percentage of Teflon; the heat incatment

^(4.2-1) W. T. Crubb, Technical Summary Report No. 6, Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells, ARPA Order Order No. 247, Contract No. 44-009-ENG-4909 and DA 44-009-AMC-479(T), p. 5-6.

^{(4. 2-2;} W. T. Grubb and L. H. King, Technical Summary Report No. 9, <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract No. DA 44-00° -AMC-479(T), p. 3.1 (1966).

of the electrode during its prepar tion; and, the activity of the platinum-activated boron carbide which is a complex effect of its preparation variables. The present optimal procedure for activation of boron carbide with platinum is reported in Appendix 4, 2, 3.

The general trend of improvement in performance by selecting and optimizing the important variables is evident from the trend of specific performance in ma/mg of Pt (column 4 in Table 4, 2-1) in which a general improvement is noted when comparing early electrodes at the top of the table with later electrodes at the bottom of the table. The first 27 electrodes of the leached nickel foa.a structure averaged 30.3 ma/mg at 0.7 volt. The second 27 electrodes averaged 44.5 ma/mg. The last electrode tested gave 72. $_{6}$ ma/mg, representing partly the effect of using Cab-O-Lite as a second leachable additive.

Further reduction of the Teflon binder content to 10% has been explored (elect: ides No. 515 and 436), and this shows little or no improvement. A different technique of preparation involving the use of a paint brush to spread the activated boron carbide-Teflon suspension mixture onto the screen current collector appears to be somewhat inferior (electrodes No. 440 and 459). An unpressed electrode (No. 454) was both leaky and not outstanding in performance. An electrode (No. 455) prepared from a platinum-activated boron carbon composition with atomic B/C ratio of 0.76 instead of the usual value for Norbide boron carbide of 1.86, gave poorer results.

The weight of the nickel foam, indicative of the diameter of the nickel strands (and therefore the pores) was varied by a factor of 2 with little effect (electrodes No. 447, 448 and 449). Two iron-containing additives, Fe_3O_4 (electrode No. 463) and crocidolite asbestos (electrode No. 469), did not produce any great improvement in performance.

Two preparations of platinum-activated boron carbide, one in which solvent was driven off at a higher temperature from the slurry of platinum diammine dinitrite solution with boron carbide, were evaluated in electrodes No. 434 and 435. The variation in catalyst preparation was found to be detrimental. Neverthelecs, it (Catalyst 84X) was used in carrying out comparison experiments. Electrode No. 420 shows another variation in catalyst preparation which was inferior to the stan lard procedure.

In the preparation of an electrode, standard practice has been to heat the electrode to 260°C to decompose the wetting agent in the Teflon suspension and stabilize the platinum-diammine diritrite on the boron carbide surface. Where Table 4.2-1 indicates "extra preheat", this step was carried out at 280°C. Where "post heated" is indicated the electrode was heated for 30 minutes at 280°C after the final curing step. Both these procedures may be beneficial to performance (electrode No. 442, 460, 462, 470 and 473).

The improvement in performance produced by using a second leachable additive to produce smaller pores intersecting the larger pores produced by removal of nickel fram strands is discussed in Section 2.1.3.2. The Preparation Sheet for electrode No. 473 gives further details on the method of preparation.

4.2.3 Preparation of Platinum-Activated Boron Carbide (W. T. Grubb, L. li. King)

The eurrent best procedure for preparing the platinum-activated boron carbide is typified by the procedure employed in the preparation of Catalyst No. 84 (see Table 4. 2-1). Five grams of Norbide* boron earbide relatively free of metal oxide impurities and containing about 60 w/o boron (less than the stoichiometric value of 78. 3%) (4. 2-3) was mixed with 6. 25 ml of a solution of platinum diammine dinitrite prepared by dissolving 13. 16 g of this salt in a mixture of 70 ml of concentrated nitrie acid with 30 ml of water. After thoroughly mixing to form a uniform slurry, the mixture was heated from room temperature to about 100°C in an open dish on a hot plate in a fume hood and held with oceasional stirring for about 1 hour until fuming stopped. It was then further heated in an oven for 1 hour at 150°C. This mixture was then rough ground in a boron carbide mortar and the above treatment repeated a number of times depending upon the platinum content desired. After the last repetition of the treatment, the mixture was ground thoroughly in a boron carbide mortar and sieved through a 400 mesh Nylon sieve. The first treatment with platinum salt yields 9.1 w/o Pt, the second 16.7 w/o Pt, the third 23.1 w/o Pt, and the fourth 28.6 w/o Pt. Catalyst 84 was prepared with four activations to achieve a platinum content of 28.6 w/o Pt. A yield of 5.045 grams of finished eatalyst was obtained in this preparation.

Catalyst 84X of Table 4. 2-1 was inadvertently heated to 220°C in one of the nitric acid evaporation steps. The results obtained with this material in fuel cell electrodes indicate that the activity was lower due to this anomaly in the preparation, even though the material was heated to much higher temperatures in the preparation and curing of the electrode.

The above preparation has been evolved empirically over a considerable period of time. It holds no guarantee of being the ultimate optimization. However, the behavior of Catalyst 84X suggests that large deviations from the procedure are likely to lead to poorer results.

4853, p 3-1 ff, (1965).

*Norton Co., Worcester, Mass.

 ^(4.2-3) W. T. Grubb, Technical Summary Report No. 8, <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, ARPA Order No. 247 Contract No. DA 44-009-ENG-4909, DA 44-009-AMC-479(T), DA 44-009-ENG-

BLANK PAGE

49 12 54 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 63 23 33 34 45 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 6	
49 12 12 12 13 14 15 15 17 19 17 19 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	
12 12 13 14 15 15 17 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	
56 59 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	
17 159 621 61 64 63 63 23 33 24 401 339 53 54 46 40 41 45 67 68 61 62 35 51 62 35 61 62 35 63 64 64 64 54 65 64 65 64 54	
17 59 62 63 63 23 33 24 41 45 55 54 46 60 61 61 62 63 53 54 64 65 51 66 51 66 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67	
09 62 61 84 63 23 33 24 41 39 53 54 60 61 62 77 62 78 62 78 64 64 65 53 64 63 64 63 64 63 64 63 64 65 64 63 64 65 64 65	
62 61 64 65 65 65 23 24 23 24 24 23 25 24 24 23 25 24 46 46 46 46 46 45 27 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	
01 01 63 63 63 23 23 23 24 01 35 34 46 66 67 66 63 35 51 67 66 36 67 66 63 63 64 63 65 34 66 36 67 66 63 36 64 58	
63 69 69 23 24 41 41 59 53 54 46 40 41 45 46 40 41 45 46 40 41 45 46 40 41 45 46 40 41 45 46 46 46 47 46 47 47 47 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48	
69 63 23 33 33 34 101 53 53 54 46 40 47 62 53 55 51 55 51 51 62 35 51 51 62 35 51 51 64 64 65 36 64 64 65 34 63 36 64 36 64 36 65 36 64 36 65 36	
0.3 23 33 34 111 39 53 54 60 61 62 62 63 63 64 63 64 63 64 63 64 64 63 64 65 64 65 64 65 64 65	
33 24 101 39 53 54 46 60 61 62 35 51 62 35 51 62 35 51 62 35 61 62 35 36 37 63 63 64 65 64 58 64 58	
24 (11) 39 53 54 46 46 40 61 62 55 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51	N 3 5 5 4 6 6 6 4 6 6 5 7 5 6 4
41 39 53 54 40 41 45 52 53 54 62 35 51 52 35 51 52 53 51 51 52 35 51 62 35 51 64 63 63 64 58 64 58	
53 54 54 60 61 62 62 62 55 55 51 64 64 64 65 63 63 63 63 64 64 65 65 63 65 63 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65	
36 46 40 41 42 52 53 51 43 43 44 44 45 33 31 44 43 43 44 45 31 46 43 44 45 31 46 47 48 49 41 42 33 44 45 54 53 54 55	
46 40 41 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40	
61 62 52 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 53 64 63 54 63 64 65 64 54 64 54 54	.6. .6. .6. .3.
46 47 62 62 62 53 51 43 43 43 44 43 44 44 44 45 44 45 54 45 54 45 54 54	
27 62 62 62 63 64 64 64 64 64 64 63 63 63 64 64 64 64 64 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65	.6 .6 .3 .5
22 35 51 69 43 64 66 73 67 63 63 64 63 64 65 66 66 66 64 53	
35 51 69 43 44 64 67 63 23 35 31 63 63 63 64 63 63 64 63 63 64 65 63 65 63 65 64 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65	
51 69 43 44 46 47 46 57 58 50 64 45 54 45 54 45 54 55 56 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57	
43 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44	5.4
44 64 64 67 65 23 38 31 C 44 63 63 63 64 63 63 63 63 64 63 65 64 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65	Ë ' .
66 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 6	
67 23 36 31 64 63 64 63 64 65 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 64 63 64 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65	Ē.6
23 36 44 44 43 43 43 43 43 44 43 44 43 44 43 44 43 44 43 44 43 44 45 44 45 46 46 46 46 46 46 46 46 46 46	. 6
38 38 44 44 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45	.2
31 Ci A6 A6 63 A6 63 A6 64 A6 64 A6 65 A6 64 A6 65 A6 66 A6 66 A6 66 A6 64 A6 53 A6 54 A6 55 A6	
64 63 65 65 64 65 63 63 65 65 74 65 65 76 66 66 64 55 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76	. 6
63 67 65 63 64 54 63 63 63 63 63 63 64 64 66 64 55 84	E.6
67 65 63 64 54 63 63 63 63 63 64 66 66 64 55 84	
65 63 64 54 65 63 62 65 66 66 66 64 55 55	. 6
63 64 54 63 63 62 62 65 66 66 64 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58	10 . 6
54 53 63 62 56 65 66 66 64 53 54 55 54	
43 63 62 34 66 66 66 64 53 53 64	Ē.6
63	
62	
Off 66 • 66 • 64 • 53 •	1
66	
60	
64	E .4
51 -	E.,
	E . 64
56	ii . 64
42	
.67 .	
12 allefikeete	
	Hundrey .
	COLUMN TO STATE

A

480.0000

49.100.000

a. 👬

E st Ca 400 ma/cm ²	⁸ са аз 790 ma, ст. 	Percent Tafion Binder	Porosity as Voluma Percent Vold	Catalyat Weighl, gram	Electrode Thickness, Inch	Foam + Soreen Thickness, inch	1000 Cycle Bridge Res., ohm	K - M Bridge Curve Res., ohm	Electr lyts-Mde Foam Weight, gran-	Press Force on Electrolyte-Bide Foam, ib	Gas-Side Foam Weighi, gram	Press Force on Gas-Stile Foam, ib	Elect ode Side With TFE L.lm	Percent Platinum in Catalyst	Cainiyat Number
. 49		20. 0	66. J	. 607	. 0296			, 130					Cas	16.7	774
. 13		20. 0	42. 6	. 520	,0158	. 0092	. 110	. 112	*****	****		· - · -	Gas	16.7	11A
. 56		20.0	46. 6	. 466	. 0165	. 0093	. 113	. 129			**		Gas	16, 7	778
. 64	. 38		63, 1	. 700	. 4110	. 0004	. 109	. 113		*	****		Ges	100. 0	•••
							180	170							
17		36.4	72.6 76 A	, 250	0231	. 0153	, 138	145		•	. 776	20K	Foem	14.7	80
63		22.3		. 253		.0108	. 117	. 120			, 830	ZOK	Foam	14. 7	80
. 61	. 45	20. 0	61.7	. 163	0143		. 135	. 130			. \$20	208	Foats.	10.7	80
. 64		22.0	61.6	. 138	. 0139		. 123	. 166	. 828	30K		-1-1	Scr's	18.7	*0
.63		23. 0	67.7	. 150	. 0171		. 123	. 140	. 800	30K	900	206	Gaa	16.7	80
. 40		23.0	61.0	. 163	.0141		. 120	. 139			.788	. ЭК	¥ oa m	18.7	80
E .63	46	Z3. 0	36.6 e7 e	. 231	. 0107	0316	. 199	140	. 720	a a	****		8~1'n	16, 7	80
E .43	41	33.0	84.5	141	0142	. 0160	136	193	459		, 701	IK	Gaa	18.7	80
24					0175		. 149	. 160	. \$20	200			8c3 '8	18.7	60
NII					. 0139	.0140	. 147	200	, 835	206			BCT N		
. 66	. 50				. 0162		. 137	. 130	.\$14	2000			Scr's	18 7	80
Ē.53		Z3. 0	61. 8	. 163	. 0147	. 0161	. 147	. 835	1.350	20K			Ser'a	16.1	80
E. 56		23. 0	84.4	, 356	. 031	. 0358	. 247	. 260	1.332	a x			Ser's	16.7	80
E . 48		33.0	55.4	. 284	. 9158	. 0132	. 120	. 130	. 631	2011			Scr'a	16, 7	61
. 60		33.0	58.3	. 175	. 0141	.0138	. 116	. 170	. 904	206			Scr'a	16.7	61
. 91 AX	51	83.0	44. I 41. A	. 164	. 0187	. 9140	. 113	. 150	. 448	196			Ser'a	66. 6	62
.00	. 31	23, 8	01. 9	. 282	.01/6	. 0132	. 103	. 125	. 941	2000	••••		Ser'a	28.8	62
.62	. 31	23 8	70 1	262	. 0118	0240	169	193	8.301		1 001		Ges	16, 7	61
. 82	. 50	23.0	65.3	253	. 0113	. 0134	. 131	159	. 983		1,001	38	Gas	18,7	41 61
, 55	. 80	23. 3	41.4	. 318	. 0157	0147	. 123	130			1.003	206	Case	10,7	
Č. 31	. 06	25. 2	33. 3	. 233	. 0133	. 0167	. 343	. 130			1. 473	206	Foto	24.4	44
E . 44	. 38		63. 1	. 700	. 0116	. 0064	. 100	. 113					Gas	100.0	
.43		25. 3	67. 6	. 306	. 0163	. 0140	. 123	, 140			1.103	20K	Tosm	28.4	42
. 84	. 43	20.0	60. 8	. 312	. 0172	. 0133	. 115	. 125			. 799	20%	Foam	85. 4	62
E .00	. 07	18.0	63.4	. 234	. 0160	.0149	, 130	. 110			. 955	20K	2 on m	86. 4	82
. 61	54	10.0	40.4	. 256	. 01/00	.4130	. 117	. 116			. 669	206	Post.m.	28.4	
. 23		77 8	84 A	. 234	0150	. 0137	147	. 100			. 963	306	Foam	28.4	42
.58	, 35	32. 5	56.4	. 173	. 0139	0133	117	178			. 630		7 on m	14.7	47
. 51	Cut Off	20. 0	56.3	. 609	. 0228			. 172				2000	Gas	14.7	42
. 68	, 59	10. 0	61.0	, 264	. 0152	. 0140	. 109	, 196			1. 148	206	Total	- 88.4	41
.64	. 42	s. O	64, 4	. 260	. 91 66		. 126	. 116	*****		1,144	206	Total	28.8	84X
. \$5	. 57	10.0	42, 4	, 196	. 0145	. 0103	. 118	. 134			1,148	206	Foam	28.8	84
		4.3	30.4	. 530	.0149	. 0080	. 197	. 108					Gas	18, 7	83
	. 60	15.0	\$1,3	. 238	. 9181	. 0139	. 168	. 114	*****		. 808	201	T all the	28.8	
. 45	. 51	15.0	04,0 	. 204	. 0156	. 0150	. 129	. 122			.711	246	Tokik	28.4	**
. 64	. 59	15.0	30.4	204	. 0140		. 103	. 122					y calles	20.0	**
.44	, 31	16.0	81.2	224	0101	0156	108	122			1,000	2000. 1900	Total	28.4	843
ē . 63	. 41	15.0	67.0	. 223	. 0134	. 0139	156	126			713	296	Total	23.4	843
Ē.63	. 45	15.0	84.2	. 282	. 0175	. 0148	. 107	.124	***		1. 454	246	Total	38.4	443
E .83	. 42	18,0	61. \$. 246	. 32 54		. 099	114			1, 150	2010	Tran	28, 4	e ex
E . 36	. 98	20. 0	Q0, 6	. 271	, 0148	. 0167	. #11	. 156			i. 181	2060	Fold	14, 7	85
- 45	43	0.3	61.4	. 525	. 0172	. 0086	. 273	. 110					Ges	16.1	62
44	. 63	15.0	58.7	. 810	. 0137	. 0131	. 099	. 114	•••••		. 643	2010	Total	28.4	44
44	- 64	14.0	39.4	. 183	. 0122	. 0133	. 102	. 136			. 990	201	Total	25, 4	44
. 64	. 46	16.0	30.0	. 206	. 91 37	. 9133	,081	. 110		••••	. 636	206	FORM	20.0	44
. 56	. 04	16.0	08.8	257	0197	. 0130	. 103	. 120	*****		. 828	100	Tonm	28.8	44
. 44	. 46	18 0	60. 2	128	0144	0136	100	. 110				100	Total	28.4	84X
.56	. 09	13,0	58.7	210	0137	0126	106	194			784	2000	Total	20.8	HEX
5 . 62	. 10	18.0	41.1	. 294	. 0107	.0140	. 099	. 118			.758	296	Total	28.8	HCK
4 g . 67	. 58	18.0	58.4	. 228	. 0141	. 0133	. 097	. 114			.81;	2010	Feam	25.4	84

Table 4. 2-1

4-11

#

Ø

1

HUTTPL. HOTLEDA

.

POROUS ELECTRODE PREPARATION RECORD

ELECTRODE NUMBER 473

Optimized Electrode 5% Cab-O-Lite and Post Heated

Preparation

Screen: Material Pt. Weight 5. 207 gm. Thickness 0. 0083 inch.

Form Weight 0.814 gm (etched from 1.330 gm foam w/1.33 cc $\text{HNO}_3 + 100 \text{ cc H}_20$ in 7 hours).

Press foam into screen in 350°C press at 20,000 lb. Thickness 0.0133 inch.

Weigh out catalyst: 0.363 gm No. 84 at 28.6 wt % Pt.

Add 0. 018 gm Cab-O-Lite (5%).

Add 0.44 cc T-30 mixture 2/11 H₀O = 0.0611 gm TFE = 15%.

Stir mixture and paste electrode.

Air dry overnight.

Cure on hot plate at 250°C for 30 minutes including heating time; then cool 30 minutes on hot plate.

Press in 350°C press for 10 minutes at 7000 to 8000 lb with foam side down. Weight 6.321 gm. Leach <u>6</u> hours on hot plate in 10 vol. $HNO_3 + 90 H_2O + 1 HF$, dry. Weight <u>5.474</u> gm. Check for pinholes. Patch, if necessary.

Spray _____ film on foam side using 4.4 cc of $H_0O + T-30$ mixture diluted 7:1 in a 5 inch square area.

Oven cure 2 minutes at 350°C.

Number tab on the film side.

Check wetting-brush dry boron carbide on with soft brush.

Post heat on hot plate set at 280°C for 30 minutes; cool 30 minutes.

Cell test vs. Electrode No. 247 Electrolyte H_SO4 Resistance 0.097 ohm.

 $\frac{15.0}{10.0}$ mg/cm²₂

 $\frac{10.0}{12.8}$ mg/cm²₂

Spect	tica	tions

Wt. of Cat, Tefion 0.267 gm, Weight of Dry Catalyst 0.228 gm, Weight of Platinum 0.065 gm, 3.65 mg/cm² 0.847 gm = 104.0 % Additive Leached Out Calculated Porosity 59%

Electrode Thickness 0. 0141 inch (average) . 0145 0148 0136 0137

4.3 SUMMARY OF CELL LIFE TESTS WITH MULTI-COMPONENT FUELS

A summary of cell life testing with various multi-component fuels is given in Table 4.3-1. Plots of anode polarization data vs. time for these cells are shown in Figures 4.3-1 thru 4.3-24.

Table 4.3-1 Summary of Electrochemical Cell Life Testing

Note: All anodes were composed of 00% Pt, 10% T-30 on gold vepur-deposited (3 mg/ln.) expanded tantalum screen. All catholes were 85% Pt, 15% T-30 on platinum wire-woren screen. Electrolyte was 95-91% H_PO4 et 35MF.

			Performance							
Cell No.	Electrodes	Reactants	0, hr	Current Density, A0F	Power Density, WSF	Anode Potestial ve. H_g/F^+ Ref. , volt	R, ohm	Life, nr	Anode burince Ares*, m	
162	A - 3620 C - 3504	22.5% n-ociane 22.0% iso-ociane 5% toluane 10% ociane-2 10% MCH** 30% MCP***	1	30 00	4, 0 4, 5	. 700 . 730	. 010	90	9,38	
103	A - 3639 C - 3. "	37% a-octane 37% iso-uctane 5% octane-2 1% tolisane 5% MCH 15% MCP	2 , 18	30 00 15	10.0 17.4 0.0	. 480 . 815 >1. 0	. 997	18	Not Taken	
104	A - 3636 C - 3504	22 5% n-octane 22, 5% iso-octane 5% toluene 10% octene-2 10% MCH 30% MCP	1 144	30 00 30 16	9.9 16.0 0.0 1.0	.000 .510 >1.0 .800	. 008	144	10, 90	
186	A - 3637 C - 3504	35% n-octane 35% iso-octane 0% tolueno 5% octes. 0% MCH 15% MCP	1	30	1.0	. 600		22 Loaky Repla	Not Taken / Cathoda. load in LT-187.	
187	A - 3677 C - 3507	Same as Cell * 48.	1 20	20 00 36 15	9, 1 12, 0 0, 0 3, 5	. 070 . 090 >1. 0 . 920		20	Not Taken	
109	A - 3640 C - 3504	90% n-octane 10% MCH	1 179	30 90 30 80	9,9 14,4 0.1 3,0	- 520 - 550 - 090 - 700	. 019	354	10. 02	
190	A - 3652 C - 3589	93% n-octane 7% toluene	1 144	20 00 30 60	5, 2 9, 0 6, 9 0, 0	.510 .910 .640 >1,00	. 010	402	Not Taken	
191	A - 3655 C - 3604	70% n-octane 30% MCP	1 264	30 00 30 60	14, 1 23, 6 11, 9 19, 0	. 385 . 480 . 440 . 800	. 910	286	Not Takes	
192	A - 3654 C - 3507	90% a-octane 10% MCH	1 360	30 60 30	7.9 7.0 7.2	.565 > 1.00 ,903	. 010	3 75	Not Takes	
193	A - 2642 C - 3589	00% n-octane 20% MCH	1	30 60	9.1 13.9	. 020 . 550	. 996	01	10, 5 2	
194	A - 3656 C - 3604	50% n-octane 50% MCP	1 640	30 80 36	14.7 22.6 6.0	. 360 . 420 . 600	. 005	645	10, 57	
195	A - 3663 C - 3671	80% n-octane 10% toluene	1 120	30 60 30 20	0.8 7.6 0.0 2.4	. 620 .715 >1.00 .765	. 010	118	9, 21	

*As measured by B, E, T. method prior to test. **M:H = Methylcyclohexane ***M:P = Methylcyclopentane

ī

≅. 25. z.

- -

Teble 4.3-1 (Cont'd.)

±

				Performance		Anode Potential ve			Anodr Aurface
	Flootoodee	Bassissis	8 hr	Current Density,	WSF	H_/H ⁺ Ref. , volt	Am	Life, hr	Area [*] , m ²
Cell No.	Flectores					1			
					10.8	800	. 010	188	No1 Taken
196	A - 3660	88% octane	1	30	14.4	. 600			
	C - 3372	18% MCH	140	80	8.6	. 590			
			160	60	6.0	. 650			
									M. 4 Taban
187	A - 3661	80% n-octane	1	30	10.2	. 506	, 010	189	IVA I BAUR
	C - 3569	20% MCH		60	12.0	. 810			
			143	20	5.8	>1.00			
				60	0.0				
186	A - 3666	70% n-octane	1	20	8. 2	. 880	. 008	144	
	C - 3507	20% MCH		60	11.4	. 860			
	_		143	20	8,4	. 650			
				60	A , U				
-01	A - 3666	18% a-octane	1	20	14, 6	. 260	. 007	220	
201	C - 2589	2% octone-2		60	22.6	. 440			
				90	.0	. 590	. 00*	144	
202	A - 3673	SOL B-OCTARS	1	80	0.0	> 1.00			
	C - 3607	JUE MCH					A1A		
202	A - 3662	30% s-octane	۰	30	0.7	. 270	. 010		
204	C - 3507	70% MCH		80	7.2	. 675			
	c			20	2,0	. 750			
				80	0.0	>1.00			
								92	
204	A - 3664	80% a -octare							
	C - 3673	TOF MCH							
205	A - 3659	37% s-octane	1	20	12.0	. 480	. 010	160	
400	C - 3473	37% iso-octane		80	16.8	. 840			
		1% toluene	158	20	9,0	>1.00			
		8% octene-2		20	2. 2	, 910			
		8% MCH							
		15% MCP							
	4 - 3604	and a octane	1	20	9.0	. 870	. 010	120	
200	C - 3670	10% toluene							
	•			••		500		140	
207	A - 3679	\$5% n-octane	1	30	3 . 0				
	C - 2507	6% octens-2							
		SA 5% n-ortane	1	20	11.6	. 485	. 008	188	
208	A - 350P	24 25 ino-octane		60	14, 7	. 880			
	C - 3614	1 0% triumon	186	30	0.0	. 600			
		E'E octene-2		20	5, 10	. 616			
		15% MCH							
		30% MCP							
			,	20	12.8	. 450	. 010	24	
200	A - 260 i	5% octane=2	-	60	24. 0	. 470			
	C - 3/04	o e octano -						100	
210	A - 3660	40% n-octane	1	20	8, 4	. 550		100	
	C - 3604	20% MCH		80	10.0	650			
		40% MCP	58	50	0.0	>1,00			
211	A - 2676	\$5% n-octane	1	20	11.7	. 520	. 010	100	
	C - 3704	5% octene-2		60	18.0	. 340			
			72	20	11.5	550			
				80	10.0				
	4 - 3441	70% n-octane	1	30	8.4	. 245	. 010	48	
212	C - 3507	10% MCH		80	10. 2	. 850			
	C - 994;	20% MCP	45	20	6, 1	. 580			
				80	2.0	. 770			

4-14

.



Figure 4.3-1. Cell LT-182



Figure 4. 3-2. Cell LT-184





Figure 4.3-3. Cell LT-187



Figure 4.3-4. Cell LT-189



Figure 4.3-5. Cell LT-190



Figure 4.3-6. Cell LT-191





Figure 4.3-7. Cell LT-192



Figure 4, 3-8. Cell LT-193



Figure 4.3-9. Cell LT-194



Figure 4.3-10. Cell LT-195

19. 15. 10



-

description to a

5.1

Figure 4.3 11. Cell LT-196



Figure 4. 3-12. Cell LT-197

4-20

And in the lot



Figure 4. 3-13. Cell LT-198



Figure 4.3-14. Cell LT-201

4-21

19. 19**.**



Figure 4.3-15. Cell LT-202



Figure 4. 3-16. Cell LT-203


Figure 4. 3-17. Cell LT-204



Figure 4, 3-18. Cell LT-205

4-23

17



a. 35

Figure 4.3-19. Cell LT-206



Figure 4. 3-20. Cell LT-207

4-24

38- s. ¥



Figure 4. 3-21. Cell LT-208



Figure 4.3-22. Cell LT-210

4-25

1



A Real

Figure 4. 3-23. Cell LT-211



Figure 4. 3-24. Cell LT-212

4.4 CALCULATIONS FOR BINARY AND MULTI-COMPONENT FUELS

4.4.1 Calculations for Binary Fuels

The details of the calculation of the exhaust compositions and current contributions of the components of a binary fuel were given in an earlier report (4.4-1). For this report period these calculations were automated using a program, an example of which is shown below.

		INPUT									
A'_	-	APA	=	265.00	A'A*	=	APA*	=	2000.00		
A'h	=	ABP	=	256 9.00	A'_*	=	APB*	=	50000.00		
A	=	AA	=	478,00	AA*	=	AA*	=	50.00		
A _b	Ŧ	AВ	=	1077.00	А _ь *	=	АВ*	=	50000.00		
m ['	=	MAP	Ŧ	1,00	m _h '	E	MBP	=	99.00		
v	=	v	=	0.04	ď	=	DO	=	0.71		
m	=	MB	Ŧ	114, 22	m	=	МА	Ŧ	78.11		
I	=	I	=	1.46	F	=	F	=	1608.30		
Na	=	N.	=	30.00	N _b	=	NB	Ξ	50,00		

OUTPUT

	NA	= 0.001085	53 WB = 0.9931353
	WA	= 0.006860	02
BX	=	0.00024589	MOLES/MINUTE OF COMPONENT B AT THE INLET
BY	=	0.00000248	MOLES/MINUTE OF COMPONENT A AT THE INLET
SX	z	0.00001681	MOLES/MINUTE OF COMPONENT B CONSUMED
SY	Ŧ	0.0000223	MOLES/MINUTE OF COMPONENT A CONSUMED
IA	=	0.10783066	CURRENT CONTRIBUTION OF COMPONENT A
IB	=	1.35216935	CURRENT CONTRIBUTION OF COMPONENT B
I	=	1.46000000	TOTAL CURRENT

 (4. 4-1) Technical Summary Report No. 9 <u>Hydrocarbon-Air Fuel Cells</u>, January 1966-June 1966, ARPA Order No. 247, Contract Nos. DA44-009-ENG-4900-AMC-479(T), and DA44-009-ENG-4853, Pg. 3-9, 3-10.

4.4.2 Calculations for Five Component Fuels (M. W. Gloor)

DECO 24

OXIDATION OF MULTICOMPONENT FUELS: RELATIVE REACTION RATES

i = 1, ... Number of equations

i + 1 = Number of components

Feed Rate:

A (i) =
$$r^{\circ} 10^{3} \cdot \rho = x = \frac{X(i)}{\xi(X(i)xM(i)) + (X(i+1)xM(i+1))}$$

A (i+1) = $r^{\circ} 10^{3} \cdot \rho = x = \frac{X(i+1)}{\xi(X(i)xM(i)) + (X(i+1)xM(i+1))}$

Coefficients for matrix used in solution of i (Cramer's Rule)

simultaneous linear equations i = row j = column

Coefficients:

$$M(i, j) = N(i) X \left(1 - \frac{N(j)}{N(i+1)}\right), \quad i \neq j$$

$$M(i, j) = N(i) X \left(1 - \frac{N(j)}{N(i+1)}\right) - 1, \quad i = j$$

Constants:

$$S(i) = N(i) \notin A(i) - 621,761658 \frac{N(i)}{n(i+1)} - A(i)$$

Moles used up in electrochemical reaction are the solutions to the

i simultaneous equations = α (i)

Current Contribution I (i) = $1.60833333^{\circ}10^{3} \alpha$ (i) n (i) Mole used up of component i + 1

$$\alpha(i+1) = 621.761658 - \frac{I(t)}{n(i+1)} - \frac{I}{n(i+1)} x \leq \alpha(i) x n(i)$$

Mole fraction of component (i+1) in exhaust:

$$N(i+1) = \frac{A(i+1) - a(i+1)}{A(i) - E(\alpha(i)) + A(i+1) - \alpha(i+1)}$$

i = 1,.... Number of equations.

i+1 = Number of fuel components.

N (i) is measured molfraction in exhaust of component (i). r is Feed rate (µliters/min).

 ρ is density of feed (gr/cm²).

X (i) is mole fraction in feed of component i. I (t) is total ceil current (amps).

M (i) is molecular weight of component i.

a (i) is electrons/mole in electrochemical reaction for component i.

OXIDATION OF MULTI-COMPONENT FUELS

12-06-66

#0455 1

A. 31275-13.

CUMMEN C(50,50).A(5U) BIMENSTOV SN(51).K(51), BM(51).CUN(1U), AN(50).A1(50).AA(20). 1VAR(25).HEAD1(1U), HEAD2(10).HEAU3(1U) 2 CALL FLGEHR(5, EMM) 2 CALL FLGEHR(5, EMM) 4 UF 20.0 1 CALL STUDFCP24/CON.SN, Y, BM, FOF, HEAU1, HEAU2, HEAD3/INPUT/9N, VAM.EOF 5 HEAD(5) DEGPTA20 1 F (EOF, NE.0.0)GU TO 200 1

2 114

~

NOC=0 Call Flgehris, EHP) E0F=0

READ(5, INPUT) IF(ERH, NE. 0. 0)GU TO IF(ECF, NE. 0. 0)GU TO

5

(T)HTANIB

R#VAR(2)

SUMAARD.D SUMA=D

SUMAN=0.0 SUNXFED.0

4-29

00 6 1=1.NEG A(1)=0.0 CONTINUE æ

NOC=10C+1

K #NEC+1

WRITE (6.1500) NEAD1. NEAD2, NEAD3, NDC WRITE (6.1550) NEO

0000 9 ***

WHITE(0,1400)(SV(1),141,NE0 WHITE(0,1400)(SV(1),141,NE0 WHITE(0,1400)(S(1),141,NE0 WHITE(0,1400)(S(1),141,NE0 WHITE(0,1400)(S(1),141,NE0 WHITE(0,1400)(WH(1),141,NE0) WH(1)(WH(1))(WH(1))(WH(1)) WH(1)(WH(1))(WH(1

10

D CONTINUE MHITE(6,1650;SUMMM,NEQ D0 15 141, Ac(1)2841,F 3+Pe(x(1)/(SUMMM)) Sumaassumaa.ac(1) 5 continue

0NN4000 - N400NN4

5

PAGE

153 55 5.5 153 251 553 153 153 1050 FUMATCHLY/JDA.4DMLNDUT FARDA IN LUPUL - SKIPPING TO NEXT INPUT) 1050 FUMATCHL//JDA.4DMLNDUT FARDA IN LULANICED MATAIX OF SUBROUTINE -1200 FUMATCHL//JDA.4DMLDA 1300 FOMATCHL//JDA.4DMLDA 1,00 FOMATCHL/20X.4MUXIDH OF = -TLLCOMPONENT FUELS//JUMD/ 100 FOMATCHL/20X.4DMXLDAFFOH OF = -TLLCOMPONENT FUELS//JUMD/ 100 FOMATCHL/20X.4DMXLDAFFOH OF = -TLLCOMPONENT FUELS//JUMD/ 100 FOMATCHL/20X.4DMXLDAFFOH OF = -TLLCOMPONENT FUELS//JUMOLF IN ELECT 100 FOMMATCHL/20X.4DMLCOMED/ 100 FOMMATCHL/20X.4DMLH/4DS 1-J3) 1400 FOMMATCHX_4TEL4_/JONN/MOLEMACTION OF COMPONENTS 1400 FOMMATCHX_5TMELECTHONS/MOLE IN ELECTROUS/MOLEMECTION OF COMPONENTS 1400 FOMMATCHX_5TMELECTHONS/MOLE IN ELECTROUS/MENTCHY_07000000 1450 FOMMATCHX_5TMELECTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF COMPONENTS 100 FOMMATCHX_5TMELECTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF FOR FORMATCHX_5TMELECTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF FORMATCHX_5TMELECTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF FORMATCHX_5TMENTS 100 FOMMATCHX_5TMELECTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF FORMATCHX_5TMELECTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF FORMATCHX_5TMELECTHONS/MOLEMACTHONS/MOLEMACTHONS/MOLEMACTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF FORMACTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF FORMACTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF FORMACTHONS/MOLEMACTHONS/MOLEMACTION OF FORMAC 1500 FORFARCAAK 994M0LF44GTION OF GUMPORENT (14-114 TN FRED H "FL4"/// 1825,14440LFG1LAH HE1GAT DE GOFJUNERIS 1+413) 1855 FURBARCA168,144M0LEGULAH 4FIGHT 25 COPOUNENT 10.64 H "114,///144 1455 FURBARCA168,344M0LEGULAH 4FIGHT 25 COPOUNENT 10.65 H "114,///1444 1400 FURBARCAFF FOLF48CTION 21 EKTAURT 25 COMPOUNENT 113) 1400 FURBARCAFF FOLF48CTION 21 EKTAURT 26 COMPOUNENT 1405 040 CALL EXIT 1000 FUHMAT(141///12X:4741%PUT E4404 IN AECO24 - SKIPPING IN NEX! DECU2 f(1, J)=4*(1)+(1,UL(5*(L))/S*(*)))
(0 TC 20
C(1, J)=4*(1)+(1,0L(5*(L))/S*(*))+4,U
CUTINUE
CUTINUE
CUTINUE
CUTINUE
CUTINUE
CUTINUE
CONTINUE
CONTINUE
CONTINUE
MATEO A(K)=021, 7A149Me(B|/5V(K))~(1, 0/5R(A))=SU-4V HNNH(AA(K)-AK))/(SUTAA_SUTA-A(K)) HNTTF(6,1756)K,8(K), 2H0 HHTTF(6,1400)K,8(K), 2H0 HHTTF(6,1400)K,472, 181, NE0) HHTTF(6,1400)K,472, 181, NE0) HTTTF(6,1400)K,472, 181, NE0) CUNTTAINE CUNTTAINE DU 76 181, NEC A.(()81, FURGINGSE1, EEGFECT) 40K(1) CALL TPIANG(**MNT) 16(MAT,ED.1)rd TO 3DU Kenecsi MRT.F(A.1400)(A(1).141,NEU) DO 50 Trijver SURAESURAHACTS SURAESURASHECTS +52(1)) WWITF(A.1000) 250 WHITECA.1050) 300 WHITECA.1203) GU TC 2 ٨ 24 56501 1 TC V. 6.0 TC ж Н Ж 12=00-40 006 2 ç 100 5 #JA55 1

÷

. .

1

Junior

÷.

PAGE

~

A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR O

Gille

#8455 1 12. 06=66

÷÷.

	153	153	153	153	153
112MFFED RATE = "bla"/"tom micholiteks/4[n//24%,18MDENSI1Y 0F FED 2= .644 /.94 cu/cmt1	1650 FURMATI//SON.200400 0UTPUT 000//JSMAVERAGE MOLECULAM AEL 1650 FURMATI//SON.200400 0UTPUT 000//JSMAVERAGE MOLECULAM AEL 1647 GF FEED = .ela,7//jok,434FFED RATE IN PICKOMOLES/MIA FOA COMPU	ZTO FORMATICOV, A244 EEU MATE [V M[CAOMOLES/M]V FON COMPUTERT ,15, 134 # .Fia.7//15x,334504 of Feed Mate of components 1-,15,54 # .	ZELA,ZYZGX,GAMMOLES USED UP FOM COMPONENTS L4.1G) 1996 Formatilious voundles uged up fom component 110,34 # .Ela,Zyzoux, *Xalfiudikat fertalutitor of components	LAUD FORMAT(/12%,16HMOLFMAGTION IN GALACITY) LAUD LAUD FORMAT(/12%,16HMOLFMAGTION IN EXHAUNT OF GGMPONENT _13,6H = . 	5000 FND
*01	000				9

4-3.

₽ A GF

Series -

Superculture Filowork, With Superculture Filowork, With Marken Status Marken S

4-32

0.0 + 0.0 × 0 + 0.0 0.0 0 0 0

100×00040000

F. . GE

discount of

dimmer's

. استنظار

1

Himmissie 1

Henning a

Garan

-projection-

•

4.5 COMPUTER PROGRAM FOR CORE WEIGHT OPTIMIZATION (P.J. Chludzinski, D.C. Shrh)

The optimization of the total fuel cell system depends on the geometry of the battery stack, the functions and operating conditions of the accessories and their interrelations as affected by the heat and mass transport.

Since the fuel cell battery itself has an optimum weight depending on the geometry of electrodes, the framing material, and electrode screens, it was decided to optimize the core of the battery on these bases. Assuming that the optimum battery core will also produce the optimum system, selected configurations from the sub-program would be further investigated in a detailed calculation of heat and mass balance.

To determine the minimum weight system for the battery core, exclusive of end plates, insulation, and accessories, general layout of the fuel cell shown in Figure 4.5-1 was chosen. The active area of the electrode is 2(H) inches high and L inches wide. The frames which hold the electrodes are (Y1) inches wide, the thickness of the electrolyte frame being (Y6), and the gas frames (Y5). The current from the electrode will be carried by the electrode screen and collected externally. To minimize resistance losses, the current is carried out of two ends of the elect. ¹e.

It was intended to find a relationship between geometric factors such as L. H. Y's, the polarization curve and the electrical resistivity of the electrodes, at various temperatures to minimize the battery weight for a certain power level. The weight minimizes for a certain value of H (other factors being constant) because of the relationship of the screen resis ivity and screen weight. For highly conductive screens, fewer cells are needed to obtain a certain power level, but the weight of the screen is high, producing a high overall battery weight. For highly resistive screens, the weight per screen is low, but more cells are needed because of higher voltage drop per screen. In between the two extremes, the weight will minimize. A computer program was devised to calculate the specific weight of a battery under various choices of parameters. A polarization curve was chosen for octane/ air at various temperatures, and Table 4.5-1 shows the polarization curve.

Table 4.5-1

Performance of Octane/Air Fuel Cell

	J (Cirrent density) ASF						
	5	10	15	20	30	40	50
V' (IR free voltage), volts T = 150°C	. 60	. 52	. 47	. 42	. 37	. 32	. 29
V' (IR free voltage), volts T = 180°C	. 70	. 64	. 60	, 56	. 53	. 50	. 47
V' (IR free voltage), volts T = 204°C	. 80	. 73	. 68	. 65	.61	. 57	. 54



In the second seco

Figure 4.5-1. Layout of Cells for Core Optimization



If the geometry shown in Figure 4.5-1 is used, and the current density is assumed constant over the face of the electrode, then the voltage drop encountered by the current traversing two screens is:

 $.001738 (2H)^2 (^{\rho}/t) (J) volts$

where: H is longest path length traversed by an eleciron (half the active area height in this case), inches.

p/t is the electrode resistivity in the direction of current flow, ohm per square

J is the current density, ASF

The voltage drop due to electrolyte resistance is:

.00273 (^Pe) (Y6) (J) volts

where: ^Pe is the electrolyte resistivity, ohm-cm

(Y6) is the electrolyte thickness, inch

J is current density, ASF

The cell net potential can be obtained from the iR free potential by combining the expressions in the form:

$$V = V' - .001738(2H)^2 (\rho/t) (J) - .00273 (\rho e) (Y6) (J)$$
(1)

The total current, I is obtained from:

$$I = \frac{W}{V} \quad \text{amps} \tag{2}$$

(3)

(4)

where: W is the gross battery power, watts

The current per cell is:

 $i = \frac{2(H)(L)(J)}{144}$ amps

where: L is the width of the electrode.

The number of cells in the stack is:

$$N = \frac{I}{i}$$

The weight of the battery is the combined weight of:

a. The frames for gas and electrolyte spaces, (LB11)

b. The weight of the screens, (LB12)

c. The weight of the catalyst, (LB13)

d. The weight of the electrolyte (LB14)

$$LB1) + (LB12) + (LB13) + (LB14)$$
(5)

The frame weight, (LB11) is:

THE REPORT OF THE PROPERTY.

$$(LB11) = \frac{2N(^{\rho}1)(Y1)}{1728} ((L) + 2(H) + 2(Y1)) (2(Y5) + (Y6))$$
(6)

where: N is the number of cells

 $\binom{p}{1}$ is the density of the frame material, lb/ft^3

(Y1) is the width of the frames, inch

(Y5) is the thickness of the gas frames, inch

(Y6) is the thickness of the electrolyte frame, inch

The screen weight, (LB12) is:

$$(LB12) = \frac{4(N)}{144} ((L) + 2(Y1)) ((H) + (Y1) + (Y8)) (p2)$$
(7)

where: (Y8) is the distance which the screen projects beyond the stack for bus bar connections, inch.

 $(^{\circ}2)$ is the specific weight of the screen, lb/ft^2

The catalyst weight, (LB13), is:

$$(LB13) = \frac{4(H)(L)(^{\rho}3)(N)}{144}$$
(8)

where: $(^{\rho}3)$ is the average catalyst loading for anode and esthode, $1b/ft^2$

The electrolyte weight, (LB14), is:

$$(LB14) = \frac{2(H)(L)(Y6)(^{\rho}4)(N)}{1728}$$
(9)

where: $(^{\rho}4)$ is the density of the electrolyte at 70°F, lb/ft^3

The specific weight of the battery, (SWB), is:

$$(SWB) = \frac{(LB1) (1000)}{(W)} \qquad lb/KW \tag{10}$$

For the system chosen, Figure 4.5-2 shows the relationship between tantalum expanded screen resistivity and specific weight of screen at 70°F. The change in resistivity with temperature is shown for tantalum in Figure 4.5-3, and was taken into account when the cell operating temperature was varied.

The computer input that was kept constant was:

- W, gross power = 600 watts
- (Y1), width of frames = 0.5 inch
- (Y5), thickness of gas frames = 0, 125 inch for a "back-to-back" design where one anode chamber feeds two anodes.



Figure 4.5-2. Measured Resistance of Tantalum Expanded Screens

4-37

j.



1014

æ.,

Figure 4. 5-3. Resistivity of Tantalum

 $(^{\rho}1)$, density of frame material = 66.1 lb/ft³. This is the density for polyphenylene oxide or polysulfone.

(^{ρ}3), catalyst loading = 0.1 lb/ft²

 $(^{P}4)$, density of electrolyte at 70°F = 106 lb/ft³

(Y8), projection of screen beyond the frames = 0, 5 inch.

The computer input that was varied was:

Cell temperature, two values 150°C and 180°C.

Screen resistivity and corresponding screen specific weight, three values.

Electrolyte gap, 3 values: 1/32, 1/16 and 1/8 inch.

Current density, and corresponding .R free potential, 5 values.

Electrode height, 5 values.

Electrode width, 5 values.

The following tabulations are equations, input sheets, and the program as used on the G-E 625 computer. Sample computer output sheets are included for the actual case chosen for detailed heat and mass balances.

DECØ 30 OPTIMIZATION OF SPECIFIC WEIGHT OF DIRECT HYDROCARBON/AIR/H3PO4 FUEL CELL BATTERY $V = V_{prime} - .006952(H)^2 (RHO/T) (J) - .00273(RHO E) (Y6) (J)$ I (Total) = $\frac{W}{V}$ <u>2(J)(H)(L)</u> 144 Cell)= 1 1-516-2 541 ពេទ ឆា $N = \frac{I (Total)}{I (Per Cell)}$ LB1 = LB11 + LB12 + LB13 + LB14LB11 = $\frac{2N(RHO 1)(Y1)}{1728}$ L + 2(H) + 2(Y1) 2(Y5) + Y6 L + 2(Y1) H + Y1 + Y8 $LB12 = \frac{4N}{144}$ RHO 2 4(H) (L) (RHO 3) (N) 144 LB13 = 2(H) (L) (Y6) (RHO 4) (N) 1728 LB14 =SWB = (LB1)(1000)

Input Values:

.

2(H), RHO/T, J, RHO E, Y6, L, RHO 1, Y1, Y5, Y8, RHO 3, RHO 4, W, T, RHO 2

Built in the program:

V prime - dependent on T and J

67A200279A

. ".

DECØ 30

OPTIMIZATION OF SPECIFIC WEIGHT OF DIRECT HYDROCARBON/AIR/H3TO4 FUEL CELL BATTERY

If a plot is desired:

(1) Set NG=1 and fill the rest of the PLOT array appropriately where:

NC = number of curves to be plotted (maximum 5) DELX= value of 1 inch on X-axis XMX = maximum value of X-axis XMN = minimum value of X-axis INX = number of values in X-array (maximum 50) IIX = memory increment for X-array: 1.plot every point 2.plot every second point, etc. IND - { -1 plot only symbols 0 plot a line without symbols 1 plot a line with symbols

> Fill a value in for each curve. If there aren't 5 curves, put a value in all 5 places anyway.

DWG, NO._

÷.

- (2) Fill the plot title in the IDENT line.
- (3) Fill the axis titles in the HOLI line 6 characters are allowed for each title - if all 6 characters are not needed, fill in spaces.
- (4) All curves are plotted on the same Y-axis the Y-axis scale is set up by the computer.
- (5) On \$ TAPE card (after \$ LIMITS card), make sure there's a D in Column 21.

If no plot is desired;

- (1) Set NG=0 and fill the rest of the PLOT array with zeros.
- (2) The HOLI and IDENT cards may be completely excluded.
- (3) On \$ TAPE card (after \$ LIMITS card), make sure there's an R in Column 21.

67A200279B

DECØ 30

-10-11

OPTIMIZATION OF SPECIFIC WEIGHT OF DIRECT HYDROCARBON/AIR/H3P04 FUEL CELL BATTERY

625 INPUT SHEET

Co1. 2 Col. 70-\$DECØ30, IDENT=60H graph title Col. 2 Col. 10 Col. 16 Col. 52-HØLI 42H X-axis Y-axia Co1. 2-Col. 2 Y PLØT= VAL= W ¥1 NG , ¥5 NC . RHO1 DELX ¥8 XMX RH03 XMN RHO4 INX Т 1 **IX** RHOE 1ND (1) MIN. L IND (2) MAX. L IND (3) DELTA L 1ND (4) MIN. Y6 IND (5) MAX. Y6 0 MM1 DELTA Y6 60 NIDENT MIN. J 0 YMAX (1) , MAX. J 0 YMIN (1) DELTA J MIN. 2(H) MAX. 2(H) Darg. Morall DELTA 2(H) Number of RHQT, P2 combinations given RHC/T Z Repeat as many P2 times as needed At end of each case: Col. 2--At end of <u>sll</u> cases: Col. 2-6. A200279C

#1254 1 11-14-65

1	(IMENSION HULI(/),JCHARI(6),YMAX(6),YMIN(6),IND(6),IDEN+(10),
2	1PLOT(20),VAL(50),YY1(50),YY2(50),YY3(50),YY4(50),YY5(50),X(50),
T.	2F0T(5), P2(5), BUE(692, YYE(50)
, A	
	1 - 3 : 4 - 9 - 4 1 - 6 - 10 - 9
2	
6	CALL PLUIS(BUP, ISIZ, IGHE)
7	2 LALL FLGERR(5.ERR)
8	+0F=0,0
9	NAMELIST/DEUD30/PLOT,VAL, COF, HDL1, IDENT
10	HEAD(5, CEGOSO)
11	11/1ENO NE.0.0300 TO 386
11	
14	
15	
14	
15	GELX=PLUI(S)
16	λMX= ^μ LOI(4)
17	XMN=PLOT(5) ~
1.4	
10	
20	
20	
<i>k</i> 1	
25	
23	IND(4)=F(UT(11)
24	
25	MMI=PLOI(13)
26	KIDENTSPLUT(14)
27	YMAX(1)=PLOI(15)
28	YMIN(1)=PLOI(16)
24	« CALL MAH(H115)
3.0	16(YMAX(1), EQ, 0, 0)YMAX(1)=BITS
24	LL (VMIN(1) FO.O.DSVMIN(1) EPITS
31	
33	YIEVAL(2)
34	(5#VAL(3)
35	P1=VAL(4)
36	¥H=VAL(5)
37	₽3=VAL(6)
38	P4=VAL(7)
70	I THUR I (M)
40	
40	
41	
42	
43	LELAL=VAL(12)
44	Y6MIN#VAL(1S)
45	Y6MAX=VAL(14)
46	Y6HULT=VAL(15)
47	AJMINEVAL(10)
48	AJHAX=VAL(1/)
40	OFIAJEVAL (18)
6.1	
20	nori terrente e la la zazione della construcción della construcción della construcción della construcción della

1254 1	11-14-60
52	Unterparte (21)
5.5	VL1=VAI (22)
54	111=23
55	100 10 11=1.NL1
56	₩0 !(11)=V AL(111)
57	111=111+1
58	P2(11)=VAR(111)
59	111+11+1
60	10 CONTINUE
61	1=1
62	i vC=ù
63	7n Hult=Philli
64	#22=#2(1)
65	Y6=Y6M N
60	Hp AJSAJMIN
67	45 lF(T1.EU.180.U)67 TU 84
64	1+ (11.40+.0)60 TO 86
54	1+ (AJ. HU. 5.0) VH=.60
7 ()	11 (AJ. EU. 10.0) VP=.52
71	1+ (AJ. + U. 15. A) VH=. 47
12	1+ (AJ.FU./0.0) VH=.42
7.5	1+ (AU. + U. SO. C) V+=. 37
74	11 (AU.FU.40.0)VH=.32
75	14 (AJ.EQ.50.0) VP=.29
76	ы) то му
77	NA 1+ (AJ. EG. 5. 0) VP=.70
78	IFCAU.FU.10.03VF=.64
79	IF CAU. FU. 15.9) VP=.60
6.8	1+ (AJ, EU, 20, 0) VP=, 56
81	1+ (20.26.39.3) VP=.55
85	IF (AJ.FU.40.0) VP=.50
83	1+ (AJ.+ 6. 50. 1) VF=. 4/
Ř4	1+ (AU. FU. 60. 1) VP#. 443
85	1+ (AJ.FU. /n. n) VPz. 422
86	1+ (AJ.+4.00.0)VPz.40)
用力	(i) IU 89
88	Hx 17 (AJ,F6.7.0) VP=,80
89	IF(AJ,FU.10.0)VP=./3
90	1+ (AJ.+4.15.0)VP2.68
91	IF (AU, FQ, 20.0) VP=.65
45	IF (AU.FU.SO.0)VF=.61
93	1+ (AJ.FU.40.0) VPE.57
94	IF CAU, FU, 50.01VP=.54
95	BO INC+1
95	WHITE (6. BUDDING
97	*#11E(6,410)W, Y1, P1, 2EF, AJ, Y5, P22, PD17, 11, Y6, P3, VP,
98	OU HATHSWIN
99	L=t
100	95 HIH2/2.0
101	*(L)=H2
102	ALSALMIN
10.5	M = 1

.....

Heisertlekense, ⁴⁵ Mispisserzeses

intratives:

damonantisⁿ di 1.300 da

Mussaggaastes.⁵ Maraasiggaastes.⁵

արիստուներ են շեր

म्बर्ड्ड्डिड्रिंग् स्टब्स् क्रिन्ड्रिड्रिय्वस्थित

Mathininith ||2017004200420

1 Same and the second

Hall Street

anneⁿfaut^e Nation a rea

No. 27 - 111-15

Manddigmans,

The set of the set of

Mattheway

Hartifertgeren"

YH. P4

1

100 V=VP+.000869+H+2+P011+A_-.00273+PFE+Y6+AJ 104 105 Alsw/V 106 HI=(2.0+AJ+H+AL)/144.0 ANUMEATZHE 107 ALB11=(12.0+ANUM+P1+Y1)/1/28.03+(AL+H2+2.0+Y1)+(2.0+Y5+Y6) 108 109 ALR12=((4, 0 = ANUM)/144, 0) = (AL+2.0+Y1) = (H+Y1+YR) = P22 ALA13=(4.0=++AL=23+ANUM)/144.0 110 ALR14=(H2+AL++6+P4+AVUM)/1728.0 111 ALBI=ALBI1+ALB' 2+ALBI3+ALB14 112 SWHa(ALH1#140:,)/H 115 HAT1=ALB11/ALB1 114 HAT2=AL812/4L81 115 116 HAT3=ALB13/ALB1 HAT4=ALB14/ALB1 117 HTITE(6,820)AL, H2, V. &I. 81. ANUM, ALH1, ALR11, ALR12, ALB13, ALH14, 118 119 15WB, NAT1, HAI2, HAT3, RAT4 120 IF (M.EQ.1)60 10 1101 1F (M.E0.2)60 FR 1102 121 122 IF (M.EQ. 3)60 10 1103 123 IF(M.ED.4)GU 10 1104 IF (M.EQ.5)GU 10 1105 124 125 IF (M.E0.6) 60 10 1106 1101 YY1(L)=SWB 126 60 TO 102 127 YY2(L)=5WH 128 1102 60 TU 102 129 130 1107 YY3(L)=54H 60 TU 102 131 1104 Y14(L)=SWE 132 133 GO TO 102 1105 YY5(L)=5WM 134 135 GO TU 102 136 1106 YY6(L)=5W5 102 IF CAL.EG. AL MAXIGO TO 105 137 138 ALTAL+DELAL 139 M=M+1 60 TO 100 140 105 IF(H2.F0.H24AX)60 TO 107 141 H2=H2+DELH2 142 143 l =L+1 60 TU 95 144 145 107 IF (NG.EQ.U)30 TU 109 CALL GPLOICNG, NC, HOLT, JCHARI, UELX, YLENGT, KMX, XMN, YMAX, YMIN, 146 11NX, 11X, X, Y11, YY2, YY3, YY4, YY5, YY6, IND, MMI, IERR, IDENT, NIDENT) 147 148 IF (IERR. FU. 1) WRITE(6,910)NG 149 IF (JERR.EU.2) WRITE (6,920) IIX IF (JERH. EU. S)WRITE (6.930) INX 150 151 109 IF (AJ.FQ.AJMAX)GO TO 110 AJ=AJ+DELAJ 152 GU TO 82 153 154 110 IF (Y5.F0.Y6HAX)60 TO 115 YOSYO+YOMUL I 155

#1254 1

11-14-46

*1251

÷

51 1	11-14-60
156	au 16 A0
157	11K =1+1
158	1+ (1-1+EQ+Art 1) file TH 2
154	50 10 70
1.64	ана антератория
151	an tu 2
162	JOG AALE PLUIK
165	
164	HON FORMAT(1H1///ZKX.64HSPECIFIC AT SHI OF MINECT HTPROCARHOM/ATH/HSP
165	1 FUEL CELL HAITERY//36X, HICASH , 13//)
165	310 FURMAT(14x,300= ,E14,7,5x,4041=)E14,7,5x,70000 =)F14.7,
167	15x,7H2H0 E= ,E14,7/14x,3HJ= ,E14+7+75,4H75= ,F14+7+75,
164	У/нныў 2± ,+14,7,3X,/484)/1± ,r14,//14X,3М/т. ;F14,//3А,
167	SAMYAT ,E14,/,DX,/HRH3 ST ,F14,/,SX,97V PALATE /F14,//SAXMOTCH /
171	4+34,1,mx,2000 42 st14.13
171	Hyp HUMAIC//SHA, SHET IF 54,7,IOX,6M2HPT IF 14,77784-0394 - 7 37474
172	19x,1043(1014);; +14,7,704354(1014);
175	2*14,//A+5*2*2*1********************************
174	3と14、7、9ストの10-2016年、2月14、7203年の時に113年、2月14、721年、117日の11日、113年1777。
175	4+x,1948412 AIX +F14.7,93,1948 9727.81# +F14.77398,108 4127 757 1
176	5-14,/,HX,10-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5-5
177	910 FURMAT(1H1,114,16HPL)T EHRDY NUE (10)
174	920 > URMAT(1+1,104,144PL11 EHMON 13=+13)
174	ARE FORMATINESS A, INFRUIT MATCH CAR (12)
18:1	1304 FORMAT(1K1715A,35ELNOUT ERROR + SKIPPIKG 33 SEAF CASE)
181	

			WA							
- - 										
and a second sec				*						
							-			
a manage of the second se		nd Marian an	a to think we have a set of a solution			and a state of the		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
								ξ. e		
				1						
									1	
х - 2										
-			200	N & D 0 0 0	200		~~~	* N O		
			1476 21476	864E	576E 1476 2416	932E 147E 523E	456E 1476 8096	205E 502E 625E		
		105	400	-200	.5.1. 1.1.1.	1100	8407 1112 2422	2677		
		00000	***			666 848				
44		500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500		L013	L813 2/L81	L 813	L813 7181	LAIS		
	á		L91	147	LAIS	LH1	L ^A 12	LH12		and the second
	ATTE									
	ברר ו	••			2005 2005 2005					
	EL C	NO C M 00 C D	0 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 4	0E 0. 1344. 13555	UE 01 3000 13200 9497	06 01 56647 77120 77120 48472	06 91	00 97 99990 99990 99990	и С	
	10 E.C	00000	0000	0000	0.000	0000	0000	0000	50000	
		120						0.60 1= 1=		
	U/AT		H CFL			# 5-15			tin	
	CABRC F 7				. 42 47 47			8 8 7 7 7		
	Y DRO			_	-		_	-		
	SCT +	0000		0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	N 1 NM 0 0 0 0 0	3 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	5	
	A 1 1	00000	1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 100			0000 0040 0040 0040 0040 0040 0040 004	0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 00000	0000 5498 5498 5498 5498 5498 5498 5498 5498	0000	
a av	14 OF	00.00 00.00 0.44 a	0 0 4 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 4 0 0	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2	200	2540	1573 1729 1779		
	ê. J			1111						
Ŧ	0	****	01AL 181 37156	SHL SHL	0145 - 681 - 781 -	0 1 4 L 0 - 5 1 4 L 0 - 5 1 4 L 0 - 5 1 4 1 0 - 5 1 4 1 0	014L) -811 -811 3/LH1	17AL) 1811 1811 1814		
	Daris	ちょう	161	141	1 K Tr 1, 64	14 Ti Left.	Le1	111	•	
	•	8 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5								
		3000	1000 C C			4 4 4 4	19 1	골 만 드 프 존 드		
			4 N 4 4 N 4 4 N 4 4 N 4	0 + 4 0 - 4 0 - 4 0 - 4	2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 200	4 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0	4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5	16262		
		452	0.00 11.0 11.0 11.0	897 - C 997 - C 997 - C	0. 39 9. 30 9. 30	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	1996 1997 1997 1997 1997	507-5		
			* * * * **	本単本			× 8 8 > 1 ₩	* # #		
				5	25	- C C	191	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5		
			•		4-47					
							÷			

026 02 026 02 036 03	186 02 126 02 516 00	136 02 026 02 006 00	116 02 026 02 016 00	216 03 546 03 246 00	116 03 546 02 446 02	056 02 846 02 896 00	546 02 146 02
5.1586 5.1156 5.7155	0,99240 0,111550 0,010	0.659301 0.11151 0.242115	0.545441 0.111556 0.243656	6.201642 0.11202 0.223555	0.100821 0.112022	0.672141 0.11202 0.24023	0.54410
ка Седан 1 - 1 2 / С - В 1 н	Ne Le13e LH12/L81e	Ка LR13a LR12/LB1a	4# L813# L812/L81#	чи 1813 1813	84 18135 19127 18135	an 14:1,2,2,4,1 #14:2,2,4,1	an an an
	NN00 8688		NN 0 0	1000	NN00 E 60E	2222	0.0
0.1250000E 0.2126891E 0.3004493E 0.3405539F	501010E 11 0.1875090E 0.27636E 0.3578636E 0.3578630E		000000F n1 0.3125000E 0.2010079E 0.2401501E 0.130699E	000000 01 0.0333335 0.21644575 0.31646745 0.31646745	0000006 71 0.5.10667F 0.2.02419E 0.269241E 7.3635943E 7.3635943E	u	0.33533375
1(858 CELL)= L812= L812= L814/L81= L914/L81=	H# 0.6 15858 CELLT# 1811/1918 1814/1918	H= 0.6 I(PEA CELL)= (A11/LA1= (B14/L01=	H= 0.6 1(PFA CELL)= L812 L814/L81= L814/L81=	M= 0.0 1(PFR CFLL)= 1911/191= 1914/141= 1914/141=	N= 0.8 1(PER CELLI= 1812 1911(LE1= 1.814/LE1= 1.814/LE1=	I(PF4 CELL)* LA12* L81/LR1* L814/LR1*	CB CFLUDE
J.16732555 04 0.27202476 02 0.15004926 03 0.12537056 00	n,15000006 02 0,16737536 04 0,2346806 02 0,12964826 00 0,12964826 00	r.20000006 02 0.1673558 04 0.12192150E 02 0.13373296 03 0.13303296 00	2500000E 02 0.1013553E 04 0.2048186E 02 0.13515556E 03 0.1351498E 00	n.5000006 01 v.1800J516 04 0.3374596 02 0.1828994E 03 0.1146423E 03 2.1146423E 00	n.10000006 02 0.0001516 04 0.228999966 05 0.1217176 03 0.13171776 03 n.15000066 02	0,14667351E 04 0,1928,20,20 02 0,1347,101E 03 0,1385981E 90 0,1385981E 90	0.1680.51E 04
14 074L)* 8414 5464 1613/L41*	r (101AL)= r (101AL)= B11= Sva= La1J/L+1=	111014L)# 111014L)# 1114 11413/LH1#	L# 1(101AL)# .811# 5948# L013/L81#	:= 1(TUTAL)= -011= Sude Lut3/LH1=	1 (1014() = 1 (1014() = 0411 54012 1412 (412)	1(1014L)= 2411= 544= 544= Let 3/LA1=	TERUTALD.
900	000	200	600		000	200	00
1.35a54296 1.33a54296 1.33414916 1.3334242316	0.45454246 0.46645726 0.30794516	0.3545429E 0.35454263E 0.3079251E	5.35454298 5.325,34188 0.30792518	6.3570482E 6.3771563E 0.3092413E	1. 35,40 62,2 1. 95,44 6 1. 90 62,41 37 1. 90 62,41 37	n. 35704826 u. 90424066 0. 30424166 0. 30424166	0.35707625
L #1# L #1# L 814#	1.83# 1.83# 1.83#	V# LH1= L014=	V= L91= L834=	v: LH1: LB14:	с. 1915 1914 1	「 日 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	8 H > - -

4-48

•

HE

Ĭ

							3,								
	0,40328436 02 0,11202346 02 0,244449696 00		n.1621983F 03 9.1126377E 02 0.2232137E 00		n.A109917E 02 0.1126377E 07 0.2355901E 00		0.54066116 02 0.11265776 02 0.24059266 00		n.4054998E 02 n.1126577E 02 n.2432987E 01		0.3243967E 02 n.1126577E 02 n.2449944E 00		0.11339736 03 0.11339786 02 0.72297236 00		n.6403867E 02
	NF LA13= L912/LB1=		48 1813= LA121H1=		N# LA12/LB13#		h= L013= L012/L01=		N= LA17/LA1=		N= LA13= LA13=		N# LP12/LB1#		
M# 0.8000000 91	I(PER CELL)= 0.4166667E n2 LB12= 0.1993196E n2 EB11/LA1= 0.218547E 00 EB14/LA1= 0.3992753E 00	M* 0.1000006 h2	I()564 GELL)= 0.1041647E N2 La12= 0.21049546 02 1/L01= 0.32040156 00 L#)./L01= 0.3291448E 00	H= 0.100000E 02	I(PFR CFLL)= 0.2003333E 02 LP12= 0.1932864E 02 LB11/LB1= 0.24091414E 00 LB14/LA1= 0.3789793E 00	H= 0.100000€ 72	I(PFR CFLL)= 0.3125600E 02 La12= 0.1874292E 02 La11/LB1= 0.2197055E 00 La14/LB1= 0.3991200E 00	w= 0.1000013E A2	I(PFR CELL)* 0.4146667E 02 L912* 0.1945006E 02 L911/L91* 0.1991517F 00 L914/L91* 0.4100157E 00	H= 0.100000E n2	I(PFR CELLIE 0.5208333E A2 L912a 0.1927435E 02 L911/L91a 0.1671548E 00 L914/L91a 0.4160434F 00	H= 0.120000€ N2	ICPFR CFLL1= 0.175000E 02 L912= 0.2003040E 02 L911/L91= 0.3103304E 02 L914/L91= 0.5301849E 00	H= 0.1700000F #2	1(PFR CELL)= 0.2500000F N2
r.25r000AE 02	.1680.51E 04 .16890.72E 02 .1290862E 03 .1246431E 00	A.5000006 01	11589566E 04 1112251E 02 111574410E 03 11192381E 00	P.1000006 J2	1,1689566E 04 1,20458394 02 1,1367492E 03 1,1367492E 03	n.1500000E 02	0.1005566E 64 0.12980375E 02 0.1298355E 03 0.1245869E 80	r.200000E 02	0,16899666 04 0,1502643E 02 0,1263883E 03 0,1489440E 00 0,1489440E 00	",2500006 02	0.1589566E 04 0.1394004E 02 0.1243181E 03 0.1510074E 00	r.5004000E 01	0.1700467E 04 0.2427966E 02 0.1542672E 03 0.125123E 00	r.1000000£ 02	0.170096/E 04
	1(701AL)= 0 1(701AL)= 0 544= 0 1413/L91= 0		1(TOTAL)= -811= -811= Swd= Lets/LB1=		1(101AL)= 	1	1416)AL)= -B11= -S48= -E413/L81=		1 (T O T AL) = 		1(TUTAL)= -811= -848= L013/L91=	•	10101AL)= -811= 588= L413/L41=	•	1(TUTAL)=
	n.35786826 40 0.77444146 02 0.30023136 02		0.35514086 00 0.94464576 02 0.31092716 02		0.35512086 00 0.32644506 02 0.31692716 02		(.35512046 06 0.77003156 02 0.31092716 02		0.35512086 00 0.75#32976 02 0.31492716 62		0.35512046 00 0.74590866 02 0.31092715 02		0.35274066 00 0.32560346 02 0.31302516 02		. n.3527406E 00
	V= L+1= L+1=		V =		¥= LH1≡ L814=		5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		V= LH1= LH1=		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1				×*

(R)

art Albert

Partice and

Cutterent P

April, anteson, "II 6 90, sept 201, and

and and add

Same strenger

Alder a 200 and a Antonio and Antonio antonio antonio antonio antonio antonio antonio antonio antonio

11 -151 - 11 111253320000000

E on the second

Clifford of a straight

a strength of the strength of

28	N N 0	~~~	000
n.1135978E n.2559942E	0.4535911E 0.1133978E 0.2408474E	0.3401933E 0.1133978E 0.2436376E	0.2721547E 0.1133978E 0.2453870E
L417/LH1*	L813* L813* L813*	K= LA13= LA12/LA1=	LA12/LB1=
- 222	NN28	N N O O O	0000 C200
0.1491855F 0.2358520E 0.5899745E	200000E 52 0.3750000E 0.1534524E 0.1934924E 0.1993490E	200000E 52 0.5000000E 0.1305890E 0.13105396E 0.4223179E	20000E 72 0.6259000E 0.1788661E 0.126861E 0.1696019E 0.4294472E
L812* (1811/L41* L814/L41*	M= 0.1 I(PFH CFLL)= L912= L911/LR1= L914/LR1=	M# 0.1 I(PFA CELL)# 1811/L912# 1811/L912# L914/L914	H= 0.1 I(PER CELU)= Leil/LB1= L914/LB1=
N20	N 4000	N	N 4030
1.18/0645E	n,1500006/E 0,170096/E 0,1318205E 0,1269493E 0,14867546	r,2000000 1,170967 0,1341996 0,1353996 0,1353996	n.25900046 0.17009676 0.12362526 0.12148376
. Hile (Swer Luij/Lhie (1610141)= .814= .544= .544=	1(101AL)= 	L= 1(101AL)= 1(101AL)= 548= L=13/LH1=
25	000	000	0 0 0 0 0 0
0.31302516	U - 5577406E 0 - 7616497E 0 - 3130251E	n.357406E 0.7412073E n.3130251E	n.35774046 0.72#91426 0.31302516
=161 =161	42 1914 1914	L 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	V= LB14= LB14=

CONSIDERATION OF A CONSIDERATION OF A CONSIDERATION OF A CONSIDERATI

OPPORTED STRATEGY CONTRACTOR DATES OF THE OPPORT

ł

4-50

÷.

ŧ

HINING CONTRACTOR

Building

Balvedilines.

Contraction of

Contraction of the

hills

HISOMARSPELL

4.6 DEFINITION OF SCREEN RESISTIVITY (OHM PER SQUARE) (P.J. CLludzinski, D.C. Shah)

"Ohm per square" is a conventional name for specific resistivity of objects whose geometries are complicated, with the result that resistance is difficult to predict from geometry and resistivity. For instance, take the case of a metal screen carrying current along its strands:



The resistance R, will be related to the metal resistivity, ρ , by:

$$R = \frac{\rho_L}{Wt}$$

where t is a thickness parameter which accounts for the complication in geometry due to the strands in the screen. The parameter t is not the actual thickness of the screen. The parameter $\binom{p}{t}$ is factored out of the expression for resistance, and called:

$$\left(\frac{f}{t}\right) = \frac{ohm-cm}{cm-thick}$$
 or "ohm per square"

The parameter $\left(\frac{\rho}{t}\right)$ is assigned as a specific resistivity of a particular screen geometry and is useful in predicting the resistance of any size rectangular screen, once (ρ/t) has been experimentally measured on one specific size. Notice that if an actual square (L = W) is considered, then the resistance $R = \left(\frac{\rho}{t}\right)$ remains constant regardless of the magnitude of L (hence the term "ohm per square").

4.7 DETAILED EQUATIONS FOR HEAT, MASS, AND ENERGY BALANCES. WEIGHT AND PARASITIC POWER (P. J. Chludzinski, D. C. Shan)

This set of equations is the continuation of optimization of the fuel cell system from Appendix 4, 5. The system is divided into four different stations. The heat and mass balances are calculated peparately for each station. The optimum values obtained from the previous program (Appendix 4, 5) were fed to this set of equations, assuming that an optimum fuel cell stack would produce a correspondingly optimum system.

To obtain consistency in units each flow rate is presented as gram moles per hour. Heat units are in K Cal/hr and °C unless specified. Pressure is given in mm Hg (absolute), and percent composition as mole fraction.

4.7.1 Explanation for Notation

(E)	Electrolyte flow rate (gm	mole/hr)
(X)	Mole fraction H ₂ O	
(T)	Temperature (°C)	
(P)	Pressure (mm Hg absolut	e)
(D)	O ₂ flow rate (gm mole/hr) or air flow
(G)	N ₂ flow rate (gm mole/hr)
(B)	H ₂ O (gm mole/hr)	(v) = vapor
	-	(1) = liquid
(F)	Fue flow (gm mole/hr)	(v) = vapor
		(l) = liquid
	00 flow (am male (ha)	

(K) CO₉ flow (gm mole/hr)

Subscripts refer to Station No., Stream No., and inlet or outlet condition, respectively. For example:

(F132) Fuel flow rate in (gm mole/hr) at Station No. one, Stream No. three at the outle).

4.7.2 Opdimum System Values

The following optimum values were obtained for the Hydrocarbon/Air fuel cell system from

Appendix 4, 5:

(T100)	Temperature of system (°C)
(V)	Voltage per cell (volts)
2(H)	Height of the electrode (inch)
(L)	Length of the electrode (inch)

(P/t)	Screen resistivity (ohm per square)
(J)	Current density (amps per square foot)
(N)	Number of cells
(W)	Gross power (watt)
(P2)	Weight of screen (lb/sq ft)
(T)	Total current (amp)
(i)	Current per cell (amp)
(**1)	Width of frame (inch)
(Y2)	Air gap (inch)
(Y3)	Insulation thickness (inch)
(Y4)	Electrode thickness (inch)
(Y 5)	Gas frame thickness (inch)
(Y6)	Electrolyte gap (inch)
(Y8)	Projectal screen height from battery for bus bar connections (inch)
(M1)	Length of fuel cell stack (inch)
(M2)	Thickness of end plate (inch)
(T ,	Ambiert temperature (*F)
(T 101)	remperature of insulation surface (°C)
(LB1)	Total weight of core (lb)
(LB11)	Weight of frames (lb)
(LB12)	Weight of screens (1b)
(LB13)	Weight of catalyst (lb)
(LB14)	Weight of electrolyte in Core (lb)
(^p 1)	Density of frame material (lb/ft ³)
(^P 3)	Average catalyst loading (lb/ft ²)
(^ρ 4)	Density of electrolyte at 70°F (lb/ft ³)
(SWB)	Specific weight of the core (lb/KW)
(^ρ e)	Electrical resistivity of electrolyte (ohm-cm)
(N)	Number of carbon atoms

4.7.3 <u>Calculation Procedure</u>

19

4.7.3.1 Fuel Cells (See Figure 4.7-1.)

A. Anode Mass Balance

Theoretical fuel flow = $\frac{3600 (l)}{96500 (6 (n) + 2)}$



CONTRACTOR STORE STORE

n. Trans

Figure 4.7-1. Process Streams for Heat and Mass Balance on Fuel Cells

(F131) = (SF	$\left(\frac{3600 (I)}{96500 (6 (n) + 2)}\right)$	(1)
(F131)	Fuel feed rate (gm mole/hr)	
T132)	Fuel exhaust (gm mole/hr)	
)	Fuel stoichiometry	
n	Total current (amp)	
	No of carbon atoms	
(F 132) =	$\left((SF) - 1 \right) \left(\frac{3600 (I)}{96500 (6(n) + 2)} \right)$	(2)
(K 132) =	$\frac{3600}{96500} \begin{pmatrix} 1 & (n) \\ (n) + 2 \end{pmatrix}$	(3)
(K132)	CO ₂ exhaust from anode (gm mole/hr)	
(B132) =	$\frac{(P100) ((F132) + (1.132))}{(P132) - (P100)}$	(4)
(B132)	Water vapor leaving anode (gm mole/hr)	
(P100)	Saturation vapor pressure of water at temperature (T100) over phosphorie	G
	acid (mm Hg)	
(P132)	Total pressure into the system (mm Hg)	
(PE100) =	$\frac{1.7 \times 25.4 (2 (H))}{13.6} + \frac{(PD100)}{2} + 760$	(5)
(PE100)	Average pressure in electrolyte chamber (mm Hg)	
(PD100)	Pressure drop at exhaust (mm Hg)	
2 (H)	Total height of the fuel cell (inch)	
(PA100) =	(P132)	(6)
(PA100)	Average pressure anode (mm Hg)	
(P132)	Pressure at anode exhaust	
(PC100) =	(P122)	(7)
(PC100)	Average pressure in cathode (mm Hg)	
(P122)	Pressure at cathode exhaust (mm Hg)	
(△PA) =	$(\Delta PC) = (PE100) - (PA100) = (PE100) - (PC100)$	(8)
(ΔPA) or	ï	
(ΔPC)	Pressure drop across anode or cathode chamber with respect to	
	electrolyte chamber (mm Hg)	

(B100)

Water produced into the system (gm mole/hr)

C. <u>Heat Balance</u>

Cathode	-		
	(H120) =	[(D122) (HD122) + (G122) (HG122)	
		+(B122) (HB122) + (E122) (HE122)	
		(D121) (HD121) + (G121) (HG 121)	
	•	(B121) (HB121) + (B100) (HB100) + (E122) (HB122)	(18)
	(H120)	Heat out by cathode exhaust (K cal/hr)	
		(HD122); (HG122); (HB122); (HE122) - Heat content of O ₂ , N ₂ ,	
		H _o O (vap.), Electrolyte at cathode exhaust and at (T122) (K cal/gm mole)	
		(HD121); (HG121); (HB121); (HB100); (HE122); Heat content of O ₂ ,	
		N_2 , H_2O , and electrolyte inlet to cathode and at (T121) (K cal/gm mole)	
Anode			
	(H130) =	[(F132) (HF132) + (K132) (HK132) + (B132) (HB132)]	
		+(E132) (HE132)	
	•	$-\left[(F131) (HF131) + (E132) (HE131)\right]$	(19)
	(H130) =	Heat rejection by anode exhaust (K Cal/hr)	
		(HF132); (HK132); (HB132); (HE132) heat content fuel (V); CO ₂ ,	
		H ₂ O(V) and electrolyte at anode exhaust and at (T132)	
		(HF131); (HE131) Heat content of fuel and electrolyte inlet to anode	
		and at (T131)	
	(HR) =	$\frac{(W)(1-(Z))}{(Z)} \times 3.412 \times 0.252$	(20)
	(HR)	Heat to be rejected from the fuel cell system (K Cal/hr)	
	(W)	Gross power (watts)	
	(Z)	Fuel cell efficiency	
	(M1) =	(N)((Y5) + 2(Y4) + (Y6))	(21)
	(N)	Number of cells	
	(M1)	Length of the fuel cell stack (inch)	
	This is exp	lained in Appendix 4. 5.	
	(A101) =	$\frac{2}{1+1}$ (2 (H)) + 2(Y1) + 2 (Y2) + 2(Y3)	

 $\frac{144}{144} ((2 (H)) + 2(Y1) + 2 (Y2) + 2(Y3)) + ((L) + 2(Y1) + 2(Y3))) + ((L) + 2(Y1) + 2(Y3))) + \frac{((L) + 2(Y1) + 2(Y3))}{144}$

(22)

p²⁴

$$(T101) = \frac{1/12(U) (T) (Y3) + (K1) ((T100) \times 1, 8 + 32)}{(U) (Y3) + (K1)}$$
(23)

lieat transfer by free convection
$$\left(\frac{Btu}{hr \ sq \ ft \ ^{\circ}F}\right)$$

Ambient temperature (*F) (T)

(U)

(T100) Operating temperature of the battery (°C) Thermal conductivity of insulation (Btu/hr sq ft *F/ft)

$$(Q^{1} \text{ Loss}) = \frac{1}{4} (U) (A101) ((T101) - (T))$$
(24)

Electrolyte Mass Balance D.

(F112) =
$$\frac{(H110)}{(C_{\rm p}E) (\Delta T)} \times 10^3 (\text{gm mole/hr})$$
 (26)

Exhaust electrolyte flow rate (gm mole/hr) (E112)

(C_pE) Specific heat of phosphoric acid (Cal/gm mole *C)

(ΔT) Temperature rise, phosphoric acid (*C)

Phosphoric acid balance:

$$(1-(X111)) = (E112) (1 - (X112)) +$$

2 (E122) $(1 - \frac{(X112) + (X111)}{2})$

Water balance:

(X112)

(E111)

(E111) (X111) + (B100) - (B122) - (B132) $-2 (E122) \left(\frac{(X122) + (X111)}{2} \right)$

(27)


Figure 4.7-2. Cell Stack and Insulation for Heat and Mass Balance

Equation 27 is solved simultaneously for (E111) and (X111) by fixing the outlet concentration of the electrolyte.

4.7.3.2 Fuel Condenser (See Figure 4.7-3.)

ite mine

A.	Mass	Balance	
(F 332)	=	(K132) (PF332) (P332) - (PF332) - (PB332)	(28)
(F 332)		Fuel loss to stack (gm mole/hr)	
(PF 332	?)	Fuel vapor pressure in equilibrium with liquid at temperature	
		(T332) (mm Hg)	
(PB332	2)	Equilibrium water vapor pressure at temperature (T332) (mm Hg)	
(P332)		Atmosphere pressure (mm Hg)	
(F332)	=	(F132) - (F332)	(29)
(F 322)		Fuel recovered by condensation	
(F132)		Fuel in (the anode exhaust)	
(B332)	E	(K132) (PB332) (P332) - (PF332) - (PB332)	(30)
(B332)		Water loss to stack	
(B312)	=	(B132) - (B332)	(31)
(B312)		Water recovered from exhaust stream	
B.	Heat	Balance	
(H300)	=	(F132) (HF132) + (K132) (HK332) + (B132)(HB132)	
		-(F332) (HF332) + (K132) (HK132) - (B332) (HB332)	
		-(F332) (HFL332) - (B312) (HBL312)	(32)
(H300)		Heat load on fuel condenser (K Cal/hr)	
(HF132	2) =	(HK132); (HB132) Heat content fuel, CO ₂ and water in, inlet stream	
(HF332	2); (HK	(HB332), Heat content of exhaust stream (HF L332); (HB312)	

Assuming surface temperature of feed condenser to be the same as condensation temperature of fuel:

Fuel vapor pressure (P300) (mm Hg)

(P300)	=	$\frac{(F132) \times (P132)}{(K132) + (F132) + (B132)}$	(33)
(T 300)	=	f (P300)	(34)
(T300)		Skin temperature of the fuel condenser	





4-61

1

μe.

$$(T'_M3) = \frac{((T132) - (T322)) - ((T322) - (T221))}{\ln \frac{(T132) - (T322)}{(T322) - (T221)}}$$
(35)

(TLM3) Log mean temperature (°C)
(A300) =
$$\frac{(11300) \times 4}{(U3) ((TLM3) \times 1.8)}$$
 (36)

$$(A301) = 6 \left(3\sqrt{\frac{A300}{200}}\right)^2$$
(37)

Assume fuel condenser to be of cubical shape.

(A301)Outside surface area (sq ft)(T300)Surface temperature (°C)(Q3 Loss) =
$$1/4$$
 (U) (A301) ((T300) x 1.8 + 32) - (T)(Q3 Loss)Heat loss by free convertion (K Cal/hr)(U)Heat transfer coefficient for free convection $\left(\frac{Btu}{hr \text{ sq ft °F}}\right)$ (D341) = $\frac{(H300) - (Q3 \text{ Loss})}{(HD322) - (HD221)}$ (D341)Air flow rate (gm mole/hr)(HD322)Heat content air at exhaust and,(HD221)inlet to the condenser

$$(V300) = \left(\frac{A300}{290}\right)$$

$$(V300) \quad Volume (cu ft)$$

$$(40)$$

4.7.3.3 Exhaust Air Condenser (See Figure 4.7-4.)

A. Heat	and Mass Balance	
(B222) =	$\frac{(PB222)}{(P222)} - \frac{(D122) + (G122)}{(P222)}$	(41)
(PB222)	Water to stack from exhaust air condenser (gm mole/hr)	
(PB222)	Equilibrium water vapor pressure temperature (T22).	
(P222)	Pressure inside condenser (mm Hg)	
(T222)	Temperature of exhaust air assuming (15°F & 9°C)	
	approach with ambient temperature (T)	



Figure 4.7-4. Process Streams for Heat and Mass Balance - Exhaust Air Condenser

+(G121) ((HG121) - (GH221) (42) +(B121) ((HE121) - (HE221))(H121) - (H221) Heat required to preheat reaction air (K Cal/hr) (43) (BL252) + (B222) = (B121) + (B100) - (E-332) (BL252) + (B222) Total water to be rejected from the system (B121) Water into the fuel cell with air feed (B332) Water to stack from fuel condenser (B222) Water vapor to stack at assumed equilibrium exhaust temperature (T222) (BL252) Water rejected as condensed water from exhaust air condenser If it is desired to reject ((BL252) + (B222)) total amount of water as vapor in exhaust stream, V. P. of water in exhaust stream could be calculated as: (BL252) + (B222)) (P122) (P200) = (44) (D122) + (G122) + (BL252) + (B222) (P200) Vapor pressure H_oO in exhaust stream (mm Hg) (D122) Exhaust on gen to stack (gm mole/hr) Exhaust nitrogen to stack (gm mole/hr) (G122) Water to be rejected (gm mole/hr) (BL262) + (B222) (T200) Is the dew point corresponding to (P200) (T200) =f(P200) (45) (T200) Is the maximum allowable exhaust temperature (°C) to keep the system self-sustaining for water (B122) - (B222) - (BL252) (BL262) -(46) Amount of water to be recirculated to electrolyte chamber (gm moles/hr) (BL262) (D122) ((HD122) - (HD222)) (H200) = (G122) ((HG122) - (HG222)) + (B122) (HG122) - ((B222) + (BL252)) (HBL222) - (BL262) (HBL222) (47) Is the heat load (K Cal/hr) on exhaust air condenser (H200) (T241) = (T121) (48)

2.10

(T242) __xhaust air temperature (*C)

((H121) - (H221))

• (D121)

((HD121) - (HD221))

- (T121) Reactant air inlet temperature (°C)
- (T122) Exhaust temperature (°C) can be equated to (T200) or one may assume a 15°F approach to ambient temperature

$$(TLM2) = \frac{(T222) - (T221)}{\ln \left(\frac{(T222) - (T221)}{(T122) - (T121)}\right)}$$
(49)

(TLM2)

 $(A200) = \frac{(H200)}{(U2) (TLM2)}$

(50)

(54)

Log mean temperature in exhaust air condenser

- (A2:0) Heat transfer area required (sq ft)
- (U2) Heat transfer coefficient $\left(\frac{Btu}{hr sc ft *F}\right)$ (A201) = 6 $\left(3\sqrt{\frac{(A200)}{200}} + \frac{2(Y3)}{12}\right)^2$ (51)

insulation = (Y3) inch

$$(T201) = \frac{(U) (T) (Y3)}{12} + (K1) ((T202) \times 1.8 + 32)}$$
(52)
$$(U) (Y3) + (K1)$$

(T201) Skin temperature of insulation (*F)

$$(Q2 \text{ Loss}) = \frac{1}{4} \quad (U) (A201) ((T201) - (T))$$
(53)

- (Q2 Loss) Heat loss by free convection from the outside surface of condenser (K Cal/hr) (D241) = (H200) - (Q2 Loss) - ((H121) - (d221)) (HD242) - (HD221)
- (D241) Supercooling air rate to condenser (gm mole/hr) Reactant air = (D121) + (G121) + (B122) (54)_b

4.7.3.4 Electrolyte Cooler (See Figure 4.7-5.)

A. Enthalpy Balance

(H430)

(H430) = (F131) ((HF131) - (HFL431)) (55)

Heat required to vaporize and superheat fuel feed from ambient

$$(A401) = \frac{1}{144} ((M1) + 2(Y3)) ((L) + 2(Y3) + 2(Y1)) + \frac{2((Y7) + (Y3))((L) + 2(Y1) + 4(Y3) + (M1))}{144}$$
(56)



Figure 4.7-5. Process Streams for Heat and Mass Balance - Electrolyte Cooler and Fuel ', aporizer

(A401) Outside surface area of electrolyte cooler

$$(T401) = \frac{\frac{(U) (T) (Y3)}{12} + (K) ((T400) \times 1.8 + 32)}{(U) (Y3) + (K)}$$
(57)

(T401) Skin temperature (*F)

ŗ

$$(Q4 \text{ Loss}) = \frac{1}{4} (U) (A401) ((T401) - (T))$$
(58)
(Q4 Loss) Heat loss from electrolyte cooler surface by free convection

$$(D441) = \begin{bmatrix} (E122) & (HE122) + (E112) & (EE112) + (E132) & (HE1 & 2) \\ + (BL262) & (HBL262) + (B312) & (HBL312) \\ - (F131) & (HFL431) - (HF131) & - (Q4 \text{ Loss}) \\ - (E111) & (HE111) \end{bmatrix}$$

$$(HD442) - (HD441)$$

$$(A403) = \frac{(Q403) \times 4}{(U403) (((T400) - (TB)) \times 1.8)}$$
(65)

(A403) Surface area required to vaporize fuel (sq ft)
(TLM404) =
$$\frac{((T400) - (T221)) - ((T400) - (T442))}{\ln \left(\frac{(T400) - (T221)}{T400 - (T442)}\right)}$$
(66)

4.7.3.5 Water Balance

SUTHINININI SUCCESSION

$$(B121) + (B100) = (B332) + (B222) + (BL252)$$
(68)

4.7.3.6 Fuel Balance

(F531)	Ξ	<u>3600 (I)</u> 96500 x 6(N) + 2	+ (F332)	(69)

(F531) Fresh feed required per hr.

Total fuel tank capacity will depend on operation time.

4.7.3.7 Entire System (See Figure 4.7-6.)

(3) Heat Balance on Entire System

(F531) (HFL431) +	((D241) + (D341) + (D441)) (HD221)
HD121) (HD221)	+	(G121) (HG221) + (B121) (HB221) + HR

(F 332) (HF 332) + (K132) (HK 332) + (B332) (HB332)
(C 122) (HD222) + (G122) (HG222) + (B222) (HB222) (HB222) (70)
(BL252) (HBL222) + (D441) (HD442) + (D341) (HD322)
(D241) (HD242) + (Q1 Loss) + (Q2 Loss) + (Q3 Loss)
+ (Q4 Loss)

Equate two sides. If the right-hand side is higher than the left-hand side, then decrease air flow rate or decrease the temperature limit to equate both sides, or vice versa.



1

⁴ strictly.

÷ .

R Setting II

H stratidist H

4000 P

01001000

Hitesting.



4, 7, 3, 8 Parasitic Power

	(1)	To pump electrolyte	
		Amount of electrolyte pumped = (E111)	
,		Pressure difference = (P111) - (P112) mm Hg	
		$(WPE4) = 2.16 \times 10^{-6} (E111) ((P111) - (P112)) watts$	(71)
	(11)	Pump fuel (WPE4) = 5.3 x 10 ⁻⁸ (F131) ((P431) - 760) (14(N) +2) watts	(72)
	(i11)	Pump air to cells (WPD4) = 2.3 x 10 ⁻³ $((T221) + 273) \left(\ln \frac{(P121)}{760} \right) ((D121) + (G121) + (B121) \right)$ watts	(73)
	(iv)	Pump air to exhaust air condenser (WPD5) = 2.3 x 10 ⁻³ $\left((T221) + 273\right) \left(1n \frac{(P121)}{760}\right)$ (D241)	(74)
	(v)	Pump air to fuel condenser (WPD6) = 2.3 x 10 ⁻³ ((T221) + 273) $\left(\ln \frac{(P121)}{760}\right)$ (D341)	(75)
	(vi)	Pump air to electrolyte cooler (V/PD7) = 2.3 x 10 ⁻³ $((T221) + 273) \left(\ln \frac{(P121)}{760} \right)$ (D441)	(76)
	(vii)	Power supplied by the auxiliary battery	
		$(WRB) = + \begin{pmatrix} (WPE4) + (WPF4) + (WPD4) \\ (WPD5) + (WPD6) + (WPD7) \end{pmatrix} (10)$	(77)
		here we assume the pump efficiency = 10%	
	(viii)	Power required to recharge the battery	
		$(RB) = \frac{(WRB) (START)}{(CHARGE)}$	(78)
4. 7. 3. 9	Weight of the	System	
	(A) <u>Exhau</u>	ust Air Condenser	
	$(1.B2) = 4 \times 1$	10^{-4} (A 200) (P 5)	(79)
	$(^{\rho}5)$ = dens	ity of metal used lb/cu it	
	0.08 = fract	tion of total volume as metal	
	200 = sq ft	area/ft ³ of volume	
	(B) <u>Fu</u>	xhaust Condenser	
	(LB3) = 4 A	10^{-4} (A300) (^p 5)	(80)

4-70

(C) Weight of electrolyte cooler and fuel vaporizer

(LB4) =
$$4 \times 10^{-4} ((A402) + (A403) + (A404)) ({}^{6}6)$$
 (81)
(⁶6) density of cooler material of construction
most probably tantalum

44517

(D) Weight of Electrolyte Pan
(LB51) =
$$\frac{f^{0} 6}{1728} \left(2(Y7) (M1) + (2(Y7) + (M1)) ((L) + 2(Y1)) \right)$$
 (82)



 Weight of Electrolyte in Pan

 (LB14) = 2(H) (L) (Y6) (^p4)/1728 lb
 (63)

 (F) Weight of Electrolyte Cooler
 (84)

 (LB5) = (LB14) + (LB51)
 (84)

$$(LB7) = 0.1 \begin{pmatrix} (LB1) + (LB2) + (LB3) + (LB4) \\ + (LB5) + (LB6) \end{pmatrix}$$
(85)

This is assuming manifolds average 10% of the weight of unit.

(J) Total Weight of the System (LBT)

$$(LBT) = 1.1 \left((LB1) + (LB2) + (LB3) + (LB4) + (LB5) + (LB6) + (LB8) \right)$$
(87)

4.7.3.10 Net Power Output

$$(WN) = ((W) - (RB) - (WRB))$$
 (88)

Net power output per unit weight

$$(NPOPW) = \frac{(WN)}{(LBT)}$$
(89)

4.7.3.11 Overall Thermal Efficiency

100

(A) Based on higher heating value of the fuel

η _{HHV} =	(¥ ^N) watts (¥531) (HIIV) (1.164)	(90)
(IIHV)	K Cal/gm mole	
(F531)	gm mole/hr	

÷.

4.8 RESULTS OF DETAILED HEAT, MASS, AND ENERGY BALANCE FOR 0.5 KW SYSTEM (P. J. Chludzinski, D. C. Shah)

Based on the set procedure for calculation of detailed heat and mass balance in Appendix 4.7, the following results were obtained for two optimum systems based on cell efficiency, battery core weight, and the electrolyte gap.

The optimum values of the fuel cell battery were obtained from a computer program set for Appendix 4.5. These values were used to calculate the entire system mass and heat balance, assuming that optimum core condition would result in an optimum overall system.

Heat content of different streams were obtained from Tables 4.8-1 thru 4.8-6 at the end of this appendix. Temperature conditions for the fluid streams were based on cell operating temperature for each system. For most cases 15°F approach was used, except where a lower temperature difference was necessary.

Results shown in parentheses are for forced convection cooling, otherwise results are for free convection cooling.

4.8.1 Optimum System Values

1

The following optimum values were obtained for the system from Appendix 4.5.

		Case 1	Case 2
(T100)	Temperature of system (*C)	150°C	180°C
(V)	Net voltage per cell (volts)	0.32	0.429
2(H)	Height of the cell (inch)	10	10
(L)	Length of the cell (inch)	15	15
(^P /t)	Screen resistivity (ohm/square)	0.0053 (at room temp.) 0.0083 at 150°C	0.0053 (at room temp.) 25% 0.0088 at 180°C
(J)	Current density (ASF)	30	40
(N)	Number of cells	61	34
(W)	Gross power (watts)	600	600
(⁶ 2)	Weight of screen (lb/sq ft)	0.13	0.13
(I)	Total current (amps)	1689.5	1400
(1)	Current per cell (amps)	31.25	41.7
(Y1)	Width of frame (inch)	0.5	0.5

		Case 1	Case 2
(Y2)	Air gap (inch)	0.0625	0.0625
(Y3)	Insulation thickness (inch)	2.0	2.0
(Y 4)	Electrode thickness (inch)	0,012	0.012
(Y 5)	Gas frame thickness (inch)	0.125	0.125
(Y 6)	Electrolyte gap (inch)	0.0625	0.0625
(Y 8)	Projected screen height from battery for bus bar connection (inch)	0.5	0.5
(M1)	Length of fuel cell stack (inch)	11.6	5. J
(M2)	Thickness of end plate (inch)	0.5	0.5
(T)	Ambient temperature (*F)	68 = 20°C	68 = 20°C
(T101)	Temperature of insulation surface (*C)	= 100°F	
(LB1)	Weight of stack (total) wet (lb)	87.19	48.41
(LB11)	Weight of frames (lb)	18.81	10.44
(LB12)	Weight of screens (lb)	20.98	11.65
(LB13)	Weight of catalyst (lb)	12.60	7.00
(LB14)	Weight of electrolyte in battery (lb)	34.80	19.32
([°] 1)	Density of frame material (lb/ft ³)	66.1	66.1
(^P 3)	Average catalyst loading (lb/ft^2)	0.1	0.1
([°] 4)	Density of electrolyte at 70°F (lb/ft ³)	106	106
(SWB)	Specific weight of the battery (lb/KW)	129.83	50.5
([°] e)	Electrical resistivity of electrolyte (ohm-cm)	1.85	1.5
(N)	Number of carbon atoms	8	8
(SF)	Fuel stoichiometry	10	10
(SD)	Air stoichiometry	3	3
(RH)	Relative humidity (air)	50%	50 %
(Z)	Fuel cell efficiency (%), (n _{LHV})	29.9	40.5
(U)	Overall heat transfer coefficient for free convection (Btu/hr sq ft °F)	1.0	1.0
(K1)	Thermal conductivity of insulation (Btu/hr sq ft °F/ft)	9,025	0.025
(CpE)	Specific heat phosphoric acid (Cal/gm mole °C)	42.1	42.1
(ΔT)	Electrolyte temperature rise in fuel cell (°C)	9	9

Gille".

4-74

			Case 1	Case 2
	(X 112)	Water mole fraction in electrolyte at exhaust	0,144 (97 wt % H ₃ PO ₄)	-0- (1)0 wt % H3PO4)
	(U3)	Overall heat transfer coefficient for air to vapor system (Btu/hr sq ft °F)	4.0	4.0
	(U2)	Overall heat transfer coefficient exhaust air condenser (Btu/hr sq ft °F)	1,5	1.5
	(U402)	Overall heat transfer coefficient for liquid fuel electrolyte (Btu/hr sq ft °F)	5.0	5.0
	(U404)	Heat transfer coefficient air to electrolyte (Btu/hr sq ft °F)	1.0	1.0
4.8.1.1	Temperat	ture of Streams (°C)		
			Case 1	Case 2
	(T122)	Air exhaust from cathode	145.5	180
	(T121)	Air inlet to cathode	142	172
	(T131)	Inlet fuel feed to anode	142	172
	(T132)	Anode exhaust fuel temperature	145.5	180
	(T 3 3 2)	Exhaust non-condensable gas from fuel condenser	29	29
	(T322)	Exhaust cooling air from fuel condenser	142	-
	(T221)	Inlet air temp vature to exhaust air condenser	20	20
	(T222)	Temperature of exhaust gases from air condenser	29	29
	(T202)	Surface temperature exhaust air condenser	81.3	104
	(T 431)	Fuel feed temperature to vaporizer	20	20
	(T 400)	Electrolyte cooler surface temperature	145.5	180
	(T442)	Exhaust air temperature from electrolyte cooling	80	80
	(TB)	Boiling point of fuel	126.87	126.87
	(T112)	Exhaust electrolyte from fuel celi	154.5	189
	(T111)	Inlet electrolyte to fuel cell	145.5	180
	(T300)	Fuel condenser surface temperature	98	102
	(T242)	Reactant air temperature from air condenses	r 142	-

4-75

情, 病

4.8.1.2 Pressure of Streams (mm Hg)

-

Pressure of different streams were assumed on the basis of pressure drops through the system, assuming atmospheric pressure of 760 mm Hg. All the streams from the system are exhausted to atmosphere.

		Case 1	Case 2
(P100)	Saturation vapor pressure of water over electrolyte	150 (07 wt %)	70 (100 wt 😤)
(P132)	Pressure at anode exhaust	780	780
(PD100)	Pressure drop at cathode exhaust	12	12
(P121)	Air pressure at cathode inlet	786	786
(P121)	Air pressure at cathode exhaust	780	780
(PF332)	Equilibrium fuel vapor pressure at (T332)	18.5	18.5
(PB332)	Equilibrium water vapor pressure at (T332)	30, 9	30.8
(P332)	Pressure in fuel condenser	765	765
(PB222)	Equilibrium water vapor pressure at (T222)	30.8	30.8
(P112)	Electrolyte exhaust pressure	772	772
(P111)	Electrolyte inlet pressure to fuel cell	836	836
(P131)	Pressure in fuel vaporizer	786	786
(P322)	Exhaust pressure cooling air for fuel condenser	765	765
(P221)	Cooling air inlet pressure to fuel condenser	770	
(P222)	Exhaust air condenser exhaust pressure	765	765
(P442)	Exhaust air pressure for electrolyte cooling	765	765
(P431)	Fuel feed pressure	786	786

4, 8, 1, 3 Specific Heat Content of Various Chemical Species

		Case 1		Case 2	
		Temp °C	K Cal/ gm mole	<u>a'emp °C</u>	K Cal/ g <u>m_mol</u> e
(HD122)	Oxygen at (T122)	145.5	2,922	180	3.17
(HD121)	Oxygen at (T121)	142	2,900	172.0	3,12

		Temp °C	K Cal/ gm mole	Temp °C	K Cal/ gm mole
(HD322) Air at (T	322)	142	2.245		
(HD221) Air at (T	221)	20	2.03	20	2,03
(HD222) Air at (T	222)	29	2.10	29	2.10
(HD442) Air (T442	2)	80	2,46	80	2.6
(HG122) Nitiogen	(T122)	145.5	2.910	180	3.125
(IIG121) Nitrogen	(T121)	142	2.885	172.0	3.10
(HG221) Niti ogen	(T221)	20	2.03	20	2.03
(HG222) Nitrogen	(T222)	29	2.10	2 9	2.10
(HB122) Wate. (v)	(T122)	145.5	11.91	180,0	11,93
(HB121) Water (v)	(T121)	142	11.88	172.0	11,895
(HB100) Water (v)	(T100)	150	11.93	180.0	11.93
(HB132) Water (v)	(T132)	165.5	11.91	180.0	11.93
(HB221) Water (v)	(T221)	20	10.45	20	10.45
(HB332) Water (v)	(T332)	29	10.45	29	16.45
(HBL222) Water (L) (T222)	29	0.522	2 9	0.522
(HBL262) Water (L))	29	0.522	23	0.522
(HBL312) Water (L)) (T 312)	29	0.52	29	0.52
(HF132) Fuel (v) ((T132)	145.5	24.14	180	26.23
(HF131) Fuel (v) ((T1 31)	14?	23.02	172	25. 7 5
(HF332) Fuel (v)	(332)	29	17.07	29	17.87
(HFL332) Fuel (L)	(T332)	29	8.16	29	8.16
(HFL431) Fuel (L)	(T431)	20	7.607	20	7.607
(HVF) Heat of va	aporization of fuel	-	8.36	-	8.36
(HK132) CO ₂ (T13	2)	145.5	3.36	180	3.73
(HK332) CO ₂ (T33	2)	29	2.285	29	2.285

Case 1

Case 2

4.8.2 Anode Mass Balance

Eq. No.			Case 1	Case 2	
	Theoret	ical fuel consumption (gm mole/hr)	1.26	1,145	
(1)	(F131)	Fuel feed (gm mole/hr)	12,6	11.45	

Calculations

Eq. No. Case 1 Case 2 11.34 10.30 (2)(F132) Fuel exhaust from anode (gm mole/hr) 10.09 9.16 (K132) CO₂ exhaust (anode) (3) (B132) Water vapor leaving anode (gm mole/hr) 5, 111,919 (4) 797.7 797.7 (PE100) Average pressure in electrolyte chamber (5) (mm iig) 78u 780 (PA100) Average pressure (mm Hg) (6) (PC100) 780 780 (7) Average pressure in cathode (mm Hg) 17.7 17.7 $(\Delta P_A) = (\Delta P_C)$ Pressure drop across anode or (8) cathode chamber with respect to electrolyte chamber (mm Hg) (?) (E132) Electrolyte leakage to anode (gm mole/hr) 11.62 4.55 1,55 (10)(E122) El. strolyte leakage to cathode (gm mole/hr) 11,62 O₂ feed to cathode (gm mole/hr) 47,25 13.1 (11) (D121) 162.0 178.0 (G121) No feed to cathode (gm mole/hr) (12)3.0 2.77 (B121) Water vapor feed to cathode with reactant (13) air (gm mole/hr) (14) (D122) O₂ exhaust from cathode (gm mole/hr) 31.50 28.7 162.0 N2 exhaust (gm mole/hr) 178.0 (15)(G122) 4.8.3 Cathode Mass Balance (B122) Equilibrium water content in exhaust 49.9 28.9 (16)(95 wt %) (100 wt ^{C'}_ℓ) stream from cathode (in equilibrium with H₃PO₄) 11.32 10.3 (17) (B100) Product water 4.8.4 **Heat Balance** Cathode Heat out by cathode exhaust (K Cal/hr) 384.7 151 (H120) (18) Anode 32,6 Heat out by anode exhaust (K Cal/hr) 17.5 (19) (H130) 1021 Heat to be rejected from the fuel cell **~**86 (20)(HR) system (K Cal/hr) Length of fuel cell stack (inch) 11.6 5.0 (21)(M1) 7.68 Skin surface area of the battery cell 10.58 (22) (A101) (sq ft) 100 177 5 Surface temperature of insulation in (T101) (23)equilibrium with ambient temperature ('F)

1

for the second

]

]

Eq. No.				Case 1	Case 2
(24)	(R1 Loss)	Heat loss by free convection and ra from battery surface (K Cal/hr)	diation	79.3	206
(25)	(H110)	Heat to be rejected by electrolyte (K Cal/hr)		482.5	630.4
4.8.5	Electroly	e Mass Balance			
(26)	(E112)	Exhaust electrolyte flow rate (gm r	nole/h r)	1270.0	1660
(27)	(X111)	Mole fraction water at inlet (electr	ol yte)	0.167	0.0124
	(E111)	Inlet electrolyte flow rate (gm mole	e/hr)	1335	1690
4.8.6	Mass Bal	nce on Fuel Condenser			
(28)	(F332)	Fuel loss to stack (gm mole/h-)		0.262	0.2365
(29)	(F322)	Fuel condensed (gm mole/hr)		11.078	10.063
(30)	(B332)	Water exhaust with non-condensable (gm mole/hr)	e gases	0,434	0.394
(31)	(B312)	Water recovered from anode exhau (gm mole/hr)	Bt	4.676	1.525
1 .8.7	<u>Heat Bala</u>	nce on Fuel Condenser			
(32)	(H300)	Heat load on fuel condenser (K Cal	'hr)	244.05	215.3
(33)	(P300)	Fuel vapor pressure in anode exhau (mm Hg)	st	333	37.6
(34)	(T300)	Fuel dew point temperature (°C)		98	102.0
(35)	(TLM3)	Log mean temperature difference for fuel condenser (°C)	or	109.4	$\Delta T = 145.6$
(36)	(A300)	Heat transfer area required (sq ft)		2,130	7.4
(37)	(A301)	Skin surface area of fuel condenser	(sq ft)	0.2904	-
(38)	(Q3 Loss)	Heat loss by free convection from f condenser surface (K Cal/br)	uel	11.55	-
(39)	(D341)	Airflow rate required to reject among heat from fuel condenser (gm mole,	unt of /hr)	1080	-
(40)	(V300)	Volume of fuel condenser (cu ft)		1.066 x 10 ⁻²	0.154
4.8.8	Heat and I	fass Balance, Exhaust Air Condens	er		
(41)	(B22)	Water vapor overboard from exhaus condenser (gm mole/hr)	st air	8.34	8.0
(42)	((H121) - (H221)) Heat required to preh- reaction air (K Cal/hu	eat ')	194.4	224.5

Harid Meader

24¹61 (4),

Eq. No.				<u>Ca</u> : <u>1</u>	Case 2
(43)	(43) $((BL252) + (B222))$		Total water to be rejected from the system (gm mole/hr)	13,886	12.676
	(BL:	252)	Water rejected as condensed water from exhaust air condenser (gm mole/hr)	5.546	1,676
	(B22	22)	Water vapor overboard at assumed equilibrium exhaust temperature (T222)	8.34	8,0
(44)	(P200)	Vapor pressu (mm Hg)	are of water in cathode exhaust	48, 5	48.6
(45)	(T200)	Maximum all keep the syst at 70°F assur relative hum	owable exhaust temperature to tem self-sustaining for water med ambient terperature, 50% idity (°C)	37.22	37.22
(46)	(BL262)	Amount of wa electrolyte (j	ater to be recirculated to gm mole/hr)	36.014	16.224
(47)	(v - 00)	Heat load exl	haust air condenser (K Cal/hr)	739.15	526.1
(48)	(T 242)	Exhaust air temperature (°C)		142	180
(49)	(TLM2)	Log mean temperature in exhaust air condenser (°C)		5,67	8.5
(50)	(A 200)	Heat transfer condenser (s	r area required, air q ft)	(200)	39.1
(51)	(A201)	Outside surfa	ace area (sq ft)	(6.75)	5,58
(52)	(T 201)	Skin tempera	ture of insulation (°F)	(86)	89.5
(53)	(Q2 Loss)	Heat loss by from condens	free convection and radiation ser (K Cal/hr)	(27)	27.2
(54) a	(D241)	Air required (gm mole/hr	to supercool exhaust)	(594)-	Used Free Convection
(54)b		Reactant air	flow (gm mole/hr)	228,25	207.87
(55)	(11430)	Heat require superheat fue	d to preheat, vaporize and el feed to the system (K Cal/hr)	206	208
(56)	(A401)	Outside surfa (sq ft)	ace area of electrolyte cooler	6.13	4,85
(57)	(T401)	Skin tempera	iture (°F)	99.4	107.5
(58)	(Q4 Loss)	Heat loss fro by free conve	om electrolyte cooler surface ection (K Cal/hr)	45.1	45.5
(59)	(D441)	Cooling air i assuming ter (gm mole/hr	required to remove excess heat nperature rise of 60°C	130	268

4-80

Eq. No.						Case 1	Case 2
(60)	(TB)	Boiling to the p	; point pressu	of the fuel cor re (P131) (°C)	responding	126.87	126.87
(61)	(Q402)	Heat repoint (equire K Cal/	d to bring fuel (hr)	to boiling	68.5	80
(62)	(TLM402)	Log me (°C)	ean ter	nperature for f	uel preheater	56	97.3
(63)	(A 402)	Heat tr fuel (se	ransfei q ft)	r area required	l to preheat	0.54	1.22
(64)	(Q403)	Heat r	equire	d to vaporize fu	uel (K Cal/hr)	105.3	87.5
(65,	(A403)	Heat th fuel (Se	ransfei q ft)	r area required	l to vaporize	0.525	0.777
(66)	(T LM 404)	Log m cooling	ean tei g by ai	mperature for (r (°C)	electrolyte	92	128
(67)	(A404)	Heat the	ransfei olyte (i	r area required sq ft)	i to cool	1.31	3.89
4.8.9	<u>Overall H</u>	eat and	Mass	Balance			
(68)	Water Ba	lance					
		IN	=	OUT			
	(B121) +	(B100)	=	(B332) + (B22	2) + (BL252)		
	3.0 + 11.	32	=	0.434 + 8.34 -	+ 5.546		
	14.32		=	14.32			
(69)	Fuel Bal:	ince					
	(F531) fu	el fee(l	gm mo	ole/hr 1.	522		
	(F531)	2	((F	131) - (F132)	+ (F332)		
	1.522	=	1.26	+ 0.262 = 1.52	22		
(70)	Heat Bala	ance					
	IN						
	1.522 x 7	7.607 +	(594 +	1080 + 130) x 3	2.03 + 47.25 x 2.	03	
	+ 178 x 2	. 885 +	3.0 x 1	10.45 + 1024			
	=	11, 58	+ 3600	0 + 96.0 + 514 -	+ 31.4 + 1024		
	=	5276.	98				
	OUT						
	0.262 x	17.87 +	10.08	x 2.285 + 0.43	4 x 10.45		
	+ 31.50	x 2.095	+ 178	x 2.10 + 8.34 x	x 10.45		

+ 5 546 x 0.522 + 130 x 2.45 + 1080 x 2.245 + 594 x 2.90 + 79.3 + 27.0 + 11.55 + 45.1 4.58 + 23.05 + 4.54 + 66 ÷ 374 + 87.10 + 2.885 + 320 + 2435 + 1720 + 79.3 + 27.0 + 11.55 + 45.1

5200,20

4, 8, 10 Parasitic Power (watts)

Eq. No.				Case 1	Case 2
(71)	(WPE4)	To pump electrolyte	0,1845	(0, 1845)	0.233
(72)	(WPF4)	To pump fuel	0.002	(0,002)	.0005
(73)	(WPD4)	Pump air to cells	5.31	(5, 31)	4.80
(74)	(WPD5)	Pump air to exhaust air condenser	-	(5, 55)	-
(75)	(WPD6)	Pump air to fuel condenser	-	(10,1)	-
(76)	(WPD7)	Pump air to electrolyte cooler	-	(1, 22)	-
(77)	(WRB)	Power aupplied by auxiliary battery (assuming 10% pumping efficiency)	55	(223,64)	50,33
(78)	(RB)	Power required to recharge auxiliary battery 8 hr operation	2	(7)	2
Total Pa	rasitic Po	wer	57	(231)	5 2

The main portion of parasitic power requirement is a result of forcing air through heat exchangers. If these heat exchangers are constructed to use free convection as a means of heat loss, it is possible to save considerable amount of power requirements.

(1) Fuel Condenser

Heat to be rejected = 244.05 K Cal/hr

Temperature of the surface will vary according to condensation of fuel. We assume the arithmetic mean average temperature based on inlet and exhaust conditions:

$$T_{ave} = \frac{288 + 85}{2} = 186.5^{\circ}F$$

 $\Delta T = 186.5 - 70 = 116.5^{\circ}F$

Overall heat transfer coefficient = 0.9 Btu/hr sq ft °F

Surface area required

$$= \frac{Q}{U X T} = \frac{244 X 4}{0.8 X 116.5}$$

= 10.48

≈ 10.5 sq ft

Assuming we can build 50 sq ft of surface area per cu ft:

Total volume =
$$\frac{10.5}{50}$$
 = 0.21 cu ft

(LB3) Weight of fuel condensor = $4 \times 10^{-4} \times 10.5$ 168, 5 = .718 lb

(2) Exhaust Air Condenser Heat to be rejected = 517.7 K Cal/hr $\Delta T = \frac{288 + 6.7}{2} - 70 = 116.5^{\circ}F$ Q=UAT U = 0.8 Btu/hr sq ft °F $A = \frac{517.7 X 4}{0.8 X 116.5} = 22.20 \text{ sq ft}$ (1) = $4 \times 10^{-4} \times 22.2 \times 168.5 = 1.5 \text{ lb}$ (LB2) (LB2) (2) = Reactant air preheater Amount of heat ...change = 739,15 - 517,7 = 221.45 K Cal/hr = 10.22°F (TLM2) $\frac{221.45 X 4}{1.5 X 10.22} = 57.6 \text{ sq ft}$ (A200) U X 10⁻⁴ X 57.6 X 168.5 (LB2)₂ = = 3.88 (LB2) 1.5 + 3.88 = 5.38 lb = Therefore, volume of the $= \frac{21.18}{50} = 0.423$ Exhaust Air Condenser Reaction Air Preheater = $\frac{57.6}{200}$ = 0.288 (3) Electrolyte Cooler $\Delta T = 295 - 70 = 225^{\circ}F$

U = 0.8 Btu/hr sq ft °F

Heat to reject = Q = 54 K Cal/hr

$$(A404) = \frac{54 X 4}{0.8 X225}$$

= 1.2 sq ft
Volume = $\frac{1.2}{50}$ = 0.024 cu ft

(LB4)

$$(4) = 4 \times 10^{-4} \times 1035 \ (0.54 + 0.525 + 1.2)$$

= 0,94 lb

The calculations show that about 169 watts of parasitic power can be saved by using free

convection. The same argument holds true for the case of 180°C operating temperature.

Tota parasitic power requirements

= 225,64 - 168.7

= 54.94 watts

 ≈ 55 watts

As some of the units are changed, total weight of the system will change.

$$(LBT) = 1.1 ((LB1) + (LB (LB3) + (LB4) + (LB5) + (LB8))$$

= 1.1 (77.9 + 5.38 + 0.72 + 0.94 + 73.70 + 15) = 191.7 lb

	New Powe	er Output	Case 1	Case 2
(88)	(WN)	Net power out (watt)	543	548
(89)	(NPOPW)	Net power out per unit weight of the system (watts/lb)	3.14	4.88
(90)	([¶] HHV)	Overall efficiency based on higher	23,25	25.8

Table	4.8-1

Heat of	Vaporizat	ion of n.	parafins

	Compound	At 25°C			At Normal Boiling Point		
		<u>K Cal</u> gm mole	<u>Cal</u> gm	<u>Btu</u> lb	K Cal gm mole	Cal gm	<u>Btu</u> lb
1	n-Pentane	6.316	87.54	157.15	6,16	85,38	153,6
2	n-Hexane	7,54	87.50	157.4	6.896	80.03	143.96
3	-Heptane	8.735	87.18	156.82	7.575	75.j	136
4	n-Octane	9,915	86.80	156,14	8.36	73, 19	131,65

.

	n - Mole wt	octane = 114	n - 1 100	neptane), 2	n - 8	hexane 6.2	n - 1 72	pentane 2.1
	Enthal	ру						
Temp, °C	Liquid, <u>K Cal</u> gm mole	Vapor, <u>K Cal</u> gm mole						
	h _L	^h v	h _L	^h v	h _L	^h v	h L	^h v
10.0	6.98	17.0	6.28	15.24	5,65	13,40	4,88	11.53
20	7.607	17.44	6.84	15.64	6.1	13.71	5.31	11.82
23.89	7.85	17.61	7.06	15.80	6.27	13.83	5.48	11.93
29	8.16	17.87	7.32	16.00	6.53	14.00	5.7	12.16
37.78	8.69	18.32	7.79	16.35	6.99	14.31	6.08	12.33
51.67	9.57	18.95	5.62	16.96	7.66	14.78	6.68	12.73
65.56		19.65		17.58		15.31		13.17
93.33		21.10		18.80		16.41		14.09
121.1		22.61		20.13		17.61		15.05
148.9		24.35		21.58		18.80		16.09
176.7		26.0		23.03		20.14		17.17
180		26.23		23.22		20.3		17.3
204.4		27.87		24.64		21.53		18 . 29

Table 4.8-2								
Specific	Enthalpies	for	Normal	Parafins				

n-octane n-heptane n-hexane n-pentane V. P., B.P., В. Р., B.P., В.Р., °C *C •C °C mm Hg -50.1 10 19,2 -2.1 -25.0 31.5 +9.49 -14.3 -40.2 20 39.28 -7.4 -33,93 16.84 30 22.35 -29,22 45.13 -2.3 40 -25, 41 49.85 26.81 +1.85 50 53.84 30.57 5.36 -22,81 60 60.39 36.76 11.13 -16, 89 80 41.77 15.81 -12.59 65.70 100 75.91 54.41 24.81 -4,33 150 1,92 200 83.63 58.69 31.61 89.90 64.62 37.15 7,01 250 95.24 41.85 11,34 69.66 300 400 104.95 77.99 49.63 18,49 111.24 84.79 55.99 24,34 500 29,32 117.37 90.58 61.40 600 66.15 33.68 700 122.73 95.65 125.67 98,43 88.74 36.074 760 127.53 100.18 70.38 37, 59 800 77.75 135.85 108.06 44.37 1000 142,96 114.79 84.05 50.17 1200 152.10 123.41 92.1 57.6 1500

Table 4.8-3Vapor Pressures and B. P. for Liquid Hydrocarbons

-

4-86

а,

Fable	4.	8-4

Mole Fra	action H _a	PO	at Different	Concentrations
----------	-----------------------	----	--------------	----------------

H ₃ PO ₄	Mole Fraction	Mole Fraction
% by weight	H ₃ PO ₄	н ₂ о
90	0.71	0 29
94	0.743	0.257
95	0.777	0.223
96	0.815	0.185
97	0.856	0.144
98	0.90	0.10
99	0.948	0.052
100	1.00	0.0

₽₩,

Table 4.8-5

14 L 27

ł

Linguistics and the second sec

Specific Heat Content of Water Enthalpy

Te F	mp, °C	Liquid, K Cal/gm mole	Heat of Vaporization, K Cal/gm mole	Vapor, K Cal/gm mole
68	20	0.360	10, 54	10.90
78	25.6	0,460	10.48	10.94
84.2	29.0	0, 522	10.45	10,972
58	31.1	0,560	10.43	10,99
98	36.7	0,659	10.37	11,029
110	43,3	0.779	10.31	11.089
120	48,9	0.879	10.25	11.129
140	60.0	1.078	10.14	11,218
160	71.1	1.278	10.02	11.298
180	82,2	1,479	9, 898	11,377
200	93, 3	1.679	۶.777	11, 456
220	104.4	1.880	9.651	11.531
240	115,6	2.083	9.520	11,603
260	126.7	2.285	9, 384	11.669
302	150.0	2.715	9.081	11,796
338	170. J	3.091	8.795	11,556
356	180.0	3.279	8.652	1,931
374 .	190 .0	3.475	8.487	11,962
÷30	204.4	3.750	8,255	12,005

	Heat Content	of Different Chemi	Ical Species, V	apor Phase	
Temper	rature	Her [•] Content, Cal/gm mole [°] K			
°C	۴K	0 ₂	H ₂	N ₂	co ₂
-273	0	0	0	0	0
-23	250	6.93	6.78	6.95	-
20	293	6.94	-	6.95	7.5
25.16	298.16	6.94	6.790	6,95	7.51
27	300	6.942	6,790	6.95	7.52
29	302	6.943	6,791	6.95	7.529
50	323	6.951	6.799	6.952	7.628
100	373	6.971	6.819	6.957	7.867
127	400	6.98	6.83	6.960	7.99
150	423	7.0	6.83	6.960	8.07
180	453	7.0.	6.84	6,965	8.22
ያሶሳ	473	7.033	6.848	6.967	8.318
2:7	500	7.05	6.86	6.97	8.45
327	600	7.13	6.88	7.00	8.87
427	700	7.22	6.90	7.03	9,26

Table 4.8-6

Security Classification					
DOCUMENT CO	NTROL DATA - R&	D			
(Security classification of little, body of abstract and indexing annotation must be encored when the overall report is classified)					
1 ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate author)		24. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION			
General Electric Company, Direct Energy	Conversion	l	Jnclassified		
Operation, Lynn, Massachusetts		26 GROUP			
		None			
3 REPORT TITLE		,			
Hydrocarbon - Air Fu	uel Cell				
4 DEJCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive detee)					
Semi-Annual Report No. 10 (1 July-31	December 1966)				
5. AUTHOR(S) (Lest name, first name, iritial)	,				
None					
S. RT YORT DATE	TA. TOTAL NO. OF P	AGES	75. NO. OF REFS		
31 December 1966	235		35		
A. CONTRACT OR GRANT NO.					
DA44-009-AMC-479(T)	SAR-10				
b. PROJECT NO.					
	•				
с.	9b. OTHER REPORT this report)	NO(S) (APV	other numbers thet may be sseigned		
	None				
10 A VAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES			94		
II- Contract of the second sec	nies of the rend		her		
of the second seco					
	an and a structure .		DIL DOSMONTHINKS		
11 CIIDDI	13 SPONSORING MILL	TARYACT			
II SOFTE STATISTICS	12. SPONSORING MILITARY ACTIVITY II S. Anmy Engineen Deceenablend Develon				
	want Tabanat	ngineer	Research and Develop-		
	ment Laborato	ries, ro	ort Belvoir, va.		
13. ABSTRACT	_				
Detailed information is presented on a co	ontinuing researc	h and de	evelopment program to		

develop a direct hydrocarbon oxidation-air fuel cell technology. Current work included research on electrocatalysts, multi-component fuels, and investigations with alternate acid electrolytes. An analysis of a direct hydrocarbon/air fuel cell system for liquid fuels is presented. The system represents a view of the upper limit in performance now attainable, based on data assembled under this and previous government contracts.

Security Classification

1.4

KEY WORDS		winn n					
		₩T	ROLE	W T	ROLE	WT	
	Į						
	1						
					ł	1	
INSTRUCTIONS		·				لمتبدا فالفدهد بينجل	

INSTRUCTIONS

1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of Defense activity or other organization (corporate author) issuing the report.

2a. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the overall security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Reatricted Data" is included. Marking is to be in accordance with sppropriate security regulations.

2b. GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DoD Directive 5200, 10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as authorized.

3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all capital letters. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classification, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesia immediately following the title.

4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive drtes when a specific reporting period is covered.

5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(a) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter last name, first name, middle initial. If military, show rank and branch of aervice. The name of the p.incipal author is an abaolute minimum requirement.

6. REPORT DATE: Enter the date of the report as day, month, year; or month, year. If more than one date appears on the report, use date of publication.

7e. TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES: The total page count ahould follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the number of pages containing information.

7b. NUMBER OF REFERENCES Enter the total number of references cited in the report.

8a. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which the report was written.

8b, 8c, & 8d. PROJECT NUMBER: Enter the appropriate military department identification, such as project number, subproject number, ayatem numbera, task number, etc.

9a. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the official report number by which the document will be identified and controlled by the originating activity. This number must be unique to this report.

9b. OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been assigned any other report numbers (either by the originator or by tha aponsor), also enter this number(s).

10. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any limitations on further disacmination of the report, other than those

imposed by security classification, using standard statements such aat

Т

T

LINK R

LINK C

- (1) "Qualified requesters may obtain copies of this report from DDC."
- (2) "Foreign announcement and dissemination of this report by DDC is not authorized."
- (3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DDC users shall request through
- (4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users shall request through
- (5) "All distribution of this report is controlled. Qualified DDC users shall request through

If the report has been furnished to the Office of Technical Services, Department of Commerce, for sale to the public, indicate this fact and enter the price, if known.

11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES: Use for additional explanatory notes.

12. SPONSORING MILITARY ACTIVITY: Enter the name of the departmental project office or taboratory stonsoring (paying for) the reaearch and development. Include address.

13. ABSTRACT: Enter an abatract giving a brief and factual aummary of the document indicative of the report, even though it may also appear elaewhere in the body of the technical report. If additional apace is required, a continuation sheet shall be attached.

It is highly desirable that the abatract of classified reports be unclassified. Each paragraph of the abatract shall end with an indication of the military accurity classification of the information in the paragraph, represented as (TS), (S), (C), or (U).

There is no limitation on the length of the abstract. However, the auggested length is from 150 to 225 words.

14. KEY WORDS: Key words are technically meaningful terms or short phrases that characterize a report and may be used as index entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be selected so that no se urity classification is required. Identifiers, such as equipment model designation, trade name, military project code name, geographic location, may be used as key words but will be followed by an indication of technical context. The assignment of links, roles, and weights is optional.